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Registered Office: M-5A, Connaught Circus,
New Delhi - 110 001 Good Food, Good Life

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE FIFTY FOURTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF NESTLE INDIA LIMITED will be held at Air Force Auditorium, Subroto Park,
New Delhi — 110 010 on Wednesday, 8" May, 2013, at 10:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at 31 December, 2012 and the Profit and Loss Statement for the year ended on that date together
with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To confirm the three interim dividends, aggregating to Rs. 48.50 per equity share, for the year ended 31% December, 2012.

3. To appoint a director in place of Dr. (Mrs.) Swati A. Piramal, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

4, To appoint M/s A.F. Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants (ICAI Registration No.112066W) as statutory auditors of the Company and fix their remuneration.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that Mr. Aristides Protonotarios, who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with effect from 15 April, 2013,
in terms of Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”) and Article 127 of the Articles of Association of the Company and whose term of office expires at
this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has received notice in writing from a member under Section 257 of the Act, proposing his
candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company and the period of his office shall be liable to determination by retirement
of directors by rotation.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 198, 269, 309 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) read with Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956, as amended, and subject to the requisite
approval of the Central Government, the Company hereby accords its approval to the appointment of Mr. Aristides Protonotarios as the Whole-Time Director,
designated as “Director-Technical” for a period of five years with effect from 15 April, 2013 on the terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration as contained
in the draft Agreement, a copy whereof initialed by the Chairman for the purpose of identification is tabled before the meeting, and the Board of Directors be and
is hereby authorised to alter and vary such terms of appointment and remuneration so as not to exceed the limits specified in Schedule XIII to the Companies Act,
1956 or any statutory modifications thereof, as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr. Aristides Protonotarios.”

By Order of the Board
B. Murli
Date : 20" February, 2013 Senior Vice President — Legal
Place : Gurgaon & Company Secretary

IMPORTANT NOTES:

1. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Thursday, 2" May, 2013 to Wednesday, 8" May, 2013 (both
days inclusive) for annual closing.

2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956, which sets out details relating to Special Business at the meeting, is annexed
hereto.
3. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL ON HIS /

HER BEHALF. SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not later than 48
hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported
by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

4. As an alternative to the recommendation of final dividend for 2012, the Board of Directors has, at their meeting held on 20" February, 2013, declared third interim
dividend of Rs. 12.50 per share for the year ended 315 December, 2012, which shall be paid on and from 12" March, 2013 to all the shareholders who are entitled
to the dividend as on 26 February, 2013, being the Record date fixed for the purpose. Two Interim Dividends for the year 2012, each at the rate of Rs. 18.00
per equity share, were also paid on 13" August, 2012 and 21 December, 2012, respectively.

5. Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank particulars registered against their respective depository accounts will be used by
the Company for payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrars cannot act on any request received directly from the Members holding shares in electronic
form for any change of bank particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository Participant of the Members. Members holding
shares in physical form and desirous of either registering bank particulars or changing bank particulars already registered against their respective folios for
payment of dividend are requested to write to the Company.
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Under Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956, the amount of dividend remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the due date is required
to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), constituted by the Central Government. Accordingly, the Company has transferred
Rs. 20,02,326/- and Rs. 38,77,758/- being the unpaid and unclaimed dividend amount pertaining to Special Dividend 2004 and Interim Dividends 2005 on
12 May, 2012 and 14" January, 2013, respectively, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 10" May, 2012 notified the IEPF (Uploading of information regarding unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with
companies) Rules, 2012 (IEPF Rules). The objective of the IEPF Rules is to help the shareholders ascertain status of the unclaimed amounts and overcome
the problems due to misplacement of intimation thereof by post etc. The Company has uploaded the information in respect of the Unclaimed Dividends in respect
of the financial years 2005 up to 2012, as on the date of the 53" Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 30" March, 2012, on the website of the IEPF viz.
www.iepf.gov.in and under “Investors Section” on the Website of the Company viz. www.nestle.in.

A separate reminder has also been sent to those members having unclaimed dividends pertaining to Final Dividend for 2005 and First Interim Dividend 2006
paid on 9" May, 2006 or any subsequent dividend payment(s). Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants are requested to write to the Company
immediately claiming dividends declared by the Company for the said periods. Please note that as per Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, no claim
shall lie against the Company or the said Fund in respect of individual amounts which remain unclaimed or unpaid for a period of seven years from the due
date and no payment shall be made in respect of any such claims.

To prevent fraudulent transactions, members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member
as soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from
the concerned Depository Participant and holdings should be verified.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities
market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining
their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company.

Details under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General
Meeting, is separately annexed hereto. The Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment have furnished the declaration under the Companies (Disqualification
of Directors under Section 274(1)(g) of the Companies Act, 1956) Rules, 2003.

The Notice of the 54 Annual General Meeting of the Company along with printed Attendance Slips is being dispatched to all Members. Electronic copy of the
Annual Report for 2012 is being sent to all the members whose email address is registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) unless any member
has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email address, the Annual Report for 2012 is sent alongwith the Notice.
Members who have not yet registered their email address are encouraged to submit their request with their respective Depository Participant or the Company,
as the case may be.

Members may also note that the Notice of the 54" Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2012 will also be available on the Company’s website
www.nestle.in for their download. The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s Registered Office in New Delhi for
inspection during business hours. Even after registering for e-communication, members are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon
receipt of request for the same, by post free of cost.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
Item No.5& 6

The Board of Directors at their meeting on 20" February, 2013 appointed Mr. Aristides Protonotarios as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from
1%t April, 2013. Under Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 read with Article 127 of the Articles of Association of the Company, he holds office only up to
the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

A notice has been received from a member as required under Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, proposing Mr. Aristides Protonotarios as a candidate
for the office of Director of the Company.

Further, at the same Meeting, the Directors appointed Mr. Aristides Protonotarios as a Whole-Time Director designated as “Director- Technical” of the Company
for a period of five years with effect from 15t April, 2013, subject to approval of the Shareholders and the Central Government.

Mr. Protonotarios holds Bachelor's degree of Engineering in Nature and Agriculture from Newcastle Upon Tyne University, United Kingdom and Master's Degree
of Engineering in Foods from Reading University, United Kingdom. Before this assignment he served as R & D Manager for the Beverages Strategic Business
Unit (SBU) at Nestec S.A., Switzerland. He joined Nestle United Kingdom in 1991 and was appointed as Manufacturing Specialist at Hayes. In 1996, he moved
to Estcourt Factory, South Africa, as Manufacturing Specialist and progressed through a number of positions until he became Production Manager in 1999. He
joined PTC Orbe as Manufacturing Specialist Coffee and later as Technical Advisor in 2003. In 2004 he was appointed as Factory Manager in Hayes and in
2007 he became Head of Manufacturing Services for Beverages in the United Kingdom. In 2009, he was appointed as Head of Technical and Production for
Indonesia. In 2011 he moved to Nestec S.A., Switzerland, where he established the R & D function in the Beverages SBU.

The approval of members is being sought to the terms, conditions and stipulations for the appointment of Mr. Protonotarios as a Whole-Time Director and the
remuneration payable to him. The terms and conditions proposed (fixed by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 20™ February, 2013) are keeping
in line with the remuneration package that is necessary to encourage good professional managers with a sound career record to important position as that of
the Director- Technical.
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The material terms of appointment and remuneration as contained in the draft Agreement are stated hereunder:-

)

)

1)

Salary, Allowances and Commission (hereinafter referred to as “Remuneration”):
a) Salary Comprising
(i) Basic Salary : At the rate not exceeding Rs. 7,50,000/- per month; and
(i) Allowances : Atthe rate not exceeding Rs. 15,00,000/-per month,

with increments as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time, subject to a ceiling on increment of 30%
in a year (following year from April to March) over the existing Basic Salary and Allowances, as on 1 April every year, commencing from
15 April, 2014.

b) Commission and Performance linked incentive:

On net profits of the Company determined in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 at a rate to be determined
by the Board of Directors from time to time, but not exceeding an amount equivalent to twice the Salary in I(a) above, for the relevant period.
The payment may be made on a pro-rata basis every month or an annual basis or partly monthly and partly on an annual basis at the discretion

of the Board.
Perquisites
1. In addition to the Remuneration as stated above, Mr. Aristides Protonotarios shall be entitled, as per Rules of the Company to perquisites like:

a. Rent-free furnished residential accommodation with free use of all the facilities and amenities, such as air conditioners, geysers etc. In
case no accommodation is provided by the Company, he shall be entitied to House Rent Allowance as per policy of the Company.

b. Reimbursement of all medical expenses incurred, including premium paid on health insurance policies, whether in India or abroad, for
self and family including hospitalisation.

C. Personal Accident Insurance Premium.

d. Air passage and/or Leave Travel Allowance for him and members of his family residing in India to visit abroad and for visit to India of
the members of his family not residing in India.

e.  Subscription to clubs.

f. Use of Company maintained cars with driver for business and personal use.

g. Use of communication devices such as telephones, at the residence. Personal long distance telephone calls shall be borne by him.

h. Education Allowance for his children, whether abroad or in India.

i. Encashment of leave at the end of his tenure as per policy of the Company.
I8 Contributions to provident fund and any other retirement benefits.
k. Terminal benefits.

Air/Sea passage together with cost of transportation of household belongings to such places as may be approved by the Board of
Directors at the time of leaving the service of the Company.

l. Expenses on shifting of residence.
Joining allowances and other benefits.
Participation in any/ all employee stock option schemes/ plans of the Company or that of Nestlé S.A.

Such other perquisites and allowances in accordance with the rules of the Company or as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors
and Mr. Aristides Protonotarios.

e = 3

The value of the perquisites evaluated as per Income-tax Rules, 1962, wherever applicable, and at cost in the absence of any such Rule, shall
be subject to an overall annual ceiling of an amount not exceeding the Salary in | (a) above for the relevant period. In the aforesaid perquisite
limit, the perquisites mentioned above from (h) to (n) shall be excluded.

2. The Board of Directors may, in their discretion, revise/modify any of the terms from time to time, within the limits stipulated.
Minimum Remuneration:

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, where in any financial year during the period of his office as Whole-Time Director, the Company has no profits
or its profits are inadequate, the Company may, subject to the requisite approvals, pay Mr. Protonotarios remuneration by way of salary, allowances,
perquisites not exceeding the maximum limits laid down in Para 1 of Section Il of Part Il of Schedule XIII to the Companies Act, 1956 or any other statutory
modifications therein, substitutions or re-enactment thereof, as may be agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr. Protonotarios.

Other Terms:

Mr. Protonotarios shall, subject to the superintendence, control and direction of the Board of Directors, manage and conduct the business and affairs
of the Company with respect to the technical areas of the Company including all existing and future factory locations. He shall not be paid any sitting
fees for attending meetings of the Board or Committee thereof.

The appointment can be terminated by Mr. Protonotarios or the Company, by one party giving to the other 3(three) calendar months notice in writing
or by payment of a sum equivalent to remuneration for the notice period or part thereof in case of shorter notice or on such other terms as may be mutually
agreed.

The period of office of Mr. Protonotarios shall be liable to determination by retirement of directors by rotation. If Mr. Protonotarios is re-appointed as
a director, immediately on retirement by rotation he shall continue to hold office of Whole-Time Director designated as “Director-Technical” and such
re-appointment as director shall not be deemed to constitute break in his appointment as a Whole-Time Director designated as “Director-Technical”.
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Mr. Protonotarios is not a Director or a Committee Member of any Company in India and he does not hold by himself or for any other person on a beneficial
basis, any shares in the Company.

In view of the provisions of Section 309 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board accordingly recommends the Ordinary
Resolution as set out at Item No. 5 & 6 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of Members.

The Board considers that the appointment of Mr. Protonotarios as a Director of the Company would be of immense benefit to the Company. Accordingly,
the Board of Directors recommends his appointment.

Copy of the Draft Agreement referred to in the Resolution would be available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company
during business hours on any working day, excluding Saturday, upto and including the day of the Annual General meeting.

This Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying Notice may also be regarded as an abstract and memorandum under Section 302 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

Mr. Protonotarios may be deemed to be interested or concerned in the Resolution at Item No. 5 & 6.

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT WITH
THE STOCK EXCHANGE:

Re-appointment of Dr. (Mrs.) Swati A. Piramal (Item No. 3)

Dr. (Mrs.) Swati A. Piramal joined the Board of Directors as a Non-Executive and Independent Director of the Company on 2 August, 2010. She is also a
member of the Corporate Governance Committee of the Directors of the Company.

Dr. Piramal is the Vice Chairperson of Piramal Enterprises Limited. She has a Medical Degree from the University of Bombay, a diploma in Industrial Medicine
and a Masters’ in Public Health from Harvard University, USA. She was the Commencement Speaker at the Harvard School of Public Health in 1992. She is
a founder of the Gopikrishna Piramal Hospital in Mumbai, and has launched public health campaigns against chronic disease, osteoporosis, malaria, TB,
epilepsy and polio. As Director of the Piramal Foundation which is engaged in inter-disciplinary and field based education, she helps promote health in rural
India with HMRI - a mobile health service, women's empowerment projects, and supporting community education that creates young leaders. She is a Director
of Sarvajal foundation for clean water. She has made an immense contribution for supporting women in leadership roles.

Dr. Piramal has been the recipient of one of France’s highest honours -"Chevalier de I'Ordre National du Merite” (Knight of the Order of Merit) in 2006 for medicine
and trade, the Rajiv Gandhi Award for Outstanding Women Achiever, by the Rajiv Gandhi Foundation in 2007 and the Asian Women Achievement Award in
UK in 2010. She was nominated one of the 25 Most Powerful Women in India, eight times in succession, from 2003 til 2011 and nominated to the Hall of Fame
of Most Powerful Women in Business in 2011. Dr. Piramal was the President of ASSOCHAM 2009-2010, and was the first woman to be elected in 90 years
of the history of ASSOCHAM. She was awarded by the Honourable President of India, for contribution to better Corporate Governance, and is the recipient
of the Global Empowerment Award - UK, from Her Royal Highness, the Duchess of Kent. On 4" April 2012, Dr. Piramal received the prestigious Padma Shri,
at the hands of the President of India for her exceptional and distinguished contribution to the field of trade and industry. In September 2012, she received the
Alumni Merit Award, the highest Award bestowed on alumni, from Harvard.

Dr. Piramal holds directorship and membership of the Committees of the Board of Directors of the following other companies in India:

. Director in Piramal Enterprises Limited, Piramal Glass Limited, Piramal Corporate Services Limited, ICICI Bank Limited, Allergan India Private Limited,
Piramal Estates Private Limited, Vulcan Investments Private Limited, PEL Management Services Private Limited, Akshar Fincom Private Limited,
Adelwise Investments Private Limited, India Venture Advisors Private Limited, Alpex Holdings Private Limited, Propiedades Realties Private Limited
and Piramal Management Services Private Limited.

. Member of Audit Committee of Directors of Piramal Estates Private Limited.
Dr. Piramal is also a Member of the following organization/trade bodies:

. Governing Body of Council of Scientific & Industrial Research, Prime Minister's Council on Trade and Industry, Board of Dean’s Advisors of the Harvard
School of Public Health, Dean’s Advisors of the Harvard Business School, Assam Investment Advisory Board, Indira Gandhi National Centre for the
Arts Trust and Global Advisory Council.

Dr. Piramal does not hold by herself or for any other person on a beneficial basis, any shares in the Company.

The Board considers that her continued association would be of immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail services of Dr. Piramal
as a Director. Accordingly, the Board recommends her re-appointment.

Dr. Piramal may be deemed to be interested or concerned in the Resolution at Item No. 3.

Appointment of Mr. Aristides Protonotarios (Item No. 5 & 6)

For the details of Mr. Aristides Protonotarios, please refer to the above Explanatory Statement in respect of the Special Business (Item No. 5 & 6 of the Notice
of Annual General Meeting).

None of the above Directors is related inter-se.

By Order of the Board
B. Murli
Date : 20" February, 2013 Senior Vice President - Legal &
Place : Gurgaon Company Secretary
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Good Food, Good Life

Our Mission of "Good Food, Good Life'
is to provide Consumers with the best

tasting, most nutritious choices in

a wide range of food and beverage

categories and eating occasions

from morming te night

Nestlé India has always bad a strong Board of Divectors with
eminent prafessionals who are regarded and valued for their

experience, values, expertise and Independent views.

Tejendra Khanma, 145 (et | Rakesh Mohan
b e LY Gt of DutThi Exoriibtee Difecton il
fand Meber pnd Chabimm of Aadit Commetes foaard Member
St o 2000 o A 2007 Gt 2010 fin G bnben 0230
Rajendra S Pawar Pradip Baijal, | a5 fetd )
Crtimdn e co-Tourder of the MIT Cronp, Minagemmeni Consultarst
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Nestlé S.A. and India:
Stronger Bonds

Global forum on ‘Creating Shared Value'
organised in Indla

A4 a global compary Nestié has a strong tnterest fn
friematiomal developrrent ssues amd recently organised
the Creating Shared Viahue' global forum at New Delh
Mesthd’s first such forum nam emerging market was
co-hosted with FICC and focused on The mole of business
in development’. Leaders from business, civil society and
Governmment discussed how they colild work together to
ancelerate sustaimable development

b Anmidal Repart 2012
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.

India added to
Nestlé S.A. RED Network

R Indta will work closely with our
other BED faciities acrods the world,
contributing to our existing
knowledge base, and providing new
opportunities for frmevation and for
the growth of our bustness. &

Jaharmes Baemsch
Mesths Clotal Mead
of Research and Deyeloprrsnt

§ Our RBD cemtre in India will help us
gain important insights into local
consumers’ eating habits and taste
picterences, as well asgreater
gxperiise Inusing and processing
tocal Ingredients to develap praducts
for india and beyond.

Paul Bulcs
CLEA, Mestie A
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Dear Shareholders,

Recent years have been characterised by events ranging from dramatic tothe
unprecedented. There are new challenges and there are new opportunities.
What is different today is the speed and unpredictability of change, whether
for the new challenges or the new cpportunities, Today more than ever
before if cornpanies are to succeed they need to understand the changing
context in which they are.operating. This 1s the New Reality.

2012 was tough and we started the year with caution because we knew that
the business environment was changing. During the year as the economy
continued to slow down for various reasons we continued to grow but we
also critically examined our business to seek the change we needed to
fnitiate. In order to be stronger and faster in the future and continue being
the leader in the New Reality we have initiated actions to better align
ourselves fntemally and externally. The short term ‘quarter on quarter
performance has been achieved even while we have been transforming.

The year has been memorabie for several other good reasons that put India
more firmly on the global radar. in November two very high impact events
took place. Nestlé 5.A collaborated with FICCI to organise its International
Summit on Creating Shared Value for the first time in an emerging economy
and it was successfully organised in India. The second event that put India on
the global mapwas the inauguration of Nestlé 5.A's first R&D Centre in India
Both events are strategically important and reflect the increasing
fmportance that India now commands. They also reinforce the foundation of
our leadership in the new Reality and will strengthen our ability to continue

providing ‘Good Food, Good Life',

Antonio Helio Waszyk
Chairman & Managing Director




Nutrition, Health & Wellness

& & Good Food, Good Life..
is the promise we commit to everyday,
everywhers - to enhance fves, throughout

life, with good food and beverages. :": )
F.
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Understanding

The MNestlé Nutritional Compass provides clear,
transparent and factual mutrition tnformation about
our products. We help consumers understand how
various foods fit into a healthy diet and lifestyle.

Alsa, throughout gur communication we
encourage moderation, healthy eating habits
and physical activities and do not undermine the
authority of parerts in deciding what s best for
their children's nutrition.

Balance

Variety adds to the pleasure of food. & healthy
THfestyle requites a responsible cholee of varied,
enjoyable and tasty foods combined with physical
exercise. There are mo bad foods, whether sweet or
savory, fresh or frozen, it is all about healtthy cholces
and balance,

Mestié s uniquely placed o deftver variely and our
product range s designed 1o include several
options for every moment of the day and for all
Tamily members

Pleasure

Food is a source of pleasure and mutrition,

and consumers want both taste and health,

We have comprehensive policies that help us fo
systematically reduce public health sensitive
ingredients while providing superior taste and
pleasure. Our unigque B0/40+ inttiative ensures
that all our products meet rigorous standards and
eonsurner preferenc=s.

=

CGood Food, Good Life
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Deeper Insights,
Bigger Inmovations

Insights

The nutrition that the child

receives in first 1000 days has
a divect impact on later stages
of life

The micronutrients that the
Indian population s most

deficient in are Iron, lodine &
Vitamin A

Taking a KITKAT Break help

you notice something good
which you might have
otherwise missed

Cood makes Good

The abiltty to provide Good Food, Good Life demmands insights
trto consiimers’ unique reeds and preferences that not only

vary enormausly but ane constantly evolving. The inslghts can
range from what drives food cholce in the supermariket to the

soclal aspects of eating.

052 Annual Report 2012



Good Food, Goad Life

Many in the younger generation Preparing the base/qravy is at

today are facing busier lifestyles, the heart of our Indian cooking
are continuously on-the-go, and but for this, cutting and chopping
need products which offer Taste, of onions, tomatoes, ginger and
Nutrition and Convenience garlic, and the siow process of
With changing lifestyles, roasting or ‘bhunana’to get the
responsibilities are increasing e Slaurana N, taketa

lot of time
and mothers and housewives
want to reduce their time in the The consumption process of
kitchen, but without packaged soups starts from the
compromising on their role as moment the pack is picked up for
providers of tasty and wholesome preparation, and sight, sound,
food for their family’s wellbeing smell, feel and taste all contribute

to the enjoyment and relaxation

Mew MAGCT Healthy Soups have been developed with
Mestlé RED's rew granulation techmaiogy to dellver 3
multi-sensorial experience appealing to all the five senses
of hearing, sighl, touch, ymedl gnd taste, They detight the
honsewtfe from the mamant she plcks up the pack and
hears the 1oothing rustle of the granulés, opens the pack

to see the colourful real vegetables, smefls the appetising

aroma while cooking and tastes the soup.

Antsl Beport 20102 42




‘Baby and Me" 1s 3 nutritional
supplement for pregnant women

and lactating mothers It containg

a comnbination of nutrients that provids
therm the nutritional benefits and
suppart for balanced nutrition,

Iridia"s population, ’ ‘ - s - (—\ %
espectally amongst the P e My N
hower incomme farmilies are E L}

very defictent in Iran, lodine and Vilamin A. 3 _,.,/

o
Masals-ae-Magic developed by Nestié i an — S
affordable seasoning mix that can be used across RESOURCE 5 spectally forrmulated for
different cuisines in indfa and is specifically fhe managament of malnutrition and
fortified with Iron, lodine pnd Vitamin A other medical conditions assoctated

with increased nutritona] needs.
E.g, RESOURCE Diabeticis
ready-to-use fibre rich diet for better

mutritiomal management of diabetics.

MUNCH Rallz was developed using Nestid's unique
sxtrusion based technology. The ingenious new shape,
extremely crunchy cover and a burst of yummy carame! in
sach bite has made 1t an fnstant hit.




Good Food, Good Life

=

When irsights showee that earmumers
are willing to start expertmenting with
dark chocolate taste, The unigques,

first of its kind dark chocolate moulded
wafer KITKAT Dark was launched.
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NESCAFE - the world's favourite instant
coffes brand crented 2 range of delicious
foaming mixes for rich coffee taste and
delicious froth - Cappuccing, Vanilta Latte
and Choon Mocha.

==

e
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POLO Fashion flavours is magic, coated
by Nestlé and fashion desigrer Wenidel]
Rodricks Bold Holes and exciting new
Mawenies are Freart for dhowing alf your
funky fashionable side
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Sharper Consumer Connect

The KITKAT Dancing Bables TV
commercial zooms in popularity,

Over 3 million views

on YOUTUDE Highest everin
the FMCG category.

With s powerful brand cormmunication backed with
unigue idea of depictng Break’, KITKAT has made s
presence felt across digital media namely YouTube
and facebook, Netizens are delightfuily taking a break
and endorsing the brand!
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Noses Guood Food, Good Life

The Meri MAGGI page Is the largest
maccl facebook community

with Over 1.2 million fans
and very high engagement.

MAGG| 2-MINUTE Noodtes is one of the |argest B most
laved food brands in india And the love cantinues to
grow with millfons fans on facebook and YeuTube,
‘Share you Story and get Famous” has gained
momentiom on digital media.
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*Know your neighbours’ is the
largest NEscAFE facebook

community in the world with

Over 2.2 million fans.

NESCAFE.

As perfect starter of the day, millions are switching on
their morning with NESCAFE The "switch on your
moming campaign has created burr on digital media
with noted musicians playing the moming band.
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ﬁ” Good Food, Good Lafe

The MILEMAID Swest Momenis page on
facebook has ceated oNE OF

the most engaged communities
around Desserts and Dessert Reclpes.

Mhe MILKAMAID swest moments are being cherished
by thousands of fans on facebook and YouTube

Fans are exchanging ideas and creating mouth
watering recipes everyday with MILKMAID, The sweet
motnents are there to last

Anmual Repart 2012 g5



Thinking Ahead

T G00D makes GOOD

Corefully salectad milk

(s} Arvmual Beport 2012

Every day, mililons of peaple
all aver the world thow their
comfldence In us by choosing
Mestlé products and brands.
This confidence i3 based on
our Quality tmage and &
reputation for high standards
fhat Has been buflt up over



Good Fowd, Good Life

iv

Quality and Safety for our consumers is
Nestld's bop priority. This applies to ows
entive partfolio, from foods and
beverages to all our systerns and services.

All Nestle functions across our Vahee
Chaim are fully responsioke for observing
manduiory principles, normes and
mmstructions for maintaiming agreed
Qualtty standards and for constantly
mproving them

W apply nternationally recognised
Good Manufacturing Practices (CMP)
to ensure guality and food safety. GMP
covers all aspects of monufacturing,
tnchuding standard operating
procedures. people managerment and
training, equipment maintenance,
and handiing of materials.
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Capacity for
Emerging Demands

LInEl 2 was oo vissaned 85 § REw r.r.-.'sz-:r-drrlt et T I:.lﬂj' t
Samalicha with an twestrent of arcund @s, A8 crores

% 15 Gur business is grawing well in mdia
and we are very optimistic about the
country's growth opporiunities aver
the coming years. ..:1' .

A Hello Waszyk
Chatrman & Managing rector
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". India s Importiant for Nestlé and we have

YTy deep foots here. Nestad's decislon to
invest in this facllity at Ponda {s alsoa clear
Indicatbon that we have a happy and
comducive enviromment and excellent
cooperation from the governmeny,
authorities and business partners. & |

Jean Marc Duvotsin
NestiE SA while raugutatieg
& new rramufuctuting undt in 2012

Neytld has been In ndia for 100 years and 13

imbegral ko indla Deepite the current slowedor - "

in the mdlan econamy. the Company ks not

enly optimistic of s ability to acosierate but

alvd underyitands {he emerging nesd for 1ts

' product mange During the past three yedrs
Mestid india has inv=tted ground B3, 3000
Erores T upgrading and expanding Sisiing
capaciiies aswell as stting up new plants 1o
prenare for e Mow Reality, These imvostments
not only Increase production capabifities to
servi e comyumer heeds with greater speed
but also oreate direct andd indirect jobs

Annual Report 201219
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Creating Shared Value

Anmual Report 2012

i ‘Creating Shared Vaiue' goes beyand
philanthropy. It also reflects the
Candhian philosophy of trustesship; that
wie are mene custodians of sur resoliToes
not the ovmers of iL. Therefore we mist
make hudlcious uis of what we have and
use whal we nesd with sfficiency
When we see our business bringing
happiness, prosperity and smiles to
people acrass india, we believe we are
doing good work.

A. Hello Waszyk
Chatrrman & Managing Dfirector

It by noteworthy that Nestlé developed 2
mifle economry in India in 1981, when
the coumntry was in the early stages of
exploring such models

i

Pro?. Biswas
Eourder and Predident of the Thind World Centre
for Water Mansgement in Mexco



Crood Food, Good Lilke

¥

Nutrition

Neitié bas o orftical role to play for

consumeTs i emerging markets,

Mahutrition results in poor
procuct ity and often inabifity
{0 watle

Micranutrients sLer ot ihom,

e

Witamin A, jodine and fmc ane

essential for growth and .
During the Broast feeding Week, acthities were

ntganisad with the heslthcare commurity to
cieate awareniess sned Efl'rPhIiH.E the
population, mainly in developing R e st feeding,

cowrTtres suffer from

micronuinent deficeEncies.:

development. Despite Yhelr vital

role, wvier one thRird of the wearld's

Over

18,300

students *---...
across -y
Ostates |

have successfully

partictpated and are
benefitting from i

Ll T epe— L

Mestlé Healthy Kids Clohal Programme aims
al creating awareness on nutrition and healtth
among adolescen! studenis from village
schools. The programime ks betng run in
association with six leading unhersities

‘--ll.l.--+-
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Water

Water v a s.arce resouTeE and m

mdia a large section of the

cormrnity doss not have acoess o
clean drinking water. People tike
wiater foe granted, treating 1 as an
eridiEss resatroe. Westld his heer
actively setting up Tlean Drimking
Water Projects 10 ensune Access

of Clean drinking waterand to
tpread gwareness aboyl the

|mpriareE of watier.

il Arirual Beport 2012

Witer Education Frogramme imvillags
schoods educates children on importance
of water and methods to conserve it.

The education s further spread to the
communities through these children.

Setting up thess projects sa
contimuous process, Walet anks
ensure safe and hyglenic water to
wchoo! children and protect them
from water born diseases.

Over 102,000
students

are already
benefitting directly




Good Food, Good Life

Rural
Development

The wall-belng of the commuinity
Trogm wihere we dfav our
sgriculiuml aw matemaiy is
mportant for us By encouraging
ustainable practices we not only

help fimprove the supply and

.1;1.1]1'."1" of taw materials but also The NESCAFE Plan conducts tratning

Improve the standard of iving for coffes farmers, encouraging
of the communities I a responsible farming while reduting
Ststaina e mammer water and enefgy use to ensure
responsible preduction and supply,

Recognising the acthve role that women play in the
comrrumity, Mestlé fndia rans special tratning
programmes forvillage women on good dairy
farmtng practices. This Village Women Dairy
Development tnitlative also spreads awareness
about personal health, hygtens, water conservation

and econamic independence.

Viilage Wornen Dalry
Development Programme

over 56,000

WDTﬂEﬂ from over
1,500 villages

are benefitting



Responsible Operations

& [ Nestlé India has continuous access to the Nestl Group R&D and the technical expertise, as well
as the best practhces available in the global Nestié network. These enable it to consistently stay
afigned with the best and efficent processes. 2.‘:1 l?

Christian Schmid
Directer - Technbcal

Within Mestlé india factories there is continuous effart to improve operational effidandes, minimising
. comsumption of natural resources and reduce water and emissions, while maximising production.

REDUCTION

in Specific Energy Consumpbion

REDUCTION

-xhl

16T 1o 212

im Specific Water Consumption

73.1%

Annual Repart 2012

=

.H.-
§ e
e
-

1267 to 212

REDUCTION
in Specific Waste Water Ceneration

REDUCTION
im Specific Direct CO2 Emissions
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Corporate Information

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Antonio Hello Waszyk - Chaimnan & Managing Director

Shobinder Duggal - Financa & Control
Christian Schmid - Technical

Biplab Baksl - Human Ressurcas

Mayur Bhargava - Chocolates and Confactionary
Luca Fichera - Supply Chain

Shivani Hegde - Foods

Binu Jacob - Nutrition

B. Karinan - Channel Categony Gaography Salas Devaloprmanl

Sanjay Khajuria - Corporate Affairs

Chandan Mukhadl - Consumear Insight

B. Murl - Lagal & Company Secratary

Kumaran Mowuram - Dainy

Chandrasekar Radhakrizhnan - Communications
Ravi Ramchandran - Sales

Rajkamal Sharmna - Exports

Zander Taningco - Nesté Professional

Mill Zur - Bavarages

BANKERS

Axis Bank Limited
Bank of America N.A.

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
Chtibank MLA,

Deutsche Bank AG

HDFC Bank Limited

ICIC] Bank Limiled

JP Morgan Chase Bank M.A
Punjab Mational Bank
Standard Charterad Bank
State Bank of Hydarabad

AUDITORS

A.F.Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants,
8, Scindla House, Kasturba Gandhl Marg
Mew Dedhl 110001

WEBSITE
Wt mbethe. in

INVESTOR EMAIL ID
invastor@in nastia.com

REGISTRAR & TRANSFERAGENTS

W/ Alankil Assignments Limited

2EM21, Jhandewslan Extension, New Dalhi - 110055
Tal, No.: 011-42641234, 23541234

Fant No.: 011-41540084

. Good Food, Good Life

REGISTERED OFFICE
M-5A, Connaught Circus, New Delhi- 110001

HEAD OFFICE

Masihe House
Jacaranda Marg, ‘W Block,
DLF City. Phasa I,
Gurgaon - 122 002 (Haryana)

BRAMNCH OFFICES

Spencer Plaza, 6" Floor 769, Anna Salal,

Chennai - 800 002 (Tamil Madu)

Tower “C*, 12° Floor, DLF IT Park, 08, Major Arterial Road,
Block - AF, New Town, Rajarnat, Kolkata - 700 156
1*Fioor, ICC Chambers, Moar Saki Vihar Telephone
Exchange, Saki Vihar Road, Powal, Mumbal - 400 072
{Maharashira)

M-54, Connaught Circus, Mew Delhi- 110001

FACTORIES

Village Maulinguem (Morth), Bicholim Taluka - 403 504 (Goa)
Ludhlana-Ferazepur Road, Near Kingwah Canal,

Moga - 142 001 (Punjab)

Indusirial Area, Nanjangud - 571 301, District - Mysore
(Kamataka)

P.O. Cherambad| - 843 205, District - Nilgiris (Tamil Nadu)
Unit-1 & Il - Pattl Kalyana, Kiwana Road,

Samalkha - 132 101, District - Panipat (Haryana)

Phot Mo, 284-207, Usged Industrial Anrea,

Ponda - 403 406 (Goa)

Plot Mo. - 1, SBeclor No. - 1A, Integrated Industrial Estate,
SIDCUL, Pantnagar - 263145,

Digirict - Udham Singh Nagar (Uttarakhand)

Industrial Area, Tahlkwal, District - Una - 174 304
{Himachal Pradesh)

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES (Listing Fees paid)

The Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001
{Scrip Code: S00790)

B4™ANMNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Wadnesday, 8" May, 2013 at 10.00AM. at
Alr Forea Auditorum, Subroto Park, New Dedhl- 110010

Sharsholders aftanding the AGM are requasted 1o bring with them the
ATTENDANCE SLIP.
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Directors’ Report-2012

Dizar Members,

Your Direclors are pleased lo presenl their repon

and the statement of accounts for the year ended 31°
Decamber 2012,

The econcmic envircnmeant in 2012 has baen tough and tha
growth in india moderated for one more year. Thene wada
various Intemal and external factors that playad a rola.
The effect of the uncertainty and recessionary trends in the
global economies was compounded by the complesdty in the
domestic environment. Unpredictable weather and fear of
delayed monsoons again triggered a negalive focus on the
oulpul gap and high food inflation parsisted al uncomioriable
levets and remained a concermn. The economic sentimeant
remained subdued as the governmenl policy and measures
wane keenly watched for their impact on fiscal deficil and
inderesl rates, The GOP growth rate remained posilive and
relativaly healthy despite all this bul currency vaolatility, some
concem on the economic growlh model, transitional
imbalances and amerging focus on comuplion issues
softenad the sentiments.

In the immediate term these are aneas of serious concam but
despite thal the general consensus remains oplimistic about
long term growth. There is underdying confidenca that
consumplion will continue 1o sustain on the back of rising
aspirations, urbanisalion, more working professionals,
favorable demographics, low penefration of consumar
producis, premivmisalion trends and the ongoing shift to
branded products.

Your Company anticipates thal tha moderation in the growth
rates will show steady recovery in the short term and  the
growth momentum will revive soon,

in this new reality and a volatie, uncerain emvironment your
Company belleves thal o ensure long term profitable and
sustainable growth, we have fo think ahead and constantly
ask oursaelvas how wea could be Creating Shared Value. Your
Company maintained a forward looking approach to engwra
that it is well prepared lo seize new opportunities and handle
new challenges with speed. Since the succass of your
Company depends on the abllity of the business to keep
undersianding the changing environment and to keep

Annual Report 2012

adapting its responses in a seamless manner it has
continued 1o focus on realigning its initiatives Infernally and
externally. The Company remained focused on the principles
of Mesté Continsous Excellence lo drive efficiencies and
strengthen the basic businesses, and focused on
strengthening its ability to provide Mutriion, Health and
Waliness, through deeper insights, bigger innovations, faster
responses and adequats capacity.

Since balanced muirition is a challenge across the income
pyramid in India. your Company has constantly innovated
and renovated is product portfolio with products thal ane
tasty and provide nutrition, health and wellness, As you are
aware, your Company has a very significant advantage in
this through its abdlity to access Nesthé Group's expartise and
knowladga in science based nutrition and food technology
from its global RAD netwaork. There is concam about the
increasing problems of Efestyle diseases in the country
including diabales, obesity and heart, and your Company
has consistently worked to achleve better insights info the
nutritional aspects and taste profiles of tradiional indian
cuising 10 be able to dovelop products that are useful for
the consumers. With the increasing focus from the
Mestié Group on India and ils imestment in the RED Centre
in India, your Company’s compelitive advantage will become
evan stronger,

Your Direciors are satisfied thal the Company has conducled
self with falmess and integrity and believes that its
oparations and activilies ane creating value for stakeholdars
as well as for the sociely. Your Company has a sirong
leadership team in place and is continuing io develop a
culture of safely, better gender balance and an emnvironmiant
thal empowers everyone with the philosophy of "Dream,
Dare, Defiver.”

Your Directors’ are pleased that during 2012, your Company
has again sustained its healthy and profitable performance
even as it strengthened its business base for sustainable
growth in the long term. Net Sales have increased by a
satisfactory 10.8%. Domestic Sales increased by 11%
mainly on account of net realizations and product mix, and
Export Sales moved up by 7.6% contributed largely by
exparts tothird parties.



Financial Results and Operations
Re m milian)

2012 2011
Mt Sakus B0z 74800
Add: Oher Operafing Revenues an 27
Liess; Cparaling Expanses o7,547 B0,914
Less; Imperment Loss on Fixed Asssts (Nel) &9 104
Leess: Nt provision for conbingencies - 340 287
from Operations
oPETE 15,400 13840
Add: Oher Income 10 2
Less: Finance Costs ## 268 5
Less: Natprovislon for Conlingencies-Others (B2) 1082
L.ass: Tax Expansa ' 4,847 4,264
Mat Profit 10,679 9,615
Ak Proft Brought Forward Baea 3.5
Batance Available lor Appropristion 17240 12960
Less; Intanm Dividends 4 BTG 34m
Less: Final Daddend Propossd . 1,205
\.eas; Corpormis Divelend Tax 758 754
Less: Transfer to Ganesal Resarve 1,068 961
Surpdue earried | (e statorand 10,745 6,569
of Profitand Loss
Ky Ratios
Eamings per Share (Rs.) HO.T8 99,73
Dividend per Share (Rls.) 4B.50 4850
# Profit from operations before Other income, Finance Costs, Other Net
rovain o it apanaes (ndn GIETalicn’ ane Tkxaton,

## Exciudas Rs. 548 milions (pravious yesr 1,100 Milions) lresisd as
Capial Expenditurs

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
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i § Crood Food, Good Laife

Nestia

Met Profil for the year 2012 increased by 11.1% Tha cost of
malerals hor goods sold i parcentage of Nel Sales has
decreased to 45.5% from 48.0% In 2012, mainly due o

FIXED ASBETS

higher soles reallzatcns, product and channal mix, parialy
offest by tha higher mpaut costs, The increase n Financs Cost
w aftar mducing (As. 548 million) oul of ha ocals of

EARNINGS

3
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capital expendiure 6 Ine with apolicable Accourding

MARKET CAPITALISATION

o
E

ER¥Y 55 1i0EN
o e (¥ ok iskinno FL)
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e Wt ot e St i S ey T
YWour Company coninua toemphinsiso CRsn Gonarain and
dolivored strong opemniing cash flow dunng the yens, Shor
T mUrpdlE fundgs ansing oul of sming difererces bolwoan

p— EMPLOYEE BASE
=
. [ L] i iy
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gonarotion and uilization thareof, have bosn prudently
invested ofter wnsuting thal such invealmants satisfy the
Company's criters of sately, liguidity and returns:
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EMARLED CONTRIBUTION TO EXCHEQUER
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The (mpaimment Loss on Fixed Assets of Rs. &9 million
relates to vanoes ltnma of plant and machinery that ave
been prought down fo fheir meoovanbié wake opon
avaluation of future sconarmic banefits from their ose and l&
nad of defermed taxes of Rs. 48 million

The Company suppiemenied e Provision for Coolingencies
wiih hurthor amont ol fs: 258 mislion (naf) for contingancias
rasulling maindy fron jssues, which are undet igation/
dispudn @il other uncedainlies reguinng  managemusn
Judgement. This wis afer the reversel f utiikation of Re. 223
milfion prowision, disa 10 setiloment of cortain dispules for
which provision was no longer required,

Thee cupreni yaor has commenced with uncertainiies and
armbiguily eupnciafly wilh reapect b e overal asamonmenl
which roguires canaful atheeton snd your Decioes o
commitied iosiatain perdormance, Your Company s bopalyl
he govemmeni, theough s policiss. wil confines o
suppart food prooassing sacior which i inlegral lo India's
growin moda.

Your Defectors. arg confidant of the leng-lemm bosiness
prospects of the Company.

EXPORT

During tha yant, Expotf Sales of Re. 4,257 million grew by
7.8%. Thane has been & genarsl slowdown n axports oul of
Indis Bnd your Company has also been kmpacted by the
siuggah ecenamic condiiens in Europe and Nodh Armanca.
Tha rate of growth for Instant Tea produsts waes iewar han
anticipatnd as economic conditions i tha sxpan markes



contifted fo fnlles. Moverdholess, e sales of instart Tes
frE duning e vear dus 1o the foous malntained on the high
value-adeed grades. Your Company confinued io peamete
the xparta of culingry products for the Indian Diaspors and
made breakihnoughs o a few new markets during the year,
W also succesdad n developing new markels for coffes
exporis, and e forthooming year shoald sea batter sales in
badh entegonies.

Tha sEatagy 10 develoD M producty and largal Mew Bxpon
regears would confinue, 8o thal wa have & broas-basod
dirschion of dxpots. in partular, for irtant Teo, we ahali geak
b #ad variaty and valle i ra portiallo in the coming year.

DIVIDENDS

Thin Board of Dimciom decinied thied indarin dhividend lor
2012 of Re. 12.50 per oquity sham (Frco valiue Re. 10/ par
equity ghane), amounting fo Re. 1205 million, which will ba
pakd 0 Merch, 2013, This i In addition io ihe o ilerm
diviends of Rs.18.00 each por equlty sham paid in Augus!
and Daecamber 2012 (amounfing lo Ra 3471 milfion),
The iotal dividend per share in 2012 agoregétes o Re 48 50,
the sama i In lina Wwith he Minanding sirstegy for cagital
expengiture.

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

One of the key diteers Sor the Company is s insight and
okpertiza in Motrition, Health antd Wallness. Goad Food,
Good Litais (ha conmm itmant 1o consamars, (o anhkano [es,
inroughour Be, with good feod and beverages. Your
Company has consklanly advocited balanced and feality
digis snd hiss besn conducting basic mutiben rainted
programmes i patnershp with expeds Your Comgpany
focused on expanding distibulion and strengthening the
groundwork for bigger imnovalions et will add velue o
congumans. Though rapid growth revival B nol expeched,
(rare n gemaral consansus [hal consampinn led  ghowi
oyl Ean Do axpechipg iy Tha sho ., Your Campany slso
andersfands the change thal I teking place I (ke
rmrkal (dece ared tho consumers, and e businesies have
been working mpidly lo redign themsélves o snsure
turt lhalr products snd cominmanication eontinien b ba
rabenranl 85 laadare.

Good Food, Gond Life

=

Thi bumness fof ‘Propaned Disfos and Cooking Alfa”
mamiained ite markel leadarship and growth. The business
coniimod o grive penatrabion with s Popuiidy Posifionod
Products mcuding the small packs of MAGG! Moodies and
MAGGEI Piehhoo souce and confinued to bulla and
Elronginen itn bonds win consumens. The now Man MAGG)
2 Minita medn Krunhiyan acvertaing campsgn 1fat hes the
icohic stalaaman Amftabh Bathohan ag |he sloryielles of
conaumal  stofles further  sbengthenad the emolional
cormed! thal MAGG! aiready has with consumens. Magg
Mpodias oontinued o drees growth of he nalanl Moodiss
mifegery, offanng the consumar Tesds Bl Health Bhi®
During ihe year, your Company further consolidated iis
poalion &s e misrol leader in savces and coptinwsd. o
bl e business for MAGGT Masala-as-Magic farfified
seasaning mix wilh el thoughd ot Initlalives and pew pach
mmaummmmmhmhm
A nww range of MAGG] Haaithy Souss was folsd out
Your Company befievas thet one of tha key reasons why
consumplion of packagod soups has nol bean growing in
inoia W pecauss the prooucts Avallesse 10 now have nof
guighted comsumarns. Your Company worked closaly with
Meste RAD | Snangnal and using MNesté's new and
proprislary “granulation basad lechnology’ ave devolopod
duSghttul soups thit rdabn the freshhess of the vagetahies
g deliver & muli-semsonial experiance. Thass goups
eoniain frash vepotable puroos and dadver tha frosh lasie
and aroma of homa-made soupe For the ficsl Uma, tha
oongianas has o product that defights Mer from the mormeang
she pachs up he pack, staring with the rustle of the granules,
tha signt of colowrfl el vagetalibes, tha soms of B
vegeiabis purees, and the tante of real soup, all of which add
by thae el amermenl. Tha range contaies six dadicious
popllar varelies wnd lor the first tima ever, this iechnology
allows wn ko miske 8 dolidious Sginech soup which ™
paplinr in idan homes. Your Company @ emongst the
firsl in e Nestid world (o adopt this unlque technalogy for
making SoupPE.
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The consistent hard work and commitment, consumer
angagameant and innovation has continued 1o add value to
consumers and provide the growth momentum. While thea
Meri MAGGI facebook page by your Company has crossed
1 million fans and is teday the largest MAGGI facebook page
in the wordd, MAGGI continues 1o be ratad as amongst the
Top 10 MOST TRUSTED BRANDS and has been ranked
viery high amongst the "Buzziest Brands'in India.

The ‘Chocolate and Confectionary” business continued o
grow steaddy and there has been consisten! focus on
developing insighis and understanding of emerging
consumer neads., YWhila sweel snacking i an infrinsic part of
traditional consumption habits there is a growing awareness
of nutritional balance and preference for products thal can
make this axperdence more beneficial. Over the years your
Company is established as the leader in the chocolaty wafer
segment for Tighter ealing” with NESTLE KITKAT and
NESTLE MUNCH and "Whites' with NESTLE MILKYBAR.
With the growing awareness aboul the banefils of dark
chocolales your Company had earier launched NESTLE
Dark Chocolate. During the curment year MESTLE KITKAT
Dark Crigp waler fingers coverad with Plain Chocolate was
also launched and Is doing well in the market. With the
changing lifestyles of consumers across the coundry, the
business fooused on devaloping more innovative products
and enhancing capacity to prapars for the emarging demand.
While NESTLE KITKAT was renovated and is now avaitable
in & very exciting new packaging, MUNCH ROLLZ Wafer
Tuba filled with Toffes was launched from the naw plant in
Himachal Pradesh.

NESTLE POLO which continues to be iconic and defines the
irreverant ‘youth defining” mint with the hole strengthened its
parinership with Wendell Rodricks lo create POLO Fashion
and cuas strong asparalion for the youth while providing tha
unigue POLO ‘rafrashment’.

During the year, ‘Coffee and Beverages continued to define
the coffes drinking markel in Morth, Easl and Wast of India
whera il has significant markel share and maintained
leadershig in the instant coffee business. As the leader, your
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Company understands the need to provide the right product
axparanca to tha right consumars and continuad to
accelerate s work on developing stronger consumer
insighis and rolling oul relevant products and initiatives. The
portfolio was strangthenad wilh the re-launch of NESCAFE
Classic in @ unéque jar of conlempoarany shapa and siatuna,
ramped up distibution for NESCAFE GOLD which is the
promium freeze dried coffes, and launch of SUNRISE Strong
which is a sironger coffee-chicory blend specifically tailor
made for the consumers in Andhra Pradesh. NESCAFE
Cappuccing which has a taste advantage over similar
competitive products continued o be liked by the younger
generation and increased market share, NESTEA also
increased s presence and markel share and Is fast
devaloping inko a strong  pillar for the beverage business of
your Company. Your Direcltors are pleasad lhal the
advarlising communication for tha businass is baing receaived
wall by thae consumers and also that youwr Company's
NESCAFE Facebook page is the most popular NESCAFE
page in the workd with over 2.2 million fans.

The 'Milk Products and Nutrition® business faced a
challenging yvear but delivered a satisfactory performance. In
ling with the vision to nuriure a healthier, kappier ganaration,
your Company onganized several educational inftiatives lo
suppor breast feeding. During the year, youwr Company
markad ils entry inio the matamal nulrilion category through
the launch of NESTLE BABY & ME, a maternal nulrition
supplement for pregnant women and breastfeeding mothers,
Your Company also launched CERELAC Shishu Aahar,
a ranga of Indianised infant cersals providing Indian
tastes while delivering age appropriate nutrition.
LACTOGEN and CERELAC were rencvated with nutritional
improvements in line with the |atest science, Healthcare
nufrition aligned its new manufaciuring solulion, re-launched
the improved product portfolio and added PEPTAMEN and
NUTREMN Juniar.

The portfolio of dairy products and UHT Milk continuwed o
consolidate and put in place further Initiatives to anhanca the
consumers' appreciation of its premium quality, Late in 2011,



youf Company hed laohched Nestid A+ Milk and Meutd
A Dbl to ancourngs cormupmes to maks miormmmd choloes
‘whan salaciing milk or dabl.  During the yenr, aciivities wam
sustainnd lo educats consomers on the steps taken o
implement and track the high qualty standards and good
procticed aooed the viloe chain of these prodects on the
premiza ‘Good mekes Good'. Your Comparny has
cangistimtly lavaragad the strengih of NESTLE MILKMAID
which 1 ammongs thir successlul and fas! moving brands ia
Indfia hor docades, Your Company lsunched MILKMAID
CREATIONS developed by expard chels as @ mnge of
powdernd dossarl mixes espocislly for ihe conlempomry
conmvenience-seaking consumears, Thay have oean
davetoped on fha ingight thal contemporary familiea do not
hevs Bt prepars etsborate dosears bul sdll wanl Tha
quadly and fase of traofonal oebcaces

‘Westhd Profassianal’ i oul-0f-homi ssgrmant. oontinund
| rriggtntnin cvedoll Inagurship in the Colles vending schdines
busiress dednile incrensed compefiive intensity. Based on
Ingights astabiisted through comprehnmiive msssrch, plana
nré ehderany 1o sunch pow sokilions and recipes calaring
bath lo the mansiresm and premium ssgmenl. Piod e
Inuneh of bais gravy products specially mmant for chnfs and
cooks yislded positive resulls and are now baing sxpandsd,
A wider mnpe of refsvant culinary products specifically
desighed for the holel/mslauranbicalaning intustry ane
propoasd ko be bunched during Ihe curem Vear, basod on
the developrment efforts during the year, Your Company's
focues woukd oonliniss 1o formaln as e oul-ol-home industny's
radirad food A everage solulions pasnar,

SALES

Your Company has consestanily made afors to mnprove the
avaitebdity of its products wharevelt and whonoavar 1he
cansumarn may wanl # and has continusd 0 puild 8 deapst
and wide: daifbution metwork. Dunng The year, | adted
anothar 500,000 puliets sccelorating from S00,000
ncramental outials n (he presows yoar, Workeng with ils long
e digtribution pannars 1 inveraged s efficrnt angd broad
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baned natwok 1o scils op the Infmtrutiens necessary for
growdh,  Whils acoslaniting he expansion of e dmakriblion
nitwark, yolr Company #lee incressdd fha focus on
anfancing ihe capubiiiias, improving procassss and
oparafions and cutting oul waste. Nesilé Candinuous

in oroher o furher enhihca productiity in sales operalions,
your Company had esdier imimied a8 drve o equip fte
digtributons with agvanced sales astomalion. The Incregsed
Wangparency Into secondary sales cala and mproved
chanrmal imsights &t the granular fevel (s nelping dimect he
resurces and Wpuis more efficiendly, whie als) increasing
wigihiity angd merchandismg mpest Your Company also
sirengfhensd pannerships with key customens In crganted
wrade by ansunng hgh Eesls of consumer senioe, fater
spoed o sholl and impactful shopper engagamant,

TECHNOLOGY, QUALITY
AND SAFETY

During the year, your Company compiefod ha capacity
aexpansion plans Inilated in 2010, commissioning the new
Faclony It Tefillwal, Himachel Pradash, a oew unll n
Samaikha Factory, Hangana and miw plant in Ponda Faciory,
Goa. In addibon 4 néw line was commissioned i Moga
Feotory for dessert mixes as well 2= 8 naw slam lor
pranuisiod socps in Bicholim Foctory. All of these now
ingtdlladbons have bean complsted with sisle of tha an
technology received from Nestlé Group. Switrodand undar
the Genoral Licence Agreement and aupport your
Company’s patrmanont sntaavours for excollenca in quality
und high performances.

AN thé factonias of your Company' successiuilly passed (he
m-otrification againg food safety and qually management
as wisl a3 for safely and anvirenment; by & highly reputed
Bl paty ngeency

Al Ihe factones had ambraced Meaté Conflinuous
Excefiunca [as: year to fusthsr impesws inafl areas, basad on
LEAN mmdsel for war on wasle and TotE Performance
Management corcopts. Your Company Denal@ied from He
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dapluyrrant of Neslid Cortinuous Excallence programme
genanility Mnprovemants, defivating cosl savings from
opombons, reducing wilets sml impreing quality. Nosdll
Coniirumus Exmallencs will tontliive o b= importanl o the
operabons K ensure eonsurrat st amd preferance whilal
AARANGCING Competiliverats.

Yoor Company & commillad 19 providing congumers wilh
high guaity procucts ardd |s continuously improving Mem 1o
grauns-a 8040 teate preferencs wilh nuinbonnl sdvamiess,
Thess products louch the (ves ol akbs of consumers
dvrydayy snd sustained defiary on e commemsnl fuEs
placagd your Company ardd it prooucts amongst e most
frustod, Agarl from e lect el your Company folloes
ginngant quekly Bssurance normi, has stele-ok-ihe-art
technoiogy and high degres of aulomaton, your Company
has & compalilive sdvaniages m he G0{Iy 10 develop Superio
products: |t has conbnuous poosss jo tho Neshd Group
resaurch & dovelopmont and iha fechnical axperiise, #2 wel
R U BEa] prachicns siinbie @ I0e ghobal Nesthh nolwork,
Thesa onabia & o consistantly slay algned willh tha best and
efficiem processes.

SAFETY

Your Campany had eadar intiated acivities to strengthen
the safely cultuse and had launched B safsty sngngamsi)
programimis “Sale by Cholcs’ [n panneship wih DuPons.
Dhring ihe year, the progremn was exdended io all operating
fatinsias and enahled e organizetion (o fake quanium laags
iyt of improvesvent in satoly cutume. Despite the byl
that during 2012 mors than 20 milllon man-hous s
engaged e major consliuclon wors ol the faciones ol
Pondu, Nanangud, Samalicha and the consinacion of new
Factory af Tahliwil the Safe by Chbice’ programma
confributed o a goad culcome on tha Sately fronl,

Your Company boleves Thot ealety practices ane smpartant in
evary acivity, function and localion whess ouramployess are
angagas, To funnher sinenginen fe comimitmant o
Company pul up dedicated safely. structure for all sales
brunchos as woll. Safe drvang has emaiged as the mam
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focum. araa fof fha Nlald lorca and ha "B-SAFE programme
wibdl lsunched scross ol sites and offioes. Your Company W
commiiihad 1o equip tha feld force with & defatshn driver
itk mied e thoir pafety whills onroed

NESTLE RAD CENTRE IN INDIA,

Tr 2010, Marsthte S8, Saitzariang Rod sgread 1o iho roguss! of
your Company 1o 30l up an RED Canlre in India. The RAD
Conlre was establishod undir & separnis wholly cwned
subeidiary Mestié R&D Canire India Private: Limited. In
November 2012, Neallh SA., snnounced Ha opening of thiv
RED Canvirwin bndin, M s bullt closa ta the Haend Offics of your
Compary and will ba addifionsl compaetitive advantage for
your Company. in the fulura and will aisa Felp b strangihen
and acoalernatn product inndvation and ranovation,

Meutls RAD Cantre i boddls will work fowarthl devalssing
fordied produchl and Bopularty Poslionmd Prosucts. (PPP)
tratl will seok o address mitritionst daficlencias espachally
Indtia mind &le0 acrogs it workd. PPP am developed 1o meed
it specific needs of consumarns &1 war incomn levals oy
offanng tham high-quahity, mutribonafy gnnanced products al
mifordebee pricea. Nesdd nes Bn exignave giobal RED
natwork nng exporfise in scance besed nutriion and indian
RAD Contra will further help scoslorano megional Aoaptabon
of global technoiopes.

ENVIRONMENT

Your Company has conalstently smphasized the need for
sisitainabls uss ol maturnl ond non-rermwisble fescwntoes
Il @rsures Tt o processes falicw (he Nesiié Eovironnmend
Managamant Syster, uss siale-of-Bw-ail eehnmlogy snd
squgmant, and comply with gavernmenl policies is well an
envvinonmantsl wes and regudalions. New inBlalives as
coniinrly baing discussed and bnpiamanted within th
tactorms 5 reducs wasle and amssion, end conssiand
offorts nre Baing mada i cofmiandy MemBses awararmes
EEOU 1 Risodd 10 Samtam i sfvircnment

iz o matis: of prida hat owver th past 15 years ihess sifors
have snabied Ua o schiove vary high offlcencies i the use



al nafural snd mon-fenewabls fescuross. Even i iha
productien vahimes avi bean incressing, your Company
s rechiced] the raage par tonne of production by as much
s B5% for aresngy, TOMN lor emission of green-Houie gascs
and T35 for consurmplion of vealer,

CAPACITY AND FUNDING

Your Company s been galivarng steadly parformante over
ina pasi yorrs ang confinues 13 lesderehip sScross
businesses. Though fha growin mie of the economy has
moderated, your Compamy Dafiewes that thors will ba staady
recovary. Thn Food Prodesaing Secior can pliy & significan
ot in food securfty aa well s in creating amiloymeant and
your Dinectors am hopefu inat 16 Gowarnmmmnt wel vonilinm
to suppon £ Your Company s o think stiead 1o snaure long
lemn profdubin wnd sustainabie growth and be preparsd 1o
catier fo the ammrging dermsnd with speed

[ruring the past s years, yoor Company has nvesiad cioss
B Ra: 38000 milon responsbly and sustanatdy, 1o sxpand
(he exieting mamsfactunng faclities a1 Bicholim, Moga,
Mangngud and Ponoe, commissionmg of 8 pew wunil gt
Samafiing, & Groonfindd fackity ar Takiwal and @ rew plan for
MAGE! produts al Nanyengud as wetl as (g sirengihen fhe
distrbution foolprint. Thie includes substartial invesirments
of arcemd Rs. 17000 million in 2011 and acwnd Rs. 70000
million in 201 2 nespectivety,

Your Company has been funding Ihls accelerated cagital
aexpandilure wilh & judicious méx of Interral Bccruals’ and
“dolil; Duning the year, US Doliar (USD) 58 milllons weto
drawn down from Mostid SA for 5 yaars ender ths External
Commaercial Borowing approval from Resenve Bank of India.
The tols amaunt culstanding as a0 31,12 2072 was USD 182
malfion (Re. 10500 mifion). Your Company & masnusining
viry swicl inangial deciplineg ang dunng Me yoasr hag repesd
all itz short ferm ipans,

SUPPLY CHAIN

Wihile infrastruclure improving siowly end Goods and
Sarvicas Tax nol vl implemantsd, your Company corlinues
bo oparad (n & comples aupply chain comfguraiion.

=
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Thiz Supply Chain oporation of your Company corlinued o
procuts quotity materials &l competitive prices. Some
Koy projocts to sourco mitk and o localica ik danvaies
heva been complealed suocesshully and am dalivenng
SUSLmINODe savings.

Your Company has entnred Inlo an sgresmant for acquirng
26% minority siake in indocon Agm and Alled Acthvifles
Privale Limiled, engoged = mik colleclion business in
Waetem (ndla. This business inveshmsant wil conlrbute o
sustminee souncing and creating nhared walie with tarmemn
RrEGagedin mik

The replemshment ard éeliveny of produces 1o e customans
have boan further improved. Duriog tha year, your Company
hes Incrased the sanicn levels achisying top ler slislus with
key secount cuslomers. Tha nemberof Stock Keeping Undls
(SHUs) was reducad by over 20%. bringing down compbasity
ocosts across ihe value chain. lmpoved plannimg process
canrbuted to further mduction of sfock g,

Duning the year. Nestié Contmuous Exceliance (MCEL
covering ol supply chaln and procurumaent processas,
achisved imporiant milestones. The Goal Allgnmani
inimtives and LEAN in Ponda Faciory, dolivared
iFrprovertents in productivity and pocple engagemant. Over
300 employvess ore now running 40 oparational feviews
terpeting wasie elimination with problem solving loals

Tha mpdemizaticn of wemehousing and remepor remain &
kay prionty for your Comgery and #ll the new Disbribabon
Centtas harves modam infrasiructun. Your Cormpany hiss ulss
stortad implemaniing warshouns marmgamenl sy
(WS} wiln RF techmilogy o increasa speed, furlher
oy Socurnoy and prodeclivity [Eveds

The Responsibie Scurcing progrum, indlated in 2010, haa
besan extanded to mand vandars with conlinuous suppart and
educalion. Your Company launched the NESCAFE PLAN In
work wilh the coffes lermars, axperts and RAD Centres and o
traceabilly indllalive o s
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HUMAN RESOURCES
AND TRADE RELATIONS

Your Company elrongly balieves that Peopie are fis core
compelitiva advaniage. Accardingly your Company look
mlummullumwmmmhmt
{atenl, crémting & bhigh performance culture, -enauring
developmenl conversalions, providing leaming and
dovalapmant apoariunidies. and recognitng porformance on
anongoing basis. Your Company launched & comprabanshe
Leadership Dovelopment Framawork with all necessary
tocls and proceases. thus enauring thot tha depth, guality
ond divergity of the talont pool = consisbently incroased.
Your Campery strangly bislivns in fodinring a culturn of tnist
and sl especd in Al s smpkives rekilions endégvors,
Your Company has snsurad. thal theme is sustalned
cammunicalion and. engagemeni with workloroe through
wirious ioruma. These efforls have bean vary wll recalved
Ly snployess and hawe hslped infostering high angagemmn
and soured induwirial elations

Your Companny uphoids the stong cullure which 8 sxpict in
the ‘MNeslé Management srd Leadership Principles’ and
Mesilé Comporais Busness Principles ang Mestid india Code
of Business Conduct’. Accorangly, your Company has puta
lot of wmphass i ensurng thal a8l employess have B
comman understanding of he Company prnoples and
valups and fhal the same nieds lo ba sohered and complied
wilth ire B our Bumineess operations.

SWOTANALYSIS FOR THE COMPANY

Strangths

«  BangNESTLE

«  General Licance Agresmanl which gives Bocess 1o he
MNastié Group's proprielaty lechnologyl brands,
wxpartise and tha exlunsive centralised Rosesrch and
Devalopmant laolitios

= High wualiy nned sabe food products ot affordable prioes,
it bl |n Nestid

*  Undemtanding ol Nulriion, Health and Waliness

Annual Report 2012

= Streng and well fifferanimted brancs with maded shars
leadarshig

= Preduct innsiiton ahd rengvation, based on Sonsumar
neights.

= WWall dvarsifiad prodisct parfolio aores calagonas and
Incorms slrmls

+  Efficiont supply chain nnd sabos automation.

*  [Hstrbation strochure thal sfows wide reach and
ConETEEE o Il EErpel markeia

= Gapableond engaged human resources.

=  Parficipation in Global Business Excelance (GLOBE]

= Btrang financial pogition,

«  Manutucturing capaciied [ plice 1o coter o ameging
gemend wilh speed

Waakness

+  Complex supply chain configuration,

*  Cascading indirect Laxes.

»  Prica pomt portfolio.

Threat

& Prico wolatiily of kivy row, packaging matarials md el

= Availabity of agro based commodities

= Food infiation.

= While-colaf takenl

= lobal and ot uncartainty In e soonomes
srvironmant

Opparunities

+  Powntial lor axpandlon in smaller wns and othar
SHOgrANHES

*  |norarsing camand for pramsim products.

«  introduction of GST o simpilfy the distrbution network.

*  Davwlopmen of '‘Oul-cf-Home' segment and Healih
Cart Mutrbon

= Leversge Noalld Technology 10 develop more

prodactks (hot provice Nalrdion, Fealh and Welnoss ol
iflomiabie pricas.



WORKING WITH COMMUNITIES AND
BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

Hesihd's opprosch 1o busiaesd 3 Cealing Sharsd | Vakus,
Whila creating value lor stakehalders busingss must also
craito valua for the sociely through ie products, oporalion
and socwl responaiding in ndie the Company calz A
Saamyhipen as Bt i moms commadily sccapled i the ndian
oo, A soparats Bismnese Rasponelbilily Report s
Alached as Annecure=3, detsiling the vnrcus indlatives o
the Company ghd phgned bo the Nalons Yolyntary
Gufidelimes on tha Socisl, Environmantal and Economic
reshongihilifies of Businass Issusd by Minlslry ol Corposate
Affars ard with ihe requirements of Cleuse 55 of the Lisling
Agresmeniwith ing 3ok Exchange.

CONTRIBUTION TO EXCHEQUER

Your Compamy has been g leading texpayar of the counlry
pnd over th years has been enabiing significant contibaibion
to varous fnces, During the yaar 2012, The Company Through
its bumnags, anabled o collechions 8t Contral and Stabs
linvm| of clommis o Fes 0 billian, m aggrogirts.

AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS

Your Company confinuas 1o 0o a highly irusted company for
Mo qually of 18 products, innovation and monovalicn of
products [hat am bassd on blrong consoemer inelghls and
abllky 1o engaga with consuman acroas (i countny. Durng
e yaar your Company nessinid many honours which reflnd
[ harrhwiirk and nustainabEity of 5 soccesaful siralegies.
Soma of Iha Key awards and recognitions:

« Medfi Inda wak emed Butinese Standand's Star MNC
of ihe yssr, The announcement wiots “The awardg that
ek the isaal o 16 decida was tha Sar MNC of iha
year and evaryone agreed Iha best part of Nesild was it
ahily 10 jocalien brands - MAGGE], foraxampla.

¥ Mr Shabinder Duggal, Cireotor - Finanee & Control of
[ Company, vwas recoghized 55 Bes| CFO of an MNC
Intw Business Today - YES Bankawards for 20102,

»  Forthe second year [n g row MAGGI In 2012 was mited
amangsl India's Top 10 "Mosl busted Brande' by
Ecomamde Tenes Brand Equily,

=
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= i e sarmusl 1ICWR stody on Indin's most valuslde
tmands, MAGGH was ranioed Mot amongst FMECG Food
Products, and a soparalé mnking by Nistsen for Social
Mt Brnnd Equily rnnked MAG G as No. 1 Frod Brand

* MAGGI Masala-se-Magic was recognised as one of
fhe ‘Moat trumted Brands of 2012 n the Resdar's
Digest awarrds.

* The communicalion ectivilies for tha vardious brands
himer bean fecognizad ot excollences inckiding some of
fha work They are Gomg i diglal manetng NESCAFE
SUNRISE receveq @ bronze ail the EFFIES. NESCAFE
Wnow Your Neighbours' Facebook page has become
the langes: Facabook paga for NESCAFE in e MNestih
waflt with over 2 miflion fang, e NESCAFE Commercial
The Moming Band' recstved dver 1 milllon varws on
Yioli Tusbwe wilhin days of redense.

= Thix naw KITKAT Babies TVC crossed 3.5 millon public
views on Youw Tube, making i fhe mos! highly viewed
Inschan FRACG commaral eo tar Nesti KITKAT also has
owar | million fane on ds Facebook page Break Bonta
Hal' and is now fho langest KITHAT paga in the warld,
Jumt 33 MILKMAID has over § milion fane on Facabook
and i the largesd.

r KITRAT UK rangs gift packs was nporournd for
Excellonce n Packaging Design gl (ne INCHASTAR
ANWARDS 2012

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

Pursunant o Saction 21T[2AA) of the Companiss Act, 1958,

H Dhriaetors canfim fHal

= jmine preparabon of INe anmial ecoowts, e applicana
AOmoUNGNg siandaros have pean foliowed and no
mabanal depariures have bean made from the same,;
thay have solected such accounting padicias and spplied
iham corsigienty and made judgments and salimalos
that are resscnatile and prudont 50 a5 1o give 8 free and
fair wiow of therstate of affuire of (he Company ol tha ond
of tha financal yearand of e profits for tat panod,
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= they howe baken proper and sufficiend care for Ihe
malntgnancs of adequale sccouniing records In
acoordance with [ proviwions of tha Compankes Adt,
1855 for safaguarcing o osssls of ihe Comgany ond for
prevnting and Setecting frawd and odhe bregulslies:

= fhay Nove propamed T aonual pocognts on B going
concem basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

in compilanan with ihe reguiremanis of Claise 48 of the
Lisfing Agresment with the Stock Exchangs, a sepambe
mpor on Corporate Governanoa along with Auditora
canificaty o s complisnce ls atlached as Annesuna-1 o
this Report.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statemanty In this Report, pariculary those which minis o
Manapgamadl Discussdon and Analyils @ axpdainad in e
Compomnis Gowmanes Ropnrl, describing 1he Compamns
ohjooiiven, projections, ealmates and oxpociatons may
eonaliute "toreand locking atidements” within tw mepning of
upplicails bwa and rogulalicns. Acilial resulls maght differ
materaly from those either expressed or lmplied in the
aliiomiang deperding on s crousmatnness

DIRECTORS

Dr. Rakesh Mohan mlinquished ks mambership of the Board
of Dérectors of ihe Company wih affect from 317 Octobar,
2012 W s & maltsr of greal pnde for your Company that
Or. Rahagh Mohar his been appointed a3 an Execullve
Dirscior of i Inlermations) Monetary Fund, with afect from
1 Nowembar, 2012 Thie Directoen wish o place on record
thaslr apgreciition for the comirbubions made by D Moten
ghrinigg him b,

Mr. Cnnstian Schmic, Wholg-iima Directior easgnatsd gs
‘Dimector- Technicar”, shall be stepping down afler 31° March,
2013, Ha shall ba taking up & now assigrment with snother
Mot affileie. The Mreciors whini 10 place an moard e
apprecition for (he contribulions mada by Mr. Schmd dunng
Fibs tariimm
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Ini {mrmes of 1he Asticles of Associalion of he Comparny, your
dirgctors appaintad Mt Anutides Protonotarios s an
acdiiiorm! Dirscior of the Company with sffecl from 17 Agl,
2013, Subjest by approvala, My Protinetanos hus alsc been
appoiniad g% Whols-jmeé Duspier, designaled a5 Timcisr-
Technica!®, Mr Prolonoiaros has e qualificafions and
EEHNARNGE, MECRLERRY 16 lakn over [he poailion of Diractor -
Tachnionl He 8 cutrently hoading e RAD Tuncton of the
Bevernges Simategic Businmss Uni of Nestec Limited,
Switzartand which ha astshisted Mr. Prolonolancs hofiu
office (il the Annusl Genarnl Meating and is abgitils for -
appoinimanl. Mot has boan roceivad from a mambos
mignifying his intention to proposs Mr. Prolonotanos as a
Director. Duialls of hia proposal are mentioned n the
Explanatory Statemani under saclion 173{2) of the
Companies Act, 1058 coverad undar ilem no. 5 & 8 of the
Motice of the 54° Annual Ganers! Meeting.

i accordanom withh Amsis 119 0f tha Articias of Associsfion,
Dr, (Mrs} Swatl A Pamrmal retres by rotabon and being
mmwrumm

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Thie Statutory Auditors of the Company, M. A. F. Ferguson &
Co,, Chanorod Acoountants, Mew Daih, refir in scoeroanon
with the provisions of the Companies Acl, 1658 and
gre sigible lor re-appoinimant. M. A. F. Femguson & Co,
Chartered Accountants, Naw Delii heve soughl tha
re-nppointmeént and have confirmed thatl their
re-appoinirmmnd IF mede ahall e within the imts of Secton
22411) [B) of the Companias Ad, 1865 Tha Audd Cammithes
and (hie Board of Dimeckon mcommmnos b fé-appainimemi
of M A, F, Farguson & Ca , Chartéred Accountatits, as iha
Awditors of the Cormpasty

COSTAUDITORS

Complying with the provisions of Sechion 2338 of the
Companies Act, 1858 eng the MCA Gooom| Glrcuber
o 1502011 daded Agn| 17, 2011, (a8 aemendnd vide Ganem
Circular No. 382012 oateg 6" November, 2012) sibjec: o
tha approval of Tha Cantral Gavernmanl, Tne Augi



Commitiee has recormmended and the Board of Directors
had appointed M/s. Ramanath lyer and Co., Cost
Accountants, New Dedhi (Regisiration No. 00018) baing
aligible and having sought re-appointmant, as Cost Auditors
of the Company to canry out the cost audit of all the products
manufactured by the Company for the year endlng
December 2013,

INFORMATION REGARDING
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY ETC.
AND EMPLOYEES

Information required under Saclion 217(1) (e) of the
Companias Act, 1956 (herainafter refarred 1o as ‘tha Act’)
raad with Hula 2 of the Companias (Disclosure of Particulars
in the Report of Board of Directors) Rubes, 1988 is given in the
Anmoourg - 2 forming part of this Reporl. Information as per
Section 217(2A) of the Act, read with the Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975, as amendad from
time to time, forms part of this Repor. However, as per the
provisions of Section 218(1) (b) () of the Act, the Report and
Accounts ane baing sant 1o all the mambers axcluding tha
slalement containing the particulars of employees to be
provided under Section 217(2A) of thi Act. Any mamber
interasied in oblaining such paniculars may inspect the same
at the Registered Office of the Company or wrile 1o the
Company Secretary fora copy.

Date: 20° February, 2013
Place: Gurgaon

. Good Food, Good Life

TRADE RELATIONS

The Company maintained healthy, cordial and harmonplous
industrial relations at all levels. Daapita savara competition,
the enthusiasm and unstinting efforts of the employeas have
anabled the Company to remain al the forefront of tha
Industry.

Your Company conlinued to receive co-operation and
unstinted supporl from the distdbulors, retallers, stockisis,
suppliers and others associalad with the Company as ils
trading partnars. The Direclors wish lo placa on record thair
appreciation for the same and your Company will continue in
its endeavour 1o build and nunlune strong links wilh trade,
based on mutuality, respect and co-operation with each other
and consistent with consumiar inlarest.

APPRECIATION

Your Company has baen able to operale afficiently bacause
of the cullure of professionalism, crealivity, integrity and
continucus improvement in all functions and areas as well as
tha aficient ulfization of the Company's resources for
sustainable and profitable growth,

The Direclors wish hereby to place on record their
appreciation of the efficient and loyal sarvices rendered by
each and every employes, without whose whole-hearted
efforts, the overall very satisfactory parformance would not
have baen possible,

Your Direclors look forward o tha fulune with confidencs.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Antonio Helia Waszyk

Anmual Report 2012




Addendum to

the Directors' Report - 2012

REVIEW OF THE GENERAL LICENCE
AGREEMENT

Ganeral Licence Agrosmants with Nesiié Group (herainafioer
‘the GLAT), allows your Company access 1o Mestké Group's
intelleciual property righls inciuding global porticio of
brands, proprislary lechnology including numercus palents,
extenshve research and development capablities and
expertise on best practices, The GLA Includes accass o
large number of brands such as MNESTLE, MAGGI and
NESCAFE and technologies developed by the global
network of 32 Research & Development Centres, including
thve one recently inaugurated al Manesar, Haryana which has
been covered separalely in this report. Your Company's
capacity investiments of around Rs, 30 billion in the last
3 years have benafitted from this.

Mesthd Group had requested two years ago for a review of the
two decades old royalty rates and subseguenily
substantiated the same by a study conducled by McKinsey
& Co. This study was subjected o a faimess review by two
Indian firms ie. Mis Bansi §. Mehta & Co. and KPMG
(Registerad) who independently used different valuation
mathods and recommanded rangss of royally rales which
were similar o that of McKinsey & Co.

Date: 22™ March, 2013
Place: Gurgaon

Annual Report 2012

The GLA, the proposal from Mestlé Group and tha studies by
the independent firms wane examined by the Corporate
Govarmancs Commithes.

The Board of Direclors on 22% March, 2013, with only
Independent Directors voling and the Execulive Directors
recusing, approved a slaggered increase in the royally rale
& 0.20% per annum over the next 5 years effective
1" January, 2014, Under the GLA, Royalty is paid on third
party sales and is net of tax. Your Company negolialed
increase in royalty from 3.5% t© 4.5 % of sales in & staggened
manner by making an increase of 0.20% per annum over the
next five years effective 1% January, 2014. The rovalty rateon
xports will also be aligned to 4.5% of sales.

Tha Independant Direclors apprecialed the high emphasis
on corporale govemance keeping in view the elaborate
raview process, Ms Amarchand and Mangaldas and
Suresh A, Shroff & Co., alaw firm advised on the govemance
procass during the review,

The access under the GLA o the capabilities of MNesté
Group, world's leading Mutdtion, Health and Wellness
Company having the largest Food and Nutrition RE&D
network globally, will enable your Company to continue to
daliver long lerm sustainable profitable growth and Create
Shared Valuea for sociaty and tha sharehaldars.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Antonio Halio Waszyk
Chalrman
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AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS
OF NESTLE INDIA LIMITED

1.

We have audited the attached Balance
Sheet of NESTLE INDIA LIMITED (‘the
Company”) as at 31% December, 2012,
the Statement of Profit and Loss and the
Cash Flow Statement of the Company
for the year ended on that date, both
annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s  Management.  Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance
with the auditing standards generally
accepted in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatements. An
auditincludes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and the
significant estimates made by the
Management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2003 (CAROQ) issued by
the Central Government in terms of
Section 227(4A) of the Companies Act,
1956, we enclose in the Annexure a
statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure
referred to in paragraph 3 above, we

report as follows:

(a) we have obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our
audit;

—_
(=3
-

in our opinion, proper books of
account as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of
those books;

(c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of
Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of
account;

in our opinion, the Balance Sheet,
the Statement of Profit and Loss and
the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this report are in compliance with
the Accounting Standards referred to
in Section 211(3C) of the Companies
Act, 1956;

in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the
explanations given to us, the said
accounts give the information
required by the Companies Act, 1956
in the manner so required and give
atrue and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

(i) inthe case of the Balance Sheet,
of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 December,
2012

(ii) in the case of the Statement of
Profit and Loss, of the profit of the
Company for the year ended on
that date and

(iiiyin the case of the Cash Flow
Statement, of the cash flows of
the Company for the year ended
on that date.

—_
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5. On the basis of the written

representations received from the
Directors as on 31 December, 2012 and
taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the Directors is
disqualified as on 315 December, 2012
from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 274(1) (g) of the
Companies Act, 1956.

For A.F. FERGUSON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 112066W)

(Jaideep Bhargava)
Partner
(Membership No. 90295)

NEW DELHI, 20 February, 2013
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NESTLE INDIA LIMITED

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph (3) of our report of
even date)

() Inrespect of its fixed assets:

(@) The Company has maintained
proper records showing full
particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of the fixed
assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically
verified during the year by the
Management in accordance with a
regular programme of verification
which, in our opinion, provides for
physical verification of all the fixed
assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and
explanations given to us, no
material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) The fixed assets disposed off
during the year, in our opinion, do
not constitute a substantial part of
the fixed assets of the Company
and such disposal has, in our
opinion, not affected the going
concern status of the Company.

(i) Inrespect of its inventory:

(a) As explained to us, the inventories
were physically verified during the
year by the Management at
reasonable intervals.

(b) In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given
to us, the procedures of physical
verification of inventories followed
by the Management were
reasonable and adequate in
relation to the size of the Company
and the nature of its business.

(c) Inour opinion and according to the
information and explanations given
to us, the Company has maintained
proper records of its inventories
and no material discrepancies were
noticed on physical verification.

(i) The Company has neither granted nor
taken any loans, secured or unsecured,

40

(v)

(vil)

to/from companies, firms or other
parties listed in the Register maintained
under Section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956. Accordingly paragraph 4 (iii)
of the Order, is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to
us, there is an adequate internal control
system commensurate with the size of
the Company and the nature of its
business with regard to purchases of
inventory, fixed assets and the sale of
goods. There is no material sale of
services. During the course of our audit,
we have not observed any major
weakness in such internal control
system.

In respect of contracts or arrangements
entered in the Register maintained in
pursuance of Section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956, to the best of our
knowledge and belief and according to
the information and explanations given
to us:

(@) The particulars of contracts or
arrangements referredtoin Section
301 that needed to be entered in
the Register maintained under the
said Section have been so entered.

(b) Where each of such transaction is
in excess of ¥ 5 lakhs in respect of
any party, the transactions have
been made at prices which are
prima facie reasonable having
regard to the prevailing market
prices at the relevant time.

According to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposit from the
public during the year.

In our opinion, the Company has an
adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the
nature of its business.

(viii) We have broadly reviewed the cost

records maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Accounting Records) Rules, 2011
prescribed by the Central Government
under Section 209(1) (d) of the

Companies Act, 1956 and are of the
opinion that prima facie the prescribed
cost records have been maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a
view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete.

According to the information and
explanations given to us in respect of
statutory dues:

(a) The Company has been regular in
depositing undisputed dues,
including Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth
Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable
toit with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Income-tax,
Wealth Tax, Customs Duty, Excise
Duty, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at 31
December, 2012 for a period of
more than six months from the date
they became payable.

(c) Details of dues of Income-tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Excise Duty and Cess which
have not been deposited as on 31
December, 2012 on account of
disputes are given below:



()

Good Food, Good Life

Nestle
Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues Amount * | Period to which the amount relates Forum where dispute is pending
(% in Millions) | (various years covering the period)
Central Excise Laws Excise Duty 45.8 1996 - 2004 Supreme Court
43.5 2001 -2010 Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal
0.5 2000 Appellate authority upto Commissioners' level
Service Tax 377.6 2005 - 2007, 2008, 2010 Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal
Customs Laws Customs Duty 53.0 2008 - 2009 Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal
Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax/ 134.4 2000 - 2006, 2007 — 2009 High Court
VAT 96.6 2000 - 2006 Appellate Tribunal
192.0 1996 — 1997, 2001 - 2010 Appellate authority upto Commissioners’ level
Local State Act Cess 10.4 2001 - 2012 Appellate authority upto Commissioners’ level
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 118.6 1992 - 1994 High Court
1.8 2006 — 2008 Income-tax Appellate Tribunal

* Amount as per demand orders including interest and penalty wherever indicated in the Order.

The following matters, which have been excluded from the table above, have been decided in favour of the Company but the department has
preferred appeals at higher levels. The details are given below:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Dues Amount | Period to which the amount relates Forum where dispute is pending
(% in Millions) | (various years covering the period)
Central Excise Laws Excise Duty 16.1 2000 - 2006 Supreme Court
0.9 1994 High Court
71 2005 - 2006 Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal
Service Tax 0.1 2005 High Court
24 2003 - 2007 Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal
Sales Tax Laws Sales Tax/VAT 46.0 1997 — 1998, 2000 — 2003 High Court
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income tax 540.7 1996 — 2000, 2004 — 2005 Supreme Court
335.8 2000 - 2004 High Court
169.9 2006 — 2008 Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

(i)

(xii)

(xii)

The Company does not have
accumulated losses at the end of the
financial year ended 31 December,
2012. Further, the Company has not
incurred cash losses during the
financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not defaulted
inthe repayment of dues to banks and
financial institutions. The Company
has not issued debentures during the
year.

As the Company has not granted any
loans and advances on the basis of
security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities,
accordingly paragraph 4 (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a chit fund / nidhi /
mutual benefit fund / society to which
the provisions of special statute
relating to chit fund are applicable,

(xiv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

accordingly paragraph 4 (xiii) of the
Order, is not applicable.

As the Company is not dealing or
trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments,
paragraph 4 (xiv) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and
explanations given to us, the
Company has not given any
guarantee during the year for loans
taken by others from banks or
financial institutions.

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to
us, the term loans have been applied
for the purposes for which they were
obtained.

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to
us and on an overall examination of
the Balance Sheet, we report that
funds raised on short-term basis have
not been used during the year for

long- term investment.

(xviii) The Company has not made any

(xix)

(09

(xxi)

preferential allotment of shares during
the year.

The Company has not issued any
debentures during the year.

The Company has not raised any
money by way of public issue during
the year.

To the best of our knowledge and
according to the information and
explanations given to us, no fraud by
the Company and no material fraud
on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

For A.F. FERGUSON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 112066W)

(Jaideep Bhargava)
Partner
(Membership No. 90295)

NEW DELHI, 20 February, 2013
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NESTLE INDIA LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2012

2012 2011
NOTES (% in millions) ( in millions)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS
Share capital 1 964.2 964.2
Reserves and surplus 2 17,019.9 17,984.1 11,775.4 12,739.6
NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term borrowings 3 10,499.5 7,249.5
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 4 1,620.8 502.2
Long-term provisions 5 10,250.5 22,370.8 8,851.3 16,603.0
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Short-term borrowings 6 24 2,459.2
Trade payables 5,394.0 4,808.3
Other current liabilities 7 5,580.3 5,287.0
Short-term provisions 8 307.6 11,284.3 2,120.7 14,675.2
51,639.2 44,017.8
ASSETS E— -
NON - CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed assets 9
Tangible assets 32,042.7 15,757.5
Capital work-in-progress 3,440.8 13,717.8
35,483.5 29,475.3
Long-term loans and advances 10 1,254.5 36,738.0 1,639.1 31,1144
CURRENT ASSETS
Current investments 11 3,648.6 1,343.7
Inventories 12 7,455.8 7,340.4
Trade receivables 13 875.7 1,154.2
Cash and bank balances 14 2,369.6 2,272.1
Short-term loans and advances 15 541.5 790.0
Other current assets 16 10.0 14,901.2 3.0 12,903.4
51,639.2 44,017.8
See accompanying notes 1 to 44 forming part of the financial statements
ANTONIO HELIO WASZYK SHOBINDER DUGGAL B. MURLI
Chairman & Managing Director Director - Finance & Control Sr. VP - Legal & Company Secretary
February 20, 2013 In terms of our report attached
Gurgaon For A.F. FERGUSON & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(JAIDEEP BHARGAVA)
February 20, 2013 Partner
New Delhi Membership No. 90295

42



SCzane
%\ Good Food, Good Life

Nestle

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

NOTES

REVENUE
Sales of products

Domestic

Export

Gross sales

Less: Excise duty

Net sales
Other operating revenues 17(a)
Revenue from operations
Other income 17(b)
Total Revenue
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 18
Purchases of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 19
Employee benefits expense 20
Finance costs 2
Depreciation 9
Other expenses 22

Total Expenses

PROFIT BEFORE IMPAIRMENT, CONTINGENCIES AND TAXATION

Impairment loss on fixed assets 9
Net provision for contingencies 24

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding Nos.
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (Face value 3 10) g

See accompanying notes 1 to 44 forming part of the financial statements

ANTONIO HELIO WASZYK
Chairman & Managing Director

February 20, 2013

SHOBINDER DUGGAL
Director - Finance & Control

In terms of our report attached

Gurgaon For A.F. FERGUSON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(JAIDEEP BHARGAVA)

February 20, 2013 Partner

New Delhi Membership No. 90295

2012 2011

(% in millions) (% in millions)
81,561.9 72,777.9
4,256.9 3,957.9
85,818.8 76,735.8
2,796.2 1,827.6
83,022.6 74,908.2
322.7 237.3

83,345.3 75,145.5

310.3 271.6

83,655.6 754171

37,568.7 35,286.5

1,115.3 1,148.0

(920.2) (482.8)

6,633.8 5,464.6

266.0 51.1

2,771.5 1,533.3

20,367.4 17,964.3

67,802.5 60,965.0

15,853.1 14,452.1

68.5 103.9

258.4 469.0

15,526.2 13,879.2
3,728.3 4,161.4

1,118.6 4,846.9 102.3 4,263.7

10,679.3 9,615.5

96,415,716 96,415,716

110.76 99.73

B. MURLI

Sr. VP - Legal & Company Secretary
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NESTLE INDIA LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Dividend on current, non- trade investments
Interest on bank deposits, investments and employee loans
Finance costs
Depreciation
Unrealised exchange differences (excluding those considered in Finance costs)
Deficit on fixed assets sold/scrapped/written off (net)
Impairment loss on fixed assets

Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustments for :

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities
Decrease/(increase) in loans & advances and other assets
Increase/(decrease) in provision for employee benefits
Increase/(decrease) in provision for contingencies

Cash generated from operations
Direct taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividend received on current, non- trade investments
Interest received on bank deposits, investments and employee loans
Purchase of fixed assets
Sale of fixed assets
Decrease/(increase) in loans & advances to employees
Net cash used in investing activities
C  CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from External Commercial Borrowings (Refer note 41)
Proceeds from Buyer's Credit (Refer note 42)
Repayment of Buyer's Credit (Refer note 42)
Proceeds/ (repayments) of other borrowings - net
Finance costs paid
Dividends paid
Dividend distribution tax

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+B+C)
Cash and bank balances

Current investments

Cash and cash equivalents as at opening

Cash and bank balances
Current investments

Cash and cash equivalents as at closing
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ANTONIO HELIO WASZYK SHOBINDER DUGGAL
Chairman & Managing Director Director - Finance & Control
February 20, 2013 In terms of our report attached
Gurgaon For A.F. FERGUSON & CO.

Chartered Accountants
(JAIDEEP BHARGAVA)
February 20, 2013 Partner
New Delhi Membership No. 90295
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2012 2011
(% in millions) (% in millions)
15,526.2 13,879.2
(95.4) (71.3)
(214.9) (200.3)
266.0 51.1
2,775 1,533.3
(27.9) 54.9
155.6 57.9
68.5 103.9
18,449.6 15,408.7
260.6 (500.5)
(115.4) (1,580.9)
1,082.9 766.1
(1.4) (313.8)
1,149.8 9733
258.4 469.0
21,084.5 15,221.9
(4,150.7) (3,640.2)
16,933.8 11,581.7
95.4 713
207.8 201.5
(9,767.6) (15,570.8)
23.9 18,5
32.2 (5.2)
(9,408.3) (15,284.7)
2,870.5 6,373.9
343.6 2,270.1
(2,613.7) -
(6.0) 8.4
(299.8) (13.0)
(4,667.6) (4,648.9)
(758.6) (758.6)
(5,131.6) 3,231.9
2,393.9 (471.1)
2,169.7 24717
1,343.7 1,506.8
3,513.4 3,984.5
2,258.7 2,169.7
3,648.6 1,343.7
5,907.3 3,513.4
2,393.9 (471.1)
B. MURLI

Sr. VP - Legal & Company Secretary
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Nestle
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2012 2011
No. of shares (% in millions) No. of shares (% in millions)
1 - SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
Equity shares of ¥ 10 each 100,000,000 1,000.0 100,000,000 1,000.0
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of 310 each 96,415,716 964.2 96,415,716 964.2
a. Reconciliation of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 96,415,716 964.2 96,415,716 964.2
Movement during the year - c - -
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 96,415,716 964.2 96,415,716 964.2
b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares with face value of ¥ 10 each, ranking pari passu.
c. Equity shares held by holding companies
Nestle S.A. 33,051,399 33,051,399
Maggi Enterprises Limited 27,463,680 27,463,680
(Ultimate holding company being Nestle S.A)
d. Shareholders holding more than 5% of equity shares
Serial No. Name of the shareholder No. of shares held % of holding  No. of shares held % of holding
1 Nestle S.A. 33,051,399 34.28 33,051,399 34.28
2 Maggi Enterprises Limited 27,463,680 28.48 27,463,680 28.48
2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS
a. Capital subsidy
Opening balance 8.0 8.0
Add: Additions during the year - -
Closing balance 8.0 8.0
b. General reserve
Opening balance 5,198.5 4,237.0
Add: Transferred from surplus in statement of profit and loss 1,067.9 961.5
Closing balance 6,266.4 5,198.5
c. Surplus in statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 6,568.9 3,345.0
Add: Profit after taxation 10,679.3 9,615.5
Amount available for appropriation 17,248.2 12,960.5
Less: Appropriations
Dividends:
Interim (% 48.5 per share, Previous year ¥ 36 per share) 4,676.2 3,471.0
Final - proposed (% Nil per share, Previous year ¥ 12.5 per share) - 1,205.2
Dividend distribution tax 758.6 753.9
General reserve 1,067.9 961.5
Closing balance 10,745.5 6,568.9
17,019.9 11,775.4
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NESTLE INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2012 2011
(% in millions) (% in millions)
3 - LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Unsecured loans
Term loan from holding company
- External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) 10,499.5 7,249.5
10,499.5 7,249.5
Rate of interest and terms of repayment Maturity Profile
2016 2017
Interest rate is the USD 5 years Interest Rate Swap (IRS) plus an agreed spread payable semi - annually.
The loan repayment is upon completion of 5 years from the date of drawdown. 7,437.2 3,062.3
4 - DEFERRED TAXES
Deferred tax liabilities
Difference between book and tax depreciation 2,169.5 984.7
Other temporary differences 174.5 122.7
2,344.0 1,107.4
Deferred tax assets
Provision for contingencies 521.8 421.7
Provision for compensated absences and gratuity 150.1 120.5
Other items deductible on payment 27.2 38.3
Other temporary differences 24.1 24.7
723.2 605.2
1,620.8 502.2
5 - LONG TERM PROVISIONS
Employee benefits:
Pension and gratuity (Refer note 38) 6,442.9 54115
Other incentives and welfare benefits* 601.5 7,044.4 4921 5,903.6
Contingencies (Refer note 24) 3,206.1 2,947.7
10,250.5 8,851.3
* Includes compensated absences, restricted stock unit plans, long service awards and ceremonial gifts.
6 - SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured loans
From banks
- Bank overdraft (Refer note 43) 2.4 8.4
Unsecured loans
From banks
- Buyers credit 2,450.8
24 2,459.2
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2012 2011
(% in millions) (% in millions)
7 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory liabilities (sales taxes, excise duty, tax deducted at source etc.)* 1,469.2 1,039.2
Payables for capital expenditure 1,220.2 2,765.5
Interim dividend (¥ 12.5 per share, Previous year ¥ Nil per share) 1,205.2 -
Customers’ credit balances, advances and other payables 665.1 570.3
Employee costs and reimbursements 648.5 533.6
Unpaid dividends # 110.9 102.4
Sundry deposits 55.8 50.3
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 10.8 15.0
Sundries 1946 207
5,580.3 5,287.0
* Includes dividend distribution tax on interim dividend ¥ 195.5 millions (Previous year ¥ Nil)
# There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
8 - SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Employee benefits:
Pension (Refer note 38) 112.1 99.6
Other incentives and welfare benefits* 151.3 263.4 154.8 254.4
Taxation less payments 44.2 465.6
Proposed final dividend (% Nil per share, Previous year ¥ 12.5 per share) - 1,205.2
Dividend distribution tax on proposed final dividend - 195.5
307.6 2,120.7
* Includes compensated absences, restricted stock unit plans, long service awards and ceremonial gifts.
9 - FIXED ASSETS % in millions)
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Costasat | Additions | Borrowings | Deletions/ |Cost as at As at For the | Impairement On As at As at As at
December cost/ adjustments | December | December year loss Deletions/ | December | December December
31,2011 Exchange 31,2012 31,2011 adjustments | 31,2012 31,2012 31,2011
differences
Tangible Assets (A)
Freehold land 166.1 29 - 169.0 - - - 169.0 166.1
Leasehold land 263.3 873.7 539 -1 11909 74 8.3 - - 15.7 1,175.2 255.9
Buildings 3,7665 | 42161 3.7 327 | 82916 7732 | 2237 1.8 14.1 994.6 72970 | 29933
Railway siding 17 - - - 1.7 1.2 0.1 - - 1.3 0.4 05
Plant and machinery 18878.1 | 12,1156 936.1 4421 | 314877 | 74411 | 22731 56.7 207.1| 94738 22,0139 | 11437.0
Fumniture and fixtures 1,245.4 655.4 - 568 | 1,844.0 5168 |  186.4 - 433 659.9 1,184.1 7286
Office Equipment 843 19.3 - 1036 516 8.3 - 50.9 437 327
Information technology
equipment 4914 825 175 556.4 353.8 67.8 15.1 406.5 1499 137.6
Vehicles 265 75 - 2.1 319 207 38 - 2.1 224 9.5 58
Sub total 249333 | 179730 | 13317 551.2 | 43,6868 | 91758 | 27715 68.5 3717 | 11,644.1 32,0427 | 15757.5
Intangible Assets (B)
Management information
systems 536.3 536.3 536.3 536.3
Knowhow and commercial
rights 52.5 525 525 525 -
Sub Total 588.8 - - - 588.8 588.8 - - - 588.8 - -
Total (A+B) 255221 | 17,9730 | 123317 551.2 | 44,2756 | 97646 | 27715 685 3717 | 12,2329 32,0427 | 157575
Previous year 18,547.0 | 7,0985 245.3 368.6 | 255221 | 84196 | 1,5333 1039 2922 | 97646
Capital Work-in-progress 3,440.8 | 13,717.8
Total 354835 | 294753

(a) Buildings include T 500 (Previous year ¥ 500) being the cost of share in a Co-operative Housing Society.
(b) Buildings include % 54.0 millions (Previous year ¥ 54.0 millions) being the cost of leasehold improvements.
(t

c) Capital work-in-progress includes % 72.7 millions (Previous year ¥ 855.1 millions) on account of ‘Finance costs’ which has been treated as capital expenditure.
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2012
(% in millions)
10 - LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Secured, considered good
Loans and advances to employees* 40.0
Unsecured, considered good
Loans and advances to employees* 431.8
Payments / pre-deposits under protest with government authorities 441.2
Security deposits 279.8
Capital advances 59.7
Others 2.0
1,214.5
1,254.5

2011
(% in millions)

50.5

467.5
406.4
245.5
468.6

0.6

1,588.6
1,639.1

* Loans and advances to employees disbursed under the Company’s employee loan scheme includes % 0.2 millions (Previous year 0.3 millions) to a director

prior to his appointment.

11 - CURRENT INVESTMENTS Face Value No. of units Amount
(Non trade, Quoted) ¥ per unit
(at cost or fair value, whichever is lower)

Government securities

Treasury Bills 100 18,717,476 1,871.7

Mutual Funds - Debt

Tata Liquid Fund Plan A - Daily Dividend 1000 410,303 457.3

Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - Daily Dividend -

Regular Plan - Reinvestment 100 4,583,737 459.3

ICICI Prudential Liquid Plan - Daily Dividend 100 1,940,730 194.1

Reliance Liquid Fund Treasury Plan - Daily Dividend

Option Dividend Reinvestment 1000 302,283 462.1

JP Morgan India Liquid Fund Super Institutional Daily

Dividend Reinvestment 10 20,395,277 204.1
1,776.9
3,648.6

Market value of quoted / repurchase price of investments 3,659.5
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No. of units

391,109

3,406,617
1,500,233

206,918

9,997,042

Amount

435.9

341.3
150.1

316.3

100.1

1,343.7
1,343.7

1,343.7
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2012 2011
(% in millions) (% in millions)
12 - INVENTORIES
(at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower)
Raw materials 1,575.1 2,442.7
{Includes in transit ¥ 206.3 millions (Previous year ¥ 176.8 millions)}
Packing materials 2441 254.7
{Includes in transit ¥ 9.5 millions (Previous year ¥ 1.4 millions)}
Work-in-progress* 1,372.4 817.8
Finished goods* 3,653.4 3,207.0
Stock-in-trade (goods purchased for resale)* 155.7 156.7
{Includes in transit ¥ 39.7 millions (Previous year T 64.9 millions)}
Stores and spares 455.1 4615
{Includes in transit ¥ 10.6 millions (Previous year ¥ 20.1 millions)}
7,455.8 7,340.4
* Refer note 34
13 - TRADE RECEIVABLES (UNSECURED)
Considered good
Over six months from the due date for payment 19.0 7.1
Others 856.7 875.7 1,147 1 1,154.2
Considered doubtful
Over six months from the due date for payment 11.9 12.1
Others 25.1 37.0 25.0 37.1
912.7 1,191.3
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables (37.0) (87.1)
875.7 1,154.2
14 - CASH AND BANK BALANCES
a. Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
on current accounts 96.7 97.9
on deposit accounts 2,090.8 2,016.6
Cheques, drafts on hand including remittances in transit 71.2 2,258.7 55.2 2,169.7
b. Other bank balances
Unpaid dividend accounts 110.9 110.9 102.4 102.4
2,369.6 2,272.1
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2012 2011
(% in millions) (% in millions)
15 - SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Secured, considered good
Loans and advances to employees* 17.6 18.8
Unsecured, considered good
Balances with government authorities 175.2 267.8
Loans and advances to employees* 135.5 126.0
Suppliers” advances, debit balances and other receivables # 139.1 148.9
Security deposits 32.3 36.7
Others (prepaid expenses, receivable against forward contracts etc.) 41.8 191.8
523.9 771.2
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Security deposits and vendor balances 41 17.7
Less: Provision for doubtful security deposits and vendor balances (4.1) (17.7)
541.5 790.0

* Loans and advances to employees disbursed under the Company’s employee loan scheme includes ¥ 0.1 millions (Previous year

% 0.3 millions) to a director prior to his appointment.
# Includes ¥ 40.0 millions (Previous year % 23.3 millions) from related parties

16 - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 10.0

10.0

17 (a) - OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

Export incentives 142.3
Others (mainly scrap sales) 180.4
322.7

17 (b) - OTHER INCOME

Dividend on current, non- trade investments 95.4
Interest received on bank deposits, investments and employee loans 214.9
(Tax deducted at source ¥ 11.5 millions, Previous year ¥ 10.0 millions)

310.3
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2012 2011
(% in millions) (% in millions)
18 - COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Raw materials (Refer note 31) 31,269.1 29,378.4
Packing materials 6,299.6 5,908.1
37,568.7 35,286.5
19 - CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Opening stock
Finished goods 3,207.0 2,825.4
Work-in-progress 817.8 741.7
Stock-in-trade 156.7 45.2
4,181.5 3,612.3
Closing Stock
Finished goods 3,653.4 3,207.0
Work-in-progress 1,372.4 817.8
Stock-in-trade 155.7 156.7
5,181.5 4,181.5
Net (increase)/ decrease in opening and closing stock (1,000.0) (569.2)
Net movement in excise duty on finished goods 79.8 86.4
(920.2) (482.8)
20 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
Salaries, wages, bonus, pension, gratuity, performance
incentives etc. (Refer note 39) 6,018.4 4,895.3
Contribution to provident and other funds 221.7 193.0
Staff welfare expenses 393.7 376.3
6,633.8 5,464.6
21 - FINANCE COSTS
Interest on
Borrowings - External Commercial Borrowings, Buyer's credit* 348.5 116.1
Others 8.7 2.8
Exchange differences* 477.9 1,072.2
Less: Interest Income on temporarily surplus liquidities out of External (19.8) 815.3 (39.5) 1,151.6
Commercial Borrowings proceeds* - -
Less: treated as capital expenditure™# (549.3) (1,100.5)
266.0 51.1

* Refer note 41 and note 42

# The Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued a circular no. 25/2012 dated 09.08.2012 clarifying that all exchange differences on long term foreign currency
borrowings for capital expenditure should be capitalised. Accordingly, exchange differences amounting to ¥ 33.3 millions (% 22.5 millions - net of tax) expensed

in 2011 have been reversed under “Finance Costs” in the current year.
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22 - OTHER EXPENSES

Finished goods handling, transport and distribution

Power and fuel

Advertising and sales promotion

General licence fees (net of taxes)

Information technology and management information systems
Maintenance and repairs

Plant and machinery 477.4
Buildings 177.9
Others 117.2

Contract manufacturing charges

Rates and taxes

Travelling

Rent

Consumption of stores and spare parts

(excluding ¥ 253.9 millions charged to other revenue accounts,
Previous year T 184.8 millions)

Taxes on general licence fees

Training

Laboratory (quality testing)

Market research

Milk collection and district development

Deficit on fixed assets sold/scrapped/written off (net)
Insurance

Miscellaneous
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2012

(% in millions)

3,841.5
3,708.9
3,558.8
2,884.6

775.9

7725
673.3
664.3
613.5
512.8
406.6

288.6
243.6
180.0
160.3
157.8
155.6

22.3
746.5

20,367.4

367.5
164.8
90.8

2011
(% in millions)

3,524.9
2,958.1
3,226.2
2,574.7

720.0

623.1
661.6
502.8
585.1
440.6
339.8

257.6
252.8
129.0
118.6
131.2

57.9

21.9
838.4

17,964.3
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23. Significant Accounting Policies
BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India
(Indian GAAP), to comply with the applicable mandatory Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.The financial statements have been prepared on
accrual basis under the historical cost convention. The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent
with those followed in the previous year, except wherever specified.

The Revised Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 has become effective from 1 April, 2011 for the preparation of financial statements.
This has impacted the disclosure and presentation made in the financial statements.

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and
liabilities. This is based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents,

Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable with the current year's
classification / disclosure.

REVENUE ROCOGNITION

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods to the buyer which is
generally at the time of dispatch to the customer. Sales are recorded net of returns (if any), trade discounts, rebates, other pricing discounts
to trade/consumer and value added tax/sales tax.

Interest on investments is booked on a time proportion basis.
Dividend income on investments is recognised when the right to receive the payment is established.
INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower. The bases of determining cost for various categories of inventories
are as follows:

Raw and packing materials ;. First-in -first out

Stores and spare parts : Weighted average

Work-in-progress and finished goods : Material cost plus appropriate share of production overheads and excise duty,
wherever applicable

Stock-in-trade (Goods purchased for resale) . First-in -first out

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Contributions to the provident fund, provision for pension, gratuity and other employee benefits are charged to statement of profit and loss
during the period of employment.

Provision for pension and gratuity is made on the basis of an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the year-end.
Provision for gratuity is recognised after taking into account the return on plan assets maintained under the gratuity trust.

Other long term benefits, like compensated absences and long service awards are charged to statement of profit and loss on a discounted
basis which these are accrued over the expected service period until the benefits vests.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Other short term benefits, including performance incentives are charged to statement of profit and loss on an undiscounted, accrual basis
during the period when the employee renders service.
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Liability for Nestle Restricted Stock Unit (RSU) Plan of Nestle S.A. whereby select employees of the Company are granted non-tradable
Restricted Stock Units (RSU) with the right to obtain Nestle S.A. shares or cash equivalent is charged to statement of profit and loss over
the vesting period. The Company remeasures the outstanding RSU grants at each balance sheet date taking into account the Nestle S.A.
share price and exchange rate as at the balance sheet date. The resultant gain/(loss) on remeasurement is charged to statement of profit
and loss over the vesting period.

DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION

Depreciation is provided as per the straight-line method at rates provided in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956, except for the
following class of fixed assets, where the useful life has been estimated as under: -

Information technology equipment : 3-b5years

Furniture and fixtures : byears

Office equipments : bSyears

Vehicles : byears

Leasehold land and related improvements . Lease period

Intangible fixed assets . Over their estimated useful life.
IMPAIRMENT OF FIXED ASSETS

At each balance sheet date, carrying amount of fixed assets is reviewed for any possible impairment. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating unit). If any impairment
indicator exists, estimates of the recoverable amount of the fixed asset/cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss
is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset/ cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value based on an appropriate discount factor.

Reversal of impairment losses recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognised for
the asset/cash generating unit no longer exist or have decreased. However, the increase in carrying amount of an asset due to reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised to the extent it does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for that asset/cash generating unit in prior years.

TAXATION

Provision for taxation for the period comprises the residual tax liability for the period April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2012 and the liability, which
has accrued on the profit for the period April 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 under the provisions of the Indian Income tax Act, 1961

Deferred tax is recognised, subject to the consideration of prudence, on timing difference, being the difference between taxable income and
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Contingent liabilities are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts and legal aspects of the matter involved, in line with the provisions
of Accounting Standard (AS) 29. Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal/constructive) and on
management judgement as a result of a past event, for which it is probable that a cash outflow may be required and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not
require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be
accrued/ realised.
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FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are stated at cost (net of CENVAT or any other recoverable taxes) less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost is inclusive of freight, duties, levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to their working condition for
intended use (also refer to accounting policies on ‘Foreign exchange transactions’ and ‘Borrowing costs’ below).

Profit or loss on disposal of tangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded on initial recognition at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items (i.e. receivables, payables, loans etc.) denominated in foreign currency are reported using the closing exchange rate on
each balance sheet date.

The exchange difference arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary items at rates different from rates at which these were initially
recorded / reported in previous financial statements, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise
except for the items covered below:

In line with notification no. G.S.R. 225(E) dated March 31, 2009 and subsequent clarification via circular no. 25/2012 dated 09.08.2012
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, the Company has opted for adjusting the exchange differences, arising on
long term foreign currency monetary borrowings relating to acquisition of depreciable asset to the cost of the asset and, to depreciate over
the balance useful life of that asset.

In case of forward exchange contracts, the difference between the exchange rate on the date of inception/ last reporting date and the
exchange rate at the settlement / reporting date is recognised as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is
recognised over the life of the contract.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of fixed assets which take substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use are treated as capital expenditure in accordance with Accounting Standard 16 on “Borrowing Costs” and notification no.
G.S.R. 225(E) dated March 31, 2009 and subsequent clarification via circular no. 25/2012 dated 09.08.2012 issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Government of India.

Other borrowing costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss.
INVESTMENTS

Investments are classified into current and long-term investments. Current investments are stated at the lower of cost or fair value. Long-
term investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, in the value of long-term investments is made only if such decline is not
temporary in nature.

LEASES

Lease rentals for operating leases are charged to statement of profit and loss on accrual basis in accordance with the respective lease
agreements.

Net provision for contingencies

The Company has created a contingency provision of ¥ 481.4 millions (Previous year ¥ 492.6 millions) for various contingencies resulting
mainly from matters, which are under litigation / related disputes and other uncertainties requiring management judgement. The Company
has also reversed contingency provision of ¥ 223.0 millions (Previous year ¥ 23.6 millions) due to the satisfactory settlement of certain
litigations for which provision is no longer required.

Provisions for Contingencies for the year ended 31.12.2012 is not comparable with the same period of 2011 due to timing difference of
certain provisions arising from change in regulatory procedures.
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The details of class-wise provisions are given below:

2011
(% in millions) (% in millions)

Description Provisions for contingencies Provisions for contingencies

Litigations and Others Total Litigations and Others Total

related disputes related disputes

Opening balance 2,791.2 156.5  2,947.7 2,343.0 1357 24787
New provisions 453.4 28.0 481.4 471.8 20.8 492.6
Utilisation/Settlement in the year - - - - - -
Reversals (141.5) (81.5) (223.0) (23.6) - (23.6)
Recognised in statement of
profit and loss 311.9 (53.5) 258.4 448.2 20.8 469.0
Closing balance 3,103.1 103.0 3,206.1 2,791.2 156.5  2,947.7
Notes:

(a) Litigations and related disputes - represents estimates made mainly for probable claims arising out of litigations / disputes pending with authorities
under various statutes (i.e. Income Tax, Excise Duty, Service Tax, Sales and Purchase Tax etc.). The probability and the timing of the outflow with regard
to these matters depend on the ultimate settlement /conclusion with the relevant authorities.

(b) Others - include estimates made for products sold by the Company which are covered under free replacement warranty on becoming unfit for human
consumption during the prescribed shelf life. The timing and probability of outflow with regard to these matters will depend on the external environment

and the consequent decision/ conclusion by the Management.

25.  Contingent liabilities and commitments.
Contingent liabilities

Claims against the company not acknoledged as debts:

VAT matters

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure commitments remaining to be executed and not provided for
(net of advance ¥ 59.7 millions (Previous year ¥ 468.6 millions)

26. Auditors remuneration

(1) Auditors’ remuneration including service tax and expenses in respect of:

a) Statutory audit
) Audit of accounts for fiscal year and tax audit

c) Limited review of quarterly un-audited results

d) Certifications

e) Audit of employee trust accounts

f) Certification of tax holiday benefits

g) Out of pocket expenses for statutory audit and other matters

(2) Cost and other auditors’ remuneration
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2012

(% in millions)

117.0

921.6

5.7
23
1.0
1.3
0.1
0.1
0.4
0.4

2011
(% in millions)

4,618.7

5.6
2.7
1.0
1.1
0.1
0.1
0.4
0.3
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2012 2011
(% in millions) (% in millions)
27. Exchange difference charged (net) to statement of profit and loss under
Finance costs 18.8 34.7
Other expenses - Miscellaneous 1.3 176.7
20.1 2114
2012 2011
(% in millions) % (% in millions) %
28. Consumption of stores and spare parts
Imported 105.9 16.0 78.0 14.9
Indigenous 554.6 84.0 446.6 85.1
660.5 100.0 524.6 100.0
2012 2011
(% in millions) (% in millions)
29. Earnings from exports
Export of goods in:
- Foreign currency at F.O.B value {including sales to Russia 2,929.0 3,091.6
invoiced in Rupees of ¥ 129.5 million (Previous year % Nil)}
-Rupees (all inclusive sales to Nepal & Bhutan) 1,302.6 810.2
30. C.I.F value of imports
Raw and packing materials 2,491.1 2,508.4
Capital goods 1,465.8 7,206.4
Goods - outside manufacture 273.9 240.4
Components and spare parts 120.4 90.5
31. Raw materials consumed:
Fresh milk 9,214.9 9,043.6
Milk derivatives 4,667.0 42259
Grain flour 3,698.4 3,106.1
Edible oils 3,261.8 3,235.2
Green coffee and chicory 3,257.4 3,091.2
Sugar 2,067.2 1,862.8
Fruit and vegetable crunchies / flakes 457.5 356.7
Cocoa based raw materials 431.3 370.1
Maltodextrine powder 377.8 342.8
Tomato paste /powder 324.8 293.1
Fruits and vegetables concentrate 297.3 166.0
Liquid glucose 236.5 260.8
Onion flakes /powder 211.6 2432
Wheat gluten 157.6 139.9
Black tea/green leaf 151.7 147.0
Others (net of sale proceeds of by-products/surplus materials) 2,456.3 2,494.0
31,269.1 29,378.4
2012 2011
(% in millions) % (% in millions) %
Of the above:
Imported 3,478.1 11.1 3,193.6 10.9
Indigenous 27,791.0 88.9 26,184.8 89.1
31,269.1 100.0 29,378.4 100.0

57



NESTLE INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32

33.

34,
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2012 2011
(T in millions) ( (% in millions)
a. Expenditure in foreign currency (accrual basis)
General license fees (net of taxes) 2,884.6 2,574.7
Information technology and management information systems 610.6 593.0
Project management* 542.3 172.2
Interest on borrowings 348.5 116.1
Other matters 308.4 281.7
* in relation to capital projects
b. Other recoveries in foreign currency (accrual basis)
Reimbursement of costs 78.3 451
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets/spare parts at F.O.B. value 3.9 5.6
Amount remitted in foreign currencies towards dividends during the year:
2012 2011
Number of Number of Dividend Number of ~ Number of Dividend
Non-resident Equity remitted  Non-resident Equity remitted
Shareholders ~ Shares held (R in  Shareholders  Shares held Rin
millions) millions)
Final - 2011 /2010 2 60,515,079 756.4 2 60,515,079 756.4
First interim 2 60,515,079 1,089.3 2 60,515,079 544.6
Second interim 2 60,515,079 1,089.3 2 60,515,079 1,634.0
a. Details of Production/Purchases, Stocks and Sales of products
Class of goods Opening stock #Actual Closing stock Gross Sales
production and
Quantity ®in Purchases Quantity (in Quantity* ®in
(MT) millions) Quantity (MT) millions) (MT) millions)
(MT)
Milk Products and Nutrition 11,415 1,890.3 141,636 11,371 2,039.4 140,386 38,593.9
(12,271) (1,691.9) (148,964) (11,415) (1,890.3) (147,984) (33,510.1)
Beverages 1,931 516.4 25,307 1,725 505.3 25,353 11,227.3
(1,815) (357.5) (26,944) (1,931) (516.4) (26,692) (10,684.0)
Prepared dishes and 6,550 459.4 239,962 9,663 674.5 236,554 24.301.5
cooking aids (6,668) (396.1) (220,165) (6,550) (459.4) (219,041) (21,544.8)
Chocolate and confectionery 3,825 497.6 47,377 3,207 589.9 47,745 11,691.1
(4,448) (425.1) (52,091) (3,825) (497.6) (52,678)  (10,996.9)
23,721 3,363.7 454,282 25,966 3,809.1 450,038 85,818.8
(25,202) (2,870.6) (448,164) (23,721) (3,363.7) (446,395) (76,735.8)

# Includes product manufactured by contract manufacturers on conversion basis.
* Sales quantity includes goods withdrawn for sales promotion and excludes expired/bad goods.
Previous year's figures are indicated in brackets
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35.

36.

b. Details of Purchases of stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Class of goods

Purchases of stock -in-trade

Work-in-progress

Quantity (% in millions) (% in millions)

(MT)
Milk products and Nutrition 19,754 892.1 934.6
(22,249) (995.9) (402.1)
Beverages 232 128.5 165.4
(208) (80.5) (126.1)
Prepared dishes and cooking aids 16 35.9 184.9
(12) (26.1) (218.7)
Chocolate and confectionery 282 58.8 87.5
(222) (45.5) (70.9)
20,284 1,115.3 1,372.4
(22,691) (1,148.0) (817.8)

Previous year’s figures are indicated in brackets.

Segment reporting

Based on the guiding principles given in Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting’ (AS-17), the Company’s primary business segment is Food. The
food business incorporates product groups viz. Milk Products and Nutrition, Beverages, Prepared dishes and cooking aids, Chocolates and Confectionery,
which mainly have similar risks and returns. As the Company’s business activity falls within a single primary business segment the disclosure requirements

of AS -17 in this regard are not applicable.

Related party disclosures under Accounting Standard 18
a) Related party and their relationship
i)  Holding Companies

Nestié S.A.
Maggi Enterprises Limited

i) Fellow subsidiaries

Al Manhal Water Factory Co. Ltd
Marcas Nestlé SA de CV

Nestec S.A.

Nestec York Ltd

Nestlé (China) Ltd

Nestlé (Thai) Ltd

Nestlé Asean (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
Nestlé Australia Ltd

Nestlé Bangladesh Ltd

Nestlé Brasil Ltda

Nestlé Business Services AOA, Inc.

Nestlé Canada Inc
Nestlé Central And West Africa

Nestlé Operational Services Worldwide SA
Nestlé Osterreich GmbH

Nestlé Pakistan Ltd

Nestlé Philippines, Inc.

Nestlé Polska S.A.

Nestlé Product Technology Centre
Nestlé Products Sdn Bhd

Nestlé Ptc Marysville

Nestlé Purina Petcare Tianjin Ltd
Nestlé Qingdao Ltd

Nestlé Quality Assurance Center
Nestlé R&D Center (Pte) Ltd
Nestlé R&D Center Inc
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a)

i

Related party and their relationship (Contd.)

Nestlé Cesko s.r.o.
Nestlé Chile SA

Nestlé R&D Center Shanghai Ltd
Nestlé R&D Centre India Private Ltd

Nestlé Deutschland AG Nestlé ROH (Thailand) Ltd
Nestlé Dongguan Ltd Nestlé Romania SRL
Nestlé Dubai Manufacturing LLC Nestlé Rossiya LLC
Nestlé Egypt S.A.E. Nestlé Shanghai Ltd

Nestlé Equatorial African Region
Nestlé Espana, S.A.

Nestlé Singapore (Pte) Ltd
Nestlé South Africa Pty Ltd

Nestlé Food Kazakhstan LLP Nestlé Suisse S.A.

Nestlé France S.A.S. Nestlé Syria Ltd

Nestlé Ghana Ltd Nestlé Taiwan Ltd

Nestlé Hong Kong Ltd Nestlé Tianjin Ltd

Nestlé Hulunbeir Ltd Nestlé Turkiye Gida Sanayi A.S.

Nestlé Hungaria Kit.

Nestlé International Travel Retail

Nestlé Iran (Private Joint Stock Company)
Nestlé Italiana S.p.A.

Nestlé Japan Ltd

Nestlé Kenya Ltd

Nestlé Korea Ltd

Nestlé Kuban LLC

Nestlé Lanka PLC

Nestlé Manufacturing Ltd

Nestlé Manufacturing(Malaysia) Sdn Bhd
Nestlé Maroc S.A.

Nestlé México S.A. de C.V.

Nestlé Middle East FZE

Nestlé Nederland B.V.

Nestlé New Zealand Ltd

Nestlé Nigeria Plc

Key Management Personnel

Nestlé UK Ltd

Nestlé USA Inc

Nestlé Vietnam Ltd

Nestlé Waters Management & Technology
Nestlé Zimbabwe (Private) Ltd
Nestlé’s Products (Mauritius) Ltd
Nestrade S.A.

Osem Investments Ltd

Osem UK Ltd

PT Nestlé Indofood Citarasa

PT Nestlé Indonesia

Quality Coffee Products Ltd
R&D - Singapore

San Pellegrino S.p.A.

Servcom S.A.

Société des Produits Nestlé S.A.

Antonio Helio Waszyk - Chairman & Managing Director
Shobinder Duggal, Director - Finance & Control
Christian Schmid, Director - Technical

iv) Employees benefit trusts where control exists
Nestlé India Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Trust
Nestlé India Limited Employees’ Gratuity Trust Fund
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b). Nature of transactions
The transactions with the related parties have been entered in the ordinary course of business and are at arm’s length.

Particulars 2012 2011
(% in millions) (% in millions)
Holding companies:
Dividends:  Interim 2,935.0 2,178.6
Final Nil 756.4
External Commercial Borrowings (ECB)
Nestlé S.A.
Loan received 2,870.6 6,373.9
Interest 314.5 108.9
Expenses Recovered
Nestlé S.A. 4.9 Nil
Expenses Reimbursed/incurred
Nestlé S.A. 119.2 106.4

Fellow subsidiaries:
(@) Sale of finished and other goods

Nestlé Kuban LLC 774.2 1,480.8

Nestlé Turkiye Gida Sanayi A.S. 707.2 52.9

Nestlé Egypt S.A.E. 233.3 373.0

Others 388.5 4754
(b) Sale of fixed assets/spares

- Nestlé Bangladesh Ltd 25 Nil

Nestrade S.A. Nil 3.1

Nestlé Zimbabwe (Pvt) Ltd Nil 1.8

Nestlé Asean (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd Nil 1.4

Others Nil 0.1
(c) Purchase of fixed assets

Nestlé Kuban LLC 5.1 Nil
(d) Purchase of raw and packing materials and spare parts

Nestlé Suisse S.A. 14.3 Nil

Nestlé (South Africa) (Pty) Ltd Nil 1.0

Nestlé Deutschland AG Nil 0.6

Others 1.0 Nil
(e) Purchase of finished goods

- Nestlé Lanka PLC 72.3 63.5

Nestlé Korea Ltd 50.6 34.6

Nestlé Espana S.A. 40.7 419

Nestlé Nederland BV 30.6 38.6

P.T. Nestlé Indonesia 274 35.2

Others 50.2 245
(f) General licence fees (Net of taxes)

Société des Produits Nestlé S.A. 2,884.6 2,574.7
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Particulars 2012 2011
(% in millions) ( in millions)
(9 Expenses Recovered/received
Nestlé R&D Centre India Private Limited 23.6 15.6
Nestlé Lanka PLC 214 10.8
Nestec S.A. 14.0 13.9
Nestlé Bangladesh Ltd 10.6 6.9
Others 32.6 135
(h) Expenses Reimbursed/incurred
- Nestec S.A 45.4 21.8
Nestlé R & D Center (Pte) Limited 17.5 5.3
Nestlé Deutschland AG 17.0 11.8
NestecYork Ltd 14.3 4.7
Nestlé Nederland BV 1.3 15,5
Others 33.5 34.6
(i)  Information technology and management information systems
Nestlé Australia Ltd 592.0 591.1
Servcom SA 25 1.9
() Balances no longer payable
Nestlé Bangladesh Ltd Nil 4.3
(k) Remuneration to key management personnel
Chairman & Managing Director 94.7 85.2
Director — Finance & Control 25.6 23.8
Director — Technical 54.0 39.5
()  Employees’ benefit trusts
- Nestlé India Limited Employees’ Provident Fund Trust 104.2 89.2
Nestlé India Limited Employees’ Gratuity Trust Fund 50.0 59.0
Balance outstanding as at the year end
»  Interim dividend payable to holding companies 756.4 Nil
»  Proposed final dividend payable to holding companies Nil 756.4
»  External Commercial borrowings — at restated value 10,499.5 7,249.5
» Interest accrued but not due on External Commercial Borrowings 10.8 7.9
»  Receivables from holding companies 4.9 Nil
»  Receivables from fellow subsidiaries 4571 517.0
»  Payables to fellow subsidiaries 470.3 467.0
»  Payables to key management personnel 13.9 22.5
»  Payables to Employees Provident Fund Trust 8.8 7.8
Note:

Other transactions with Key Managerial Personnel during the year:

1. Lease rentals paid (included in (k) above) (at market rates) during the year: ¥ 2.0 millions (previous year ¥ 2.0 millions).

2. Balance outstanding against loans disbursed under Company’s employee loan schemes for its employees includes
% 0.3 millions (previous year ¥ 0.6 millions). Transactions during the year in this employee loan account: repayments ¥ 0.3 millions (previous
year 0.4 millions).
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37. Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

38.

On the basis of confirmation obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro Small Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) and based on the information available with the Company, the balance due to Micro & Small Enterprises as
defined under the MSMED Act, 2006 is T 12.6 millions (Previous year ¥ 44.8 millions). Further, no interest during the year has been paid or
payable under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006.

Employee Plans

a)

b)

c)

The Company makes contribution towards employees’ provident fund and employees’ state insurance plan scheme. Under the rules
of these schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs. The Company during the year
recognised T 221.7 millions (Previous year ¥ 193.0 millions) as expense towards contributions to these plans.

Out of the total contribution made for Employees’ Provident Fund, ¥ 104.2 millions (Previous year ¥ 89.2 millions) is made to the
Nestle India Limited Employees Provident Fund Trust while the remainder contribution is made to Provident Fund Plan operated by
the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner.

The total plan liabilities under the Nestle India Limited Employees Provident Fund Trust as at December 31, 2012 as per the unaudited
financial statements for the year then ended is ¥ 1,658.2 millions (Previous year ¥ 1,426.4 millions) as against total plan assets of
31,667.4 millions (Previous year ¥ 1,416.2 millions). The funds of the Trust have been invested under various securities as prescribed
under the rules of the Trust.

Gratuity scheme - This is a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Company makes contributions to the Nestle
India Limited Employees’ Gratuity Trust Fund. The scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement,
death while in employment or on termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service.

Pension scheme - The Company has a discretionary unfunded defined pension benefit scheme for its qualifying employees.

The following table sets out the status of the gratuity and pension plans as at December 31, 2012:-

As at December 31,2012  As at December 31,2011

(% in millions) (% in millions)
Gratuity Pension  Gratuity Pension
Scheme Scheme  Scheme Scheme
Funded  Unfunded Funded Unfunded
Plan Plan Plan Plan
Change in defined benefit obligation (DBO):
1 Present Value of obligation, as at the beginning of the year 573.6 5,474.2 505.8 4,676.9
2 Current service cost 37.8 237.7 30.5 199.1
3 Interest cost 441 4331 39.3 369.7
4 Actuarial loss (net) 39.7 467.9 28.8 339.8
5 Actual benefits paid (45.0) (121.2) (30.8) (111.3)
6 Present Value of obligation, as at the end of the year 650.2 6,491.7 573.6 5,474.2
Change in plan assets:
1 Plan assets at the beginning of the year 536.7 468.0 -
2 Expected return on plan assets 43.1 38.5 -
3 Contribution by the Company 50.0 59.0 -
4 Actual benefits paid (45.0) (30.8) -
5 Actuarial gain (net) 21 2.0 -
6 Plan assets at the end of the year 586.9 536.7 -
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As at December 31, 2012

64

Liability (net) recognised in the balance Sheet

Cost for the period
1 Current service cost

2 Interest cost
3 Expected return on plan assets
4 Actuarial loss (net)
6 Actual benefits paid
Net cost

Constitution of plan assets:
1 Bonds
2 Govermnment of India securities
3 State Government/State Government guaranteed securities
4 Cash at bank and receivables
5 Funding with insurance Companies & mutuals funds
Total plan assets

Main Actuarial Assumptions:
1 Discount Rate (%)

2 Expected rate of return on plan assets (%)

Experience Adjustments:
Experience Loss/ (Gain) adjustments on plan liabilities
Experience Gain / (Loss) adjustments on plan assets

As at December 31,2011

(% in millions) (% in millions)
Gratuity Pension  Gratuity Pension
Scheme Scheme  Scheme Scheme
Funded Unfunded Funded Unfunded

Plan Plan Plan Plan

63.3 6,491.7 36.9 5474.2
37.8 237.7 30.5 199.1
441 433.1 39.3 369.7
(43.1) - (38.5) -
37.6 467.9 26.9 339.8
45.0 121.2 30.8 111.3
121.4 1,259.9 89.0 1,019.9
269.2 - 250.9
82.4 - 90.6
157.2 - 121.3
4.0 - 115
74.1 - 62.5
586.9 - 536.8
8.00 8.00 8.00 8.00
8.00 - 8.00 -
30.1 298.6 20.6 239.9
2.1 - 2.0 -

The estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, performance, promotion and other
relevant factors such as demand and supply in the employment market.

The expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the composition of the plan assets held,
assessed risks of assets management, historical results of return on plan assets and the policy for plan assets management.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO), Plan assets, Deficit / (Surplus), for previous years

As at December 31, 2010 As at December 31, 2009 As at December 31, 2008
(% in millions) (% in millions) (% in millions)
Gratuity Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity Pension
Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme Scheme
Funded Plan | Unfunded Plan | Funded Plan Unfunded Plan | Funded Plan | Unfunded Plan

Present value of defined benefit obligation (DBO) 505.8 4,676.9 300.5 4,208.4 356.0 3,076.3
Value of plan assets 468.0 - 377.3 - 355.3 -
Deficit / (Surplus) 37.8 4,676.9 (76.8) 4,208.4 0.7 3,076.3
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39.

40.

Restricted Stock Unit ( RSU ) Plan

The Company participates in the Nestlé Restricted Stock Unit ( RSU ) Plan of Nestlé S.A., whereby select employees are granted non-
tradable Restricted Stock Units with the right to obtain Nestlé S.A. shares or cash equivalent. Restricted Stock Units granted to employees
vest, subject to certain conditions, after completion of three years. Upon vesting Nestlé S.A. determines, whether shares, free of charge or
cash equivalent to the value of shares, is to be transferred to the employee. The Company has to pay Nestlé S.A. an amount equivalent to
the value of Nestlé S.A. shares on the date of vesting, delivered to the employee.

The details are as under:-

2012 2011
No of Grants (% in millions)  No of Grants (% in millions)
Outstanding, non vested RSU grants as at year end 109,890 219.2 112,480 203.3
RSU grants vested during the year 34,980 103.3 21,200 53.0
Recognised in statement of profit and loss 119.2 105.5

Operating Leases

The Company’s significant leasing arrangements are primarily in respect of operating leases for premises (office, residential, warehouses
etc.) and vehicles. The aggregate lease rentals charged to the statement of profit and loss account are ¥ 512.8 millions (Previous year
% 440.6 millions).

Future minimum lease rentals payable as at 31st December, 2012 as per the lease agreements:

2012 2011

(% in millions) (% in millions)

Not later than one year 394.9 350.3
Later than one year not later than five year 245.5 3934
Later than five years 1.0 0.2
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4.

42.

66

External Commercial Borrowings

During first half of 2012, the Company had drawn US Dollars 56 millions (Previous year US dollars 136 millions) from Nestlé S.A. for 5 years for
the purpose of capital expenditure under the External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) approval from Reserve Bank of India. Total amount of loan
outstanding as at 31 December 2012 is ¥ 10,499.5 millions (Previous year % 7,249.5 millions). Total cost of this borrowing, including interest (net
of earnings from temporarily surplus liquidities) and exchange differences, during 2012 is ¥ 693.7 millions (Previous year  1,129.2 millions) which
is either treated as capital expenditure or charged to statement of profit and loss as per the accounting policy details of which are as follow:

Loan Amount (% in millions)
Movement in loan amount during the year
Outstanding as at 31.12.2011 7,249.5
Amount drawn during first half of 2012 2,870.5
Exchange loss on revaluation 379.5
Outstanding as at 31.12.2012 10,499.5
Finance costs for the year Interest Exchange Loss / (Gain) Total
(refer note 21) Realised Unrealised
Interest cost 3145 - 3145
Exchange loss on revaluation - - 379.5 3795
Exchange loss (net) on forward contracts - 19.5 - 19.5
Subtotal 314.5 19.5 379.5 713.5
Earnings from temporarily surplus liquidities (19.8) - - (19.8)
Net finance costs 294.7 19.5 379.5 693.7
of which
Treated as capital expenditure 78.4 19.5 3795 4774
Recognised in statement of profit & loss 216.3 - - 216.3

Buyer’s Credit

During January 2012, the Company had drawn US Dollars 6.7 millions (Previous year US dollars 46 millions) as Buyer's Credit from various
commercial banks for a period upto one year. Total loan amount has been paid during the year and outstanding as at 315 December 2012 is Nil
(Previous year ¥ 2,450.8 millions). Total cost of this borrowing, including interest and exchange differences, during 2012 is ¥ 112.9 millions
(Previous year % 19.5 millions) which is either treated as capital expenditure or charged to statement of profit and loss as per the accounting policy
details of which are as follow:

Loan Amount (% in millions)
Movement in loan amount during the year
Outstanding as at 31.12.2011 2,450.8
Amount drawn during January 2012 343.6
Reversal of exchange loss as at 31.12.2011 on revaluing loan amount (180.7)
Amount paid during the year (2,613.7)
Outstanding as at 31.12.2012 -
Finance costs for the year Interest Exchange Loss/(Gain) Total
(refer note 21) Realised Unrealised
Interest Cost 34.0 - - 34.0
Reversal of exchange loss as at 31.12.2011 on revaluing loan amount - (180.7) - (180.7)
Exchange loss on forex forward contracts - 259.6 - 259.6
Net finance costs 34.0 78.9 - 112.9
of which
Treated as capital expenditure 11.8 26.8 - 38.6
Recognised in statement of profit & loss 222 52.1 - 74.3
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43.

44.

The Company’s borrowing facilities, comprising fund based and non fund based limits from various bankers, are secured by way of a first
pari passu charge on all movable assets (excluding plant and machinery), finished goods (including stock-in-trade), work-in-progress, raw
materials and book debts.

Foreign currency exposure
The foreign currency exposure of the Company as at December 31, 2012 is as under:

a) Category wise quantitative data*

As at December 31, 2012 As at December 31, 2011
Amount in ®in Amount in ®in
Foreign millions) Foreign millions)
currency currency
Currency Nos. (in millions) Nos.  (in millions)
Forward contracts against exports usD 32 14.2 7715 36 17.0 891.8
EUR 1 0.1 7.2 - - -
Forward contracts against imports CAD - - - 1 0.3 13.1
(Including Capital imports) CHF - - - 1 0.4 25.7
EUR 19 3.2 228.8 28 6.4 446.4
GBP 4 0.7 60.1 6 1.2 99.5
usD 18 7.7 422.3 12 5.9 314.0
AUD 1 2.8 156.1 9 20 104.4
Forward contracts against Buyers Credit
& Interest Charges usbD - - - 95 46.6 2,376.4

*At closing rates

b) All the forward contracts are for hedging foreign exchange exposures relating to the underlying transactions and firm commitments or
highly probable forecast transaction.

c) Foreign currency exposures remaining unhedged at the year end:

As at December 31, 2012 As at December 31, 2011
Amount in ®in Amount in ®in
Foreign millions) Foreign millions)
Currency currency currency

(in millions) (in millions)
Against exports usD 3.8 208.9 - -
GBP 0.1 12.3 0.1 6.9
EUR 0.5 35.9 0.1 9.1
CAD 0.0 1.7 - -
Against imports JPY 16.2 10.3 14.7 10.1
(Including Capital imports) SGD 0.9 41.9 0.7 27.5
AUD 0.1 6.4 0.5 26.7
MYR 0.0 0.2 0.1 1.3
CHF 0.7 43.9 0.7 39.7
usD 1.4 73.9 - -
ZAR 0.0 0.2 0.2 1.3
GBP 1.0 88.3 1.9 154.9
CAD 0.1 6.8 2.7 1413
EUR 3.2 229.7 7.2 497.8
Against ECB & interest Charges usD 192.2 10,510.3 136.1 7,257 .4
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NESTLE’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

Nestlé India Limited, as a part of Nestlé Group, Switzerland has over the years followed best practices of Corporate Governance by adhering to
practices laid down by the Nestlé Group. The significant documents from the Nestlé Group, which define the standard of behaviour of Nestlé
India, are “Nestlé Corporate Business Principles”, “The Nestlé Management and Leadership Principles” and “Nestlé Code of Business Conduct’.

Nestlé India’s business objective and that of its management and employees is to manufacture and market the Company’s products in such a
way as to create value that can be sustained over the long term for consumers, shareholders, employees, business partners and the national
economy. Nestlé India is conscious of the fact that the success of a corporation is a reflection of the professionalism, conduct and ethical values
of its management and employees. In addition to compliance with regulatory requirements, Nestlé India endeavours to ensure that highest
standards of ethical and responsible conduct are met throughout the organisation.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition, attendance of the Directors at the Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting, Outside Directorships and
other Board Committees

Above information as on 31% December, 2012 or for the year 2012, as applicable, is tabulated hereunder:

Director No. of Board Attendance No. of No. of Executive/
Meetings at previous outside Membership/ Non-Executive/
attended AGM on Directorship ~ Chairmanship in Independent

30-03-2012 held # other Board
Committees ®

Mr. Antonio Helio Waszyk 8 Present Nil Nil Executive

Mr. Shobinder Duggal 8 Present Nil Nil Executive

Mr. Christian Schmid 7 Present Nil Nil Executive

Dr. Rakesh Mohan 2 6 Present 3 Nil Non-Executive & Independent

Mr. Ashok Kumar Mahindra 7 Present Nil Nil Non-Executive & Independent

Mr. Ravinder Narain 6¢ Present 3 1 Non-Executive & Independent

Mr. Michael W.O. Garrett 6°¢ Present Nil Nil Non-Executive& Independent

Dr. Swati A. Piramal 2¢ Present 4 Nil Non-Executive & Independent

Mr. Richard Sykes ° Nil Not Present Nil Nil Non-Executive

1 Participated through video conferencing in the Board meeting held on 07.12.2012.

2 Ceased as a Director with effect from 31.10.2012.

3 Alternate Director to Mr. Michael W.O. Garrett.

A Directorship in companies registered under the Companies Act, 1956, excluding directorships in private companies, foreign companies, companies under Section 25 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and alternate directorship.

B Only covers membership / chairmanship of Audit Committee and Shareholder / Investor Grievance Committee.

C In addition to the Board Meetings personally attended, the Directors who participated in the meetings over phone are: Mr. Michael W.O. Garrett on 25.04.2012; Mr. Ravinder
Narain on 07.12.2012; and Dr. Swati A. Piramal on 12.11.2012.

As at 31 December, 2012, in compliance with the corporate governance norms, the Company’s Board of Directors headed by its executive
Chairman, Mr. Antonio Helio Waszyk comprised six other directors, out of which four are independent directors. None of the Directors of the
Company was a member of more than ten Board-level committees, nor a Chairman of more than five such committees, across all companies in
which he/she was a Director.
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Board Meetings held during the year 2012

During the year, eight Board Meetings were held on 14" February, 2012,17" February, 2012, 30" March, 2012, 25" April, 2012, 26" July, 2012,
27™ July, 2012,12" November, 2012 and 7" December, 2012. The maximum gap between any two meetings was less than four months. All
material information was circulated to the directors before the meeting or placed at the meeting, including minimum information required to be
made available to the Board under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

The Company has established procedures to enable the Board to periodically review compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company,
as prepared by the Company as well as steps taken by the Company to rectify instances of non-compliances. The Board reviewed the reports
prepared by the Company on half-yearly periodicity.

Compliance with the Code of Conduct
The Company has adopted the “Nestlé India Code of Business Conduct”. The Code is available on the website of the Company www.nestle.in.

Itis hereby affirmed that the Directors and Senior Management of the Company have given an annual affirmation of compliance with the code of
conduct during the year 2012.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The powers, role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers the areas as contemplated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement and
Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956 besides other terms as may be referred by the Board of Directors. The powers include investigating
any activity within terms of reference; seeking information from any employee; obtaining outside legal and other professional advice; and securing
attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if considered necessary. The role includes oversight of Company’s financial reporting process
and disclosure of financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; recommending the appointment,
re-appointment, if required, replacement or removal of statutory and cost auditors; fixation of audit fees and approval of payment for any other
services; discussing with internal auditors any significant findings and follow-up thereon; reviewing with the management annual and quarterly
financial statements before submission to the Board for approval, adequacy of internal control systems and performance of statutory and internal
auditors; and reviewing the Company’s financial risk and management policies.

Mr. Ashok Kumar Mahindra, a non-executive and independent director, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Michael W.O. Garrett and
Mr. Ravinder Narain, non-executive and independent directors are other members of the Audit Committee. All members of the Audit Committee
are financially literate, and Mr. Ashok Kumar Mahindra and Mr. Michael W.O. Garrett, have related financial management expertise by virtue of
their comparable experience and background. Mr. B. Murli, Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary to the Committee. The Director-Finance
& Control, Head of Corporate Control and Head of Accounting and Reporting are permanent invitees to the Meetings of the Audit Committee. The
Head of Internal Audit, the concerned partners/ authorised representatives of the Statutory Auditors and the Cost Auditors are also invited to the
meetings of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board, the re-appointment of M/s A.F.Ferguson & Co., Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company till the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting, and the necessary resolution for their re-appointment as
Statutory Auditors is placed before the shareholders at the 54" Annual General Meeting scheduled on 8" May, 2013.

During the year, the Audit Committee met four times on 14" February, 2012, 24" April, 2012, 27" July, 2012 and 12" November, 2012 and all
members of the Committee attended the aforesaid meetings except Mr. Michael W.0. Garrett who attended the meetings held on 14" February,
2012, 27" July, 2012 and 12" November, 2012. The maximum gap between any two meetings was less than four months.

SHAREHOLDER / INVESTOR GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

The Shareholder / Investor Grievance Committee oversees redressal of shareholder and investor grievances, transfer/transmission of shares,
issue of duplicate shares, exchange of new design share certificates, recording dematerialisation/ rematerialisation of shares and related matters.

Mr. Ravinder Narain, a non-executive and independent director, is the Chairman of the Shareholder/ Investor Grievance Committee and the other
member is Mr. Antonio Helio Waszyk, Managing Director. Mr. B. Murli, Company Secretary acts as the Compliance Officer to the Committee.

The Committee met four times during the year on 14" February, 2012, 24 April, 2012, 27" July, 2012 and 12" November, 2012. All members of
the Committee aftended the aforesaid meetings.

During the year, 20 complaints were received from shareholders and investors. All the complaints have generally been solved to the satisfaction
of the complainants and no investor complaint was pending at the beginning or at the end of the year. The Company has acted upon all valid
requests for share transfer received during 2012 and no such transfer is pending.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Corporate Governance Committee (‘the Committee’) of the Directors oversees the corporate governance and other business matters which
may be referred by the Board or the Chairman, as and when deemed necessary, for the consideration and recommendation of the Committee.
The powers and duties of the Committee include acting as a consulting body to the Chairman and the Board on various matters related to
Company’s financial, commercial or industrial policy, corporate governance matters and make recommendations, if any, to the Board.

The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 12" November,2012 authorised the Corporate Governance Committee to
additionally monitor Corporate Social Responsibility issues including the Business Responsibility requirements and reporting.

Mr. Antonio Helio Waszyk is the Chairman of the Committee and the other members of the Committee comprise Mr. Michael W.O. Garrett,
Dr. Swati A. Piramal and Mr. Ravinder Narain, non-executive and independent directors. Mr. B. Murli, Company Secretary, acts as the Secretary
to the Committee.

The Committee met four times during the year on 1% February, 2012, 14" February, 2012, 28" May, 2012 and 12" November, 2012.
Mr. Antonio Helio Waszyk attended all the meetings. Dr. Swati A. Piramal attended the meetings held on 1% February, 2012, 14" February, 2012
and 28" May, 2012 and also participated over phone in the meeting held on 12" November, 2012. Mr. Ravinder Narain attended the meetings
held on 1% February, 2012, 14" February, 2012, and 12" November, 2012. Mr. Michael W.O. Garrett attended the meetings held on 14" February,
2012, 28™ May, 2012 and 12" November, 2012.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Matters of remuneration of executive directors are considered by the Board of Directors of the Company, with the interested executive director(s),
not participating or voting. Further, the terms of remuneration of executive directors are approved by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting. Therefore, no separate Remuneration Committee has been constituted.

The remuneration of non-executive directors is decided by the Board of Directors as per the terms approved by the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting.

The remuneration policy of the Company is to remain competitive in the industry, to attract and retain the best talent and appropriately reward
employees for their individual performance and contribution to the business.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS FOR 2012
(Rupees in thousands)

Name of the Director Sitting Fee  Salaries and Perquisites Company’s Commission Total
Allowances Contribution to PF
Mr. Antonio Helio Waszyk' N.A. 34,850 33,326 1,677 24,800 94,653
Mr. Shobinder Duggal’ N.A. 10,206 11,005 1,087 3,261 25,559
Mr. Christian Schmid' N.A. 20,054 20,395 770 12,7583 53,972
Mr. Michael W.O. Garrett 195 N.A. N.A. N.A. 450@ 645
Dr. Rakesh Mohan 120 N.A. N.A. N.A. 375@ 495
Mr. Ashok Kumar Mahindra 220 N.A. N.A. N.A. 450@ 670
Mr. Ravinder Narain 235 N.A. N.A. N.A. 450@ 685
Dr. Swati A. Piramal 55 N.A. N.A. N.A. 450@ 505

' The Company enters into service contracts with all executive directors for a period of 5 years. The notice period is of three months and the severance fee is the sum equivalent
to remuneration for the notice period or part thereof in case of shorter notice.

@ The Commission for the year ended 31 December, 2012 will be paid, subject to deduction of tax, after adoption of the accounts by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 8" May, 2013.

Sitting fee indicated above also includes payment for Board-level committee meetings.

The above remuneration of Executive Directors does not include provision for incremental liability on account of pension, gratuity, compensated
absences and long service awards since actuarial valuation is done for the Company as a whole.

Commission is subject to adequate profits being earned. Performance criteria for the executive directors take into account achievement of
performance parameters. The non-executive directors are paid remuneration based on their contribution and current trends.
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None of the Non-executive Directors holds any equity shares or convertible instruments in the Company. The Company does not have any stock
option scheme. The Company participates in the Nestlé Restricted Stock Unit Plan (‘Plan’) of Nestlé S.A., whereby select employees are granted
non-tradeable Restricted Stock Units of Nestlé S.A. Perquisites of the Whole-time/ Managing Director include, inter-alia, Leave Travel and
payments for the Restricted Stock Units vested during the year equal to the market value of the underlying shares on the date of vesting.

As required, a brief profile and other particulars of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment are given in the Notice of the 54" Annual
General Meeting and forms part of the Corporate Governance Report.

CEO/ CFO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director and Director- Finance and Control of the Company have certified to the Board of Directors, inter alia, the accuracy of
financial statements and adequacy of Internal Controls for the financial reporting purpose as required under Clause 49 (V) of the Listing Agreement,
for the year ended 31%' December, 2012.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) are as under:

Year & Date Time Venue

30.03.2012 10.00 A.M. Air Force Auditorium, Subroto Park, New Delhi - 110 010
19.04.2011 10.00 A.M. -do -

21.04.2010 10.00 A.M. -do -

Special resolutions were passed by the shareholders at the fifty first and fifty second Annual General Meeting of the Company for approval of
amendments in the Articles of Association of the Company and commission payable to non-executive directors of the Company, respectively. No
other resolution was passed as special resolution in the last three Annual General Meetings.

No resolution was put through postal ballot or any other general body meeting held in the last three years.
There is no special resolution proposed to be passed through postal ballot at the ensuing Annual General Meeting scheduled on 8" May, 2013.
DISCLOSURES

During the year 2012, the Company had no materially significant related party transaction, which is considered to have potential conflict with the
interests of the Company at large. Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note No. 36 to the Annual Accounts.

The equity shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai and the Company has complied with all the
applicable requirements of capital markets and no penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange, SEBI or any
other statutory authority, on any matter relating to the capital markets, during the last three years.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement entered into with the Bombay Stock
Exchange Limited, Mumbai.

The status of adoption of the non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is as under:

(a) Maintaining non-executive Chairman’s Office: Presently not applicable as the Chairman of the Company is an Executive Director; (b)
Tenure of Independent Director: No specific tenure has been prescribed for Independent Directors; (c) Remuneration Committee : No
separate Remuneration Committee has been constituted. Please refer to para above on “REMUNERATION COMMITTEE”; (d) Shareholder
Rights: Half-yearly and other quarterly financial statements are published in newspapers, uploaded on Company’s website www.nestle.in and
sent in soft copy to members who have registered their email address with the Company. Presently, half-yearly financial performance of the
Company is not being sent to each household of shareholders; (e) Audit Qualifications: The Company already has a regime of un-qualified
financial statements. Auditors have raised no qualification on the financial statements; (f) Training of Board Members : In the course of Board/
Audit Committee Meetings the Directors are where relevant provided information on the business model, the risk profile of the business parameters,
their responsibilities as Directors and best ways to discharge them; g) Mechanism for evaluating non-executive Board Members: The
Company has not adopted any mechanism for evaluation of individual performance of Non-Executive Directors (h) Whistle Blower Policy: The
standard of behaviour of Nestlé India is governed by significant documents from “Nestlé Corporate Business Principles’, “The Nestlé Management
and Leadership Principles” and “Nestlé Code of Business Conduct’. Employees can report to the Company Secretary, on a confidential basis,
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any practices or actions believed to be inappropriate under the Nestlé India Code of Business Conduct or believed to be illegal. Further, the
Company has appointed Ombudsman for Infant Code, under which employees can report Code violations directly to the Ombudsman, with
adequate safeguard to protect the employee reporting.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the Company are widely published in leading newspapers such as Financial Express, Millenium
Post, Rashtriya Sahara, Mint, Jansatta, The Hindu Business Line.

Up-to-date financial results, official press releases, presentations to analysts and institutional investors and other general information about the
Company are also available on the Company’s website www.nestle.in.

The presentations made to the institutional investors or analysts, if any, are not communicated individually to the shareholders of the Company.
However, in addition to uploading the same on the website of the Company, the presentations are sent to the Stock Exchange for dissemination.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
(within the limits set by the Company’s competitive position)

Industry structure and developments, opportunities and threats, segment wise or product-wise performance, outlook, risks and concerns of the
Company and discussion on financial performance with respect to the operational performance, has been covered in the Directors’ Report — more
specifically under the sections on Financial Results and Operations, Exports, Business Development and SWOT Analysis of the Company.

The Company has an adequate system of internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly authorised, recorded, and reported, apart
from safeguarding its assets. The internal control system is supplemented by well-documented policies, guidelines and procedures and reviews
carried out by the Company’s internal audit function, which submits reports periodically to the Management and the Audit Committee of the
Board.

In order to foster an improved internal control culture in the Company, wherein every employee is fully aware of all the major risk/controls faced
in his /her work sphere and assumes responsibility for the controls performed therein, the Company has implemented a tool called “Controls
Manager” which works on the basic concept of Control Self Assessment. The self assessments by process / control owner are also used as the
basis of CEO/CFO certification as required under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Bombay Stock Exchange.

During the year, there has been no material development in Human Resources / Industrial relations. Your Company has a favourable work
environment that motivates performance, customer focus and innovation while adhering to the highest degree of quality and integrity. As part of
manpower development and training and with an aim to enhance operational efficiency, employees of the Company have been sent on postings
and assignments to the other Nestlé Group companies.

Manpower figure of the Company as on 31%' December, 2012 was 7,008.
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual General Meeting

Day, Date and Time : Wednesday, 8" May, 2013 at 10.00 a.m.

Venue . Air Force Auditorium, Subroto Park, New Delhi — 110 010.
Financial Calendar, 2013 (tentative)

First Quarter Results . Second week of May, 2013

Second Quarter and Half-yearly Results ~ :  Last week of July, 2013

Third Quarter Results . Last week of October, 2013

Annual Results . February / March, 2014

Financial Year . 1% January to 31 December

Annual Book Closure 2" May, 2013 to 8" May, 2013 (both days inclusive)

Dividend payments: The Board of Directors declared third Interim dividend for the year 2012 of Rs.12.50 per share, which shall be paid on and
around 12 March, 2013 to all those shareholders who are entitled as on the Record Date of 26" February 2013.

First and Second interim dividends for the year 2012, both at the rate of Rs. 18.00 per share, were paid on 13" August, 2012 and 21 December,
2012, respectively.
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Outstanding ADRs / GDRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity
Not applicable.

Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Code

Shares of the Company are listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai. The Company’s Stock Code is 500790.
The ISIN Number of Nestlé India Limited is INE239A01016.

Market Price Data: High/Low in each month of Calendar Year, 2012 on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd., Mumbai

Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.)
January 4,335.00 3,930.00 July 4,599.00 4,402.05
February 4515.00 4,170.00 August 4,749.90 4,359.00
March 4,695.00 4,350.00 September 4,670.00 4,305.55
April 5,024.35 4,532.35 October 4,790.00 4,407.00
May 4,747.00 4,409.00 November 4,930.00 4,550.05
June 4,620.00 4,405.00 December 5,024.85 4,661.55

[Source: www.bseindia.com]
Performance in comparison to BSE Sensex

Share Price/BSE (Sensex) Monthly Closing —m-  Share Price
49— BSE
5100 51,000
4800 + + 48,000
4500 + 4 45,000
4200 + +4 42,000
3900 + 4 39,000
]
= 3600 1 +4 36,000
£ 3300 + +4 33,000 @
e &
s 3000 1 4 30,000 w
o [11]
® 2700 +4 27,000
=z
2400 + 4 24,000
2100 + +4 21,000
1800 + W 1 18,000
1500 + + + + + + + + + + + 15,000
Jan."12 Feb."12 Mar.'12 Apr.'12 May'12 June'12 July'12 Aug."12 Sep."12 Oct."12 Nov."12 Dec."12
Months

[Source: www.bseindia.com]
Registrar and Transfer Agents
M/s Alankit Assignments Limited, 2E/21, Jhandewalan Extension, New Delhi -110 055.
Share Transfer System

As per the requirements, share transfers are registered and returned within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt, if the documents are clear
in all respects. Requests for dematerialisation of shares are processed and confirmation thereof is given to the respective depositories i.e.
National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services India Limited (CDSL) within 15 days.
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Categories of Shareholding as on 31t December, 2012

Category of Shareholder Number of Shares Percent of Total Shares
Promoter and Promoter Group (A) 60,515,079 62.76
Public Shareholding

Mutual Funds / UTI 1,516,848 1.57
Financial Institutions/ Banks 594,477 0.62
Central Government/State Government(s) 27,544 0.03
Insurance Companies 4,849,729 5.03
Foreign Institutional Investors 10,913,752 11.32
Bodies Corporate 2,469,289 2.56
Individuals 15,137,794 15.70
NRls 391,204 0.41
Total Public Shareholding (B) 35,900,637 37.24
Total Shareholding (A + B) 96,415,716 100.00

Distribution of shareholding as on 31% December, 2012

Range of Shares held Number of Shareholders Number of Shares Percent of Total Shares
1 to 500 54,938 3,879,942 4.03
501 to 1000 2,604 1,892,702 1.96
1001 to 2,000 1,089 1,545,965 1.60
2,001 to 3,000 333 830,766 0.86
3,001 to 4,000 167 582,201 0.60
4,001 to 5,000 120 550,080 0.57
5,001 to 10,000 242 1,716,249 1.78
10,001 and above 289 85,417,811 88.60
Total 59,782 96,415,716 100.00

Dematerialisation of shares:
97.79 % equity shares of the Company have been dematerialised as on 31 December, 2012.
Plant Locations:

The Company’s plants are located at Moga, Samalkha, Nanjangud, Choladi, Ponda, Bicholim and Pantnagar. Tahliwal plant became operational
in March, 2012.

Address for correspondence:

Shareholder Services, M -5 A, Connaught Circus, New Delhi — 110 001. Phone No.: 011-23418891.

E-mail for investors: investor@in.nestle.com

SEBI toll-free helpline service for investors: 1800 22 7575/1800 266 7575 (available on all days from 9:30 a.m. to 5:30 p.m.).

SEBI investors’ contact for feedback and assistance: tel. 022-26449188, e-mail: sebi@sebi.gov.in.
On behalf of the Board of Directors
Date : 20" February, 2013 ANTONIO HELIO WASZYK

Place : Gurgaon CHAIRMAN
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CERTIFICATE
TO THE MEMBERS OF NESTLE INDIA LIMITED
We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Nestle India Limited for the year ended December 31, 2012, as

stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock exchange.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to procedures and
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For A.F. FERGUSON & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
(ICAI Registration No. : 112066 W)

Partner
NEW DELHI, 20" February, 2013 Jaideep Bhargava - 90295
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ANNEXURE -2 TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Information as required under Section
217(1)(e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read
with the Companies (Disclosure of
Particulars in the Report of Board of
Directors) Rules, 1988 forming part of
Directors’ Report for the year ended
31 December, 2012.

A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(@) Energy Conservation Measures
Taken

As in the past, the Company continued
to stress upon measures for the
conservation and optimal utilisation of
energy in all the areas of operations,
including those for energy generation
and effective usage of sources/
equipment used for generation.

In order to increase energy efficiency,
the Company performed energy audits
& initiated various projects to optimize
energy consumption. Many energy
related projects were initiated in the
factories to improve specific energy
consumption resulting in saving
aggregating to 15,700 Giga Joules
(GJ). The Company also initiated
several water reduction projects in the
factories resulting in saving
aggregating to 45,000 m*3. Some of
the key initiatives taken by the factories
during 2012, which have contributed
energy & water conservation:

* Enhancing steam condensate
recovery.

o Optimizing air-conditioning with
auto control.

* Energy reduction projects on
compressed air  pressure
optimization at the generation and
distribution stages.

* Improving electrical power factor.

* |Installation of Membrane Bio
Reactor (MBR) system for
treatment of effluents and improving
the potential of recycling of treated
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(b)

effluents in non critical areas.

¢ Installation of new Air Compressors
with variable frequency drive (VFD)
ensuring  optimal  energy
consumption.

* Adoption of Programmable Logic
Control (PLC) for energy cost
optimization and reduced idle
operation of installations.

* Installation of Wet Scrubber System
in the new boilers to reduce air
pollution.

* Replacement of sodium lamps with
light emitting diode (LED) lights and
replacement of old inefficient pumps
with new energy efficient pumps.

* Improved grid power considerably
in 2012 resulting into reduced High
Speed Diesel (HSD) consumption
for captive power thereby reduced
carbon footprints.

¢ |Installation and maintenance of
more than 800 solar water heaters
at the Milk Collection Centers
around the milk collecting areas of
Moga and Samalkha Factory used
for cleaning and maintaining of
hygiene at the Centers by farmers.

Additional Investment

Following proposals were initiated for
implementation during 2012:

o Water treatment system for usage
of Milk’s water to reduce water
withdrawal.

* |nstallation of Heat Exchangers.

* Installation of Reverse Osmosis
Plant at the outlet of Effluent
Treatment Plants (ETP) to further
increase water recycling.

* Installation of energy efficient LED
lights.

* Replacing heavy fuel oil with natural
gas for energy generation.

(c) Impact of the measures at (a) and
(b) above for reduction of energy
consumption and consequent
impact on the cost production of
goods.

The measures taken during 2012,
including measures initiated in the past
in the above direction have facilitated
efforts for conservation of energy and
helped contain the energy costs. As a
result, during the period from 1997 to
2012, for every ton of production your
Company has reduced the usage of
energy by around 65%, water usage
reduction by around 73%, reduced the
generation of greenhouse gases by
around 70% and generation of waste
water by around 78%.

(d) Energy Consumption

Total energy consumption and energy
consumption per unit of production, as
per prescribed Form A together with the
comparative figures for 2011, are given
at the end of this part. The Company
manufactures varieties of products
each of them using a combination of
various sources of energy in different
proportions. Therefore, the comparison
as mentioned in Form A, does not truly
reflect the efforts of the Company at
reducing consumption in terms of units
of consumption.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Efforts made in technology absorption as per
Form B are fumished below.

Research and Development (R & D)

1. Specific areas in which R&D carried
out by the Company.

Your Company as a part of Nestlé Group
and under the General Licence Agreement
has access to and advantage of drawing
from the extensive central Research and
Development efforts and activities of the
Nestlé Group. Nestlé Group spends
enormous amounts and efforts in research
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and development and in gaining industrial
experiences. It has therefore been possible
for your Company to focus its efforts on
testing and modification of products for local
conditions. Improving and maintaining the
quality of certain key raw materials also
continued to receive close attention.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the
above R&D

The ability to leverage the Research and
Development (R&D) expertise and
knowledge of Nestlé Group, has helped your
Company to innovate and renovate,
manufacture high quality and safe products,
improve yields, input substitution and
achieve more efficient operations.
Consequently the consumers perceive the
products of your Company as a high value
for their money.

3. Future plan of action

Steps are continuously being taken for
innovation and renovation of products
including new product development,
improvement of packaging and
enhancement of product quality / profile, to
offer better products at relatively affordable
prices to the consumers.

4. Expenditure on R&D

Your Company benefits from the extensive
centralised Research & Development (R&D)
activity and expenditure of the Nestlé Group,
at an annual outlay of over two billion Swiss
Francs. Expenditure of the Company in the
nature of Research and Development are
those incurred locally, primarily relating to
testing and modifying of products for local

conditions and are as under:

(Rs. in millions)

a) Capital 128.5
b) Recurring 180.0
c) Total 308.5
d) Total R&D as a percentage

of total turnover 0.37%

Technology absorption, adaptation and
innovation

1. Efforts, in brief, made towards
technology absorption, adaptation and
innovation

As aresult of the Company’s ongoing access
to the international technology from Nestlé
Group, Switzerland, the Company absorbs
and adapts the technologies on a continuous
basis to meet its specific needs from time to
time.

2. Benefits derived as a result of the
above efforts

Product innovation and renovation,
improvement in yield, product quality, input
substitution, cost effectiveness and energy
conservation are the major benefits.

3. Imported Technology

All the food products manufactured and / or
sold by the Company are by virtue of the
imported technology received on an ongoing
basis from the collaborators. Technology
transfer has to be an ongoing process and
not a one-time exercise, for the Company
to remain competitive and offer high quality
and value for money products to the
consumers. This has been secured by the

Company under the General Licence
Agreement with the collaborators and
provides access for licence to use the
technology and improvements thereof, for
the product categories, manufactured / sold
by the Company, on a continuous basis.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

(a) Activities relating to exports; initiatives
taken to improve the exports; development
of new export market for products and
export plans:

Members are requested to refer to the
Directors’ Report under the paragraph of
“Exports”, for this information.

(b) Total foreign exchange used and
earned.:

During the year under review, your Company
had eamings from exports of T 4,232 million
comprising foreign exchange earnings of
¥ 2,929 million (including sales to Russia
invoiced in Rupees) and export to
neighbouring countries in Rupees
amounting to ¥ 1,303 million.

The foreign exchange outgo was ¥ 11,981
million. Details of earings from exports and
foreign exchange outgo on account of
imports, expenditure on traveling, general
licence fees, etc. and remittances made to
non-resident shareholders on account of
dividend are shown in Notes 30, 32(a) and
33 respectively of Notes to the Accounts.
Members are requested to refer to these
Notes.
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FORM A

(A) Power and Fuel Consumption
1. Electricity

(@) Purchased
Units (000° KWH)
Total Cost (Rs. in Million)
Cost/KWH
(b) Own Generation
(I)  Through Diesel Generator
Units (000' KWH)
Units per litre of oil(KWH)
Cost/KWH (Rs.)
(1)  Through FO Generator
Units (000' KWH)
Units per litre of oil (KWH)
Cost/KWH (Rs.)
2. Coal (Various grades)
Quantity (Tonne)
Total Cost (Rs. in Million)
Cost/Tonne (Rs.)
3. Furnace QOil
Quantity (KL)
Total Cost (Rs. in Million)
Cost/KL (Rs.)
4, Other Consumption of Fuel

(a) High Speed Diesel Oil and Superior Kerosene QOil

Quantity (KL)
Total Cost (Rs. in Million)
Cost/KL (Rs.)

(b)  Non-Conventional Fuels-Coconut Shell & Coffee Husk

Quantity (Tonne)
Total Cost (Rs. in Million)
Cost/Tonne (Rs.)

(c)  Liquid Petroleum Gas
Quantity (Tonne)
Total Cost (Rs. in Million)
Cost/Tonne (Rs.)

(d)  Nitrogen Gas
Quantity (M3)
Total Cost (Rs. in Million)
Cost/M3 (Rs.)

(e)  Carbon Dioxide Gas
Quantity (M3)
Total Cost (Rs. in Million)
Cost/M3 (Rs.)

(B) Consumption per unit of production

2012

123,775
693
5.6

32,17
3.5
114

6,089
4.0
11.6

41,410
324
7,821

44,282
2,001
45,184

2,486
105
42,119

13,528
70
5,144

1,432
93
64,878

1,493
19
12,750

183.4
4
22,198

2011

108,224
561
52

21,471
3.4
10.9

9,032
441
9.0

39,295
273
6,947

41,727
1,588
38,058

1772
72
40,744

20,118
88
4,383

1,512
83
54,807

1,484
16
10,593

244.7
5
19,223

Beverages Milk Products and Nutrition Chocolates and Confectionery Prepared Dishes and Cooking Aids
Current Year  Previous Year Current Year ~ Previous Year Current Year  Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Electricity (KWH/T) 1110.44 1108.40 411.60 380.68 1058.72 659.78 198.93 147.09
Furnace Oil (Ltrs./T) 299.49 228.61 119.12 106.18 55.57 33.95 80.87 73.49
Coal (Kgs./T) 201.78 257.37 399.29 358.86 - - 76.97 123.11
Others:
HSD, HPS (Ltrs. /T) 163.47 775 0.65 0.68 0.35 0.51
LPG (Kgs./T) - - - 0.03 53.00 52.82 - -
Nitrogen Gas (M3/T) 19.30 18.52 - -
Carbon Dioxide Gas (M3/T) - 2.37 3.05 -
Non Conventional Fuel (per Ton) 628 1244 - - 94.2

Note : There are no specific standards avialable for each category since the product range under each head shown above consists of various products with different location.
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(1.1} Company’s Commitment to
Responaible Business

Nestlé india ('the Company’) is a responsible
organisation displaying continuous commitment tn
Initatives that help improve the quallty of ilfe In the
communities where il operates, focusing its efforis to
better understand the changing lifestyles of India and
anticipating consumer needs in its product offerings.
This raport highlights the Company’s efforts in these
areas of priority, and i3 aligned to the ‘National
Voluntary Guidelines (NVGs) on the Social,
Environmental and Economic responsibilities of
Business' issuad by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
and the requirements of Clause §5 of the Listing
Agreement with the Stock Exchanga. The Company
insists on hornesty, integrity and faimess in all aspects
of its business and expscts the same in its
relationships. This has eamed the CGompany the trust
and respect of avery stakeholider that it comas in
contact with and it has been acknowledged amongst
India’s ‘Most Respecied Companies' ang amongst the
‘Top Wealth Creators of India’.

1
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(1.2) Company Review

The cultura of innovation and rencvation within the
Company and access fo the Nestié Group's proprietary
technology, brends, expertise and extensive
centralised research and davaslopment facilities gives
the Company a dialinct advantage. it helps the
Company create valus that can be sustained over the
long term by offering consumers a wide variety of high
quality and safs food products.

(1.3) "'Saanjhapan’ - Creafing Shared Vialue

v il Qe
Nestld's approach to business is Creating Shared
Value. While creating value for stakeholders businesa
must also create value for the society through its
products, operation and social responsibility. in India
the Company calls it Saanjhapan as that is more
commonly accepted in the Indlan context.

Tha Company's main areas of focus are:

Mutrition, Water and Rural Developmant
while ensuring anvironmental sustalnability.

Ag
i

Cresting Shered Yalos

i s b

Sustainability

Compliance

Nutrition

Rural Devefopment
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Comvmmumiy

Stakeholders, both inlermal and extemnal are integral o
the Company’s business and Indude consumers, the
workforce wuarking at various Jocations across the
country, and those assoclated across the supply chaln
).e. farmers, raw matenal suppliers, packaging material
suppliers, customers, distributors and logistics
partners. The Company also engages with policy
makere and regulators not only {o beiter understand
the landscape within the area of its opsrations but also
o confribute to active policy making by sharing
expariencas and Issues from Its operations. The food
processing industry requires constant interaction wilh
the local communlties and the Company firmly believes
In a shared paih to prosperity end sodal progress,
Begldes this, the Company also engages with opinion
leadsrs, Non-Govemmantal Organlsations and
academia to benefit from different strains of thoughts
and functional areas of expertise.

The Company intesacts with stakeholders on a regular
bagis through day to day working wilh local
communities, trade assoclations, consumer surveys
and feedback and stakeholder convenings. In 2012,
Faderation of Indian Chambers of Commerce and
industry (FICC!) and Nestlé orzanlsed the Global

Business Responsibility Report

Creating Shared Value Forum, where the Company
engaged with govemnment, business and clvil society
leaders, along with stakeholdars acrozs its value chain
to delve into and discuss the role of businesas in society
and how cross sectoral partnershipg can address
gocietal neeads. The Forum was attended by over
400 paricipants from civil society, Intemational
development organisations, corporate, govemment,
acadamla, experts, students and media, and brought
forth Issues and opportunities for the private sector to
partner with Government and the Civil Socdiety in the
areas of Nutrition, Water and Rural Development.

In addition to engaging with thought isaders, the
Company works with farmers, suppliers, health
professionals and the community in which it operates,
to improve, inter alia, productivity and quality of
praduca and creating awarsness regarding water
and nutritian.

The Company ealso benefits from engagement with
varous global and national networks such as: The
Common Code for the Coffee Community; The Round
Table on Sustsinable Palm Qif which are mull-
stakeholder collsborations focused on the supply



chain; The Indian Red Cross Society as pert of the
Company's parnarship with Intemational Federation
of Red Cross and Rad Crescant Socialies; the Walsr
Rezourca Group and the Inlermationel Weter

Management insiliute,
Az a resull of reguiar and exiensive staksholdar

engagamant for decades, the Company's business
operations have evolved, balancing buainess priories

Good Food, Good Life
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and responsibllity fowards economic, emvirormentsl
and social susteinabiity, Therefore, the Companys
oparational straiegy resis on product gquality,
operabonal sustainability, employes engagement and
comminity wall-baing. Tha Company & focusad on
salfing ambiious goals, following a determined
approach to meeting them end creating velue for
sgharehoiders, eociely and tha environmani 85 awhola.

28 Sep. 2012; Haryana govt asks Neatld Indla to adopt collective strategy (hipnews indiamart.com/
siory/haryans-govi-esks-Nestié-ndla-adopt-colective-siralegy- 188591 tmi)

CHANDIGARH: Dairy products maker Nostié India have been esked by tho Haryana Chief Ministor
Bhupinder Singh Hooda lo adopt @ edlieciive strategy with Animal Husbandry Departmani, Dairy
Federation and privete sectors to sel up milk collecion cantres in the state. After insugursting Nestié's
sacond unit &t Samalicha in district Panipat on Thursday, Hooda said that this would ba a win-win situation
for both the farmers and investars. | alsa pra:sed the nttiatve tasen by Neslé for wark'ng collaboratively
with farmers in tha state and for transferof tachnology and know-how to incraass productivity and quality of
miik in & sustainable manner. The dairy player has also been commended forimparting rutrition knowledge

toyeung etudernts In vikege schools unaor Glebal Heatthy Klds Prograrrma.

(2.1) Operations
[2.1.1) Tha Way the Company does Business

(A} Internal Principles

The Company's reputation s one of s most
important assels and its employess are committed
towards snauring integrly, honesty, fsirdesfing and
full compliancs to applicablelaws in all opamations.
Significanl documanta from the Mestd Group,
which dofine the standard of behaviour of tho
Company, are MNesllé Corporsie Business
Pringiples, Mealld Management and Leadership
Principles and the Mestd Code of Business
Conduct. Nesllé India's business objective and that
of s management and employess s o
manufacture and markel the Company's products
in such a way as lo creata value that can be
suetnined ovor the long term for consumars,
shareholders, employees, business pariners and
tha national sconomy. The Directors and senior
managemant of Nesild also affirm compliancs to
the Neslié Indla Code of Business Conduct on an
annual basks and he Annual Reped of the
Company cames 8 declargsiion b this efect
In addiion to thesa Intemal principles, the
Company answras thet all s suppllers conform to
the Mesilé Supplier Coda, which alzo govems the
Company's supplier selection procedurs.

The Mestd India Code of Business Conduct
includes policy on ethics, bribery and carmuplion
covering the Company and all fts vendors,
contraciors end assoclatea, During 2012, no
stakeholder compleints wermm recalved by tha
Company.

The HMestlé Corporale Business Principles,
indluding principles of human rghts In business
activities, are distributed Io and adhered o by all

emplovess and exiend o suppliera/coniractors and
associaieg.

(B)Governance

The Company's Board of Direclors comprises of
savan directors, out of which four are Indapendent
direciors. To deal with diferenl matters of
imporianes, the Bosrd of Direclors heve consiifiuted
Committees of Direclors indluding the Corporate
Govamanos Commities which has been aulhorsed
by the Board of Directers to monitor Corporale
Soclal Resporsibilly including review of the
Businass Responsibility requiremants, from lima o
time and its annual reporing.

Tha lean and decantralised organisational
structure of the Company assures operstional

agliiily, socio-sconomic and environmential
respons/bilty. with strong focus on resulis and
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Bribsry and
corruption

Intamal

harassment

profecting stakeholder interests. The Company
ancourages open coemmunication by all
stekeholders. During the year 2012, the Company
did not receive any stakeholder complaints with
regard to unethical or unfair trade practicas, bribery
or corruption, imesponsible advertising and/or
antecompetitive behavioar which are pending as at
the end of financial year, except for one industry
complaint on advertising to the Advertising
Standard Cound) of India (ASCI) which was
subsequently decided in favour of the Company.

(C) Contributlon to Pealicy Developmiant

Through the Company’s membership in important
industry agscciations like the Federation of Indian
Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FICCI),
Confederation of Indian Industry (Gll), All India
Food Processors Assoclation (AIFPA), PHD
Chambser of Commerca and Industry {PHDCCI)
end the Associated Chambers of Commerce and
Industry in India (ASSOCHAM), the Company
plays a key role in policy development and
implementation. The Company engages with
government authorities to establish science-based

Business Responsibility Report

frading

regulations for protecting the health of consumeis
and ensuring fair practices in food trade and
with the food authority for harmanisation of Indian
food regulations wilh tha Codex Alimentarius. The
Company belleves that food regulations dealing
with standards like labelling and claims should ba
developed based on scientific knowledge and in
line with the intemational regulatory environmsnt.
The Company also pariclpates in deveiopmeni
Initiatives which would enabls the Food Processing
gector to contribute more io the economy.

{2 1.2) Rducing fna Foolpeint of Opomtions

The Company identifies and assesses poiential
environmental risks end addresses issues of
snvironmental sustainability and dimate change.
The Environmental Poiicy of the Company extends
{o all its operations. initiatives are taken to creats
sustainability in the value chain by improving
productivity while minimising the consumption of
nalural resources and reducing wasle and
emisslons. The Company has a dedicated Safety,
Haalth and Environmant (SHE) taam which plans,
monitors and controls all key initiativas.



o
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{A) Environmental Performance * International Water Management Institute

The Company developed & series of Environmenial
Performance Indicators (EPis) in 1987 to monitor
its efforts for sustainable use of natural resources in
manufacturing. EPls allow measurement of
performance, consolidation of data, bernchmarking
of best practices and regorting. As part of the EPI
systom, both process inpute and outputs are
measured in line with ISO 14031 requiraments.

All the factorieg of the Comparny commissionad
upto the year 2091 are ISO 14001 ceriified.
The Tehliwai Faciory of the Company which
was commissioned during 2012, is in the process of
ISO 14001 certification.

During the period from 1997 1o 2012, for every ton
of production, the Company has reduced the usage
of energy by around 65%, water usage by around
73%, reduced gensration of greanhouse gases by
around 70% and generation of waste water by
around 78%.

The Company is commitied t¢ reducing waste to
2ero and full recovery of unavoidable by-products.
During 2012, around 38% of raw materat waste
was recycled. All hazardous waste originating from
the factoriea are disposed off in a safe manner,
838 per regulatory requirements. Emissions and
waste generated was within the permissible
regulatory limits.

No show cause notice received frem the concemed
poliution control authorltles were pending as on the
end of financlal year.

Some of the prajects related to clean technology,
energy sfficioncy and renewable energy usage are
mentioned in Annexure 2 to the Directors’ Report.

Investment in Water Ressarch and Awareness

The Company recognises thal water availability
and quality are major Indian and global Issues and
Is addressing these concerns through improved
water usage pafterns. In addition to investing in the
continvous upgrading of water and energy
managemant practicas, the Company works with
stakeholders on water sustainability. Some of these
inltiatives are highlighted hereunder:

« 2030 Water Resourca Group (WRG)

Based on the analysis of future agricutiural water
demands and limitation of supply by the WRG, the
Company, as part of WRG, Is working with the
Goavernmant of Kamataka.

{IWMI)

The intemnaiisnal Water Management Institute
conducted a study on ‘Ground Weter Depletion
ard Impacts on the Moga Region’ which included

it

a study of the water footprint of the main produce
from the Maga region. Based on the teamings,
the report recommended interventions for
reducing waier consumption in the fam salong
with palicy recommendations.

L4

Sustainable Agriculture Initiative (SAl)

As part of the SA| Platform, Neslié engaged with
the Intarnational Crops Research Instlfuis for the
Serni-And Tropics (ICRISAT) and Consultative
Group on Infemational Agricultural Research to
develop a decision-support system, ‘Water Impact
Calculator'. This system allows farmers to enter
farm data and understand water-related impacts
and ways to mitigate thesa sfficiently. An initial
pghase of this work will be conducted in
watersheds near ICRISAT, Andhra Pradesh.

+ Water Awarensss Progremms for farmers

The Water Awareness Programmae for farmers 8
based on recommendations of the IWMI study
and ls conducted for milk farmers In the Moga
district. It aims to creae awareness among
farmera about the importanca of water, the
problems likely to affect agricullure in coming
years from the over exploitation of groundwater
and steps that farmers can take. By educating
farmars about the water table and crops, which
are the main contributors to ground water
depletion, the Company aims to propagate
Bustainable waler use through agricultural
practices such as laserland levelling, pucca water
channels, raising of bund heights around rice
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fields, delayed transplanting of paddy, System of
Rice Intensification, micro-irrigation and crop
diversification.
(£.2) Products
The Company's promise of "Good Food, Good Life’
ensures its commitment ta enhanca lives everyday,
everywhere, by providing consumers with tasty,
nutritious choices in a wide range of food and beverage
categorias and eating occasions. Its strength lies in the
capability to innovate and manufacture quality preducts
with the proprietary technology and intarnationally

renowned brands provided by Nestlé Group under the
General Licence Agreement.

{22 1) Produst Calsporise

The Company has a legacy of providing Indian
consumers with high quality products under four major
categories - Milk Products ang Nutrition, Baverages,
Prepared Dishes and Cooking Aids, Chocolates and
Confectionary. The Nestlé brand name ¢n the products
is a promise to its consumers that it is safe for
consumption, complies with regulatory standards
and meeots the highest standards of quality. Delailg
of development in each business calegory is
provided in fhe Directors’ Report under the Section
‘Business Development'.

(2 2 1 Cunlity i Mangiadsuring Frocsturme

All factories of the Company comply with the Nesté
Quality Management Systems and have been certified
by independent and reputed external bodies as being
compliant and aligned with the extemal Standard for
Quality Systems SO 9001 and the Food Safety
Management Standard 1ISO 22000.

Stringentintemal quality policies are adhered to, which
guide the Company in fulfilling its commitment to
nufrition, health and wellness, ensuring quality
assurance angd product safety, in addition to setting
procedures far consumes communication and
marketing of infant foods. Some of the major palicias
include the Nestié Quality Policy and Nestlé Paolicy on
Nutrition and Health Claims. As a practice, the
Company assesses sensory propsarties such as taste,
colour, odour and feel as parl of the organoleplic
assassments and associated physica’ paramalers
during their life cycle at regular intervals until the end of
shelflife. The assessment data is collated perniodically,
evaluated, improvements identified and whers
needed, corrective aclion is taken.

Food is a source of pleasure in everyday life and
when it comes to good food, pleasure and nutrition go
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hand-in-hand. The Company conlinuously carries out
consumer surveys to undersland consumer feedback,
product satisfaction and preference while measuring
consumer respense and salisfaction regularly through
its continuous and perodlc lracking studles, covering
more than 25,000 consumers through a random
sampling approach among participating consumers.
Nestié’s 60/40+ intemal inilialive ensures that all of the
Company’'s products meet rigorous standards for
nutrition and consumer preference. The '+'is the added
nutritional plus or benefit in the product, which is based
on criteria recommended by worig-renownad nutrilion
and health suthorlties, as well as on local public health
and regulatory guidelines.
& 5 Rk

| Cemarmartr e Lo AN ritiee el Fenelt

The Company has launched a range of Popularly
Posltloned Products (PPP) fortifled with micronutrlents
which provide nutntional value at an affordable cost.
With a large proportion of India’'s population suffering
the consequences of deficiencies in key micronutrients
such as iron, zinc. iedine and vitamin A, fortifying
products with micronutrients can help addrass
deficiencies where they are most prevalenl. Some
examples from the Company’s product range which
Incorporate nutritional advantages ara hereunder:

» MAGCGI Masala Noodles: Consumption of 75gms
provides the consumer with 10% Recommended
Daily Allowance (RDA®) of Protein and 20% RDA®
of Calcium. ("RDA for Adult Sedentary Male as per
ICMR, 2010).

» MAGGI Masala-ae-Magic Seasoning mix: Each
serving of 6gms provides 15% of the Daily
requirement® of Vitamin A, Iron and lodine (*"RDA for
Adult Sedentary Male as per Nutfient requirement
and recommended daily allowance for Indians,
ICMR 2010).

+ NESTLE NESLAC - Nutritious Milk drink for
growing kids: A product develaped for kids above
two years of age. Il has key immuno-nutrients such
as Vitamin A, C, ZInc and Selenlum which support a
healthyimmune system.

»  NESTLE Actiplus Problotic Dahi: Probiotic dahl
helpsin strengthening the digestive system.

= RESOURCE Dlabetic Faod for special dietary
use: Nutrilious drink with pratein and a rich source
of fibre which slows down glucose absorption.
It meets the American Diabetes Association
recommendation® of 14g of fibre/1000 keal and its
range of products which include RESOURCE



Ranal, RESOURCE Dialysis, RESOURCE Hepatio
and RESOURCE High Protein, are designed for
viied anengy and protsin reqgusemants {"Diabales
care 2008:31 (Suppl1): 561-78}.,

(2.2 4) Product Respansibidty

The Compeny's opershons sre guided by & chear
charer of ethlcs and responsible behaviour and |1
complies with all relevant regulabons on sourcing,
production, supply, diskibution, |sbelling and
markating of products, Some of the policles and
programmas am manbionsd hereunder

(A] Nestié Responsible Scurcing Programme
Baing In the business of foods and beverages,
maintaining & refiable and sustainable supply chain
s of utmost importance, The Company chooses [f's
suppliers through strictly lald oul procedures and
angages with them according 1o the princlples
described in fha Nesiié Suppler Cads. All suppliers
aEre sublect fo requiremanis of buslnese intagrily,
Eabour contilions, haaith, safely and ermdroenmienis
slandards i their besiness aclivifies, prodoction
processes, services provislon &nd thelr own
purchasing procedures, &8 enahrined in the Megllé
Suppliar Coda:

(B} Transpareni Product Labelling

The Company comples with applicable product
peckeging &nd lebailing requirements including

ﬁ Good Food, Good Life

The Company minlmises (& footprind by sourcing
fresh mill, & ey rew materal, from over 110,000
Earmers and has preferance for local procurement
of rew matarials, The Company works with farmar
commumniiies o ensure sustainable production In
tha lang term. During 2072, the Company span
aboul 88% of s iokal raw maberdal procurement
axpanditure on indigenous products. Some of the
products procured from locsl sowtes nclude milk
and milk ingredients, vegetable oils, green coffes,
wheat flour, sugar, whey powdar, cocos based raw
matarials, malodexring powdaer, fomato paste,
lactose, flguld ghicoss, black lea'gresen leal, dos
flour and chicory,

Tha Company follows & four step procedure io
gnaume suppler complance (o i3 pollcies Bnd
guality reguiremeonts, namaly - supplier
sngagamant, assessment, suppller development
gnd improvemsanl. Duripg 2012, the Company
conducted aboul 85 supplier audits 1o evaluais
complarce on business integrty, [abour slandards,
safaly, heaith and amdronment. The oulooma of
thesa sudils wera o ensure collaboration, legal
pompilance, enhance efficlency and bullding
strongar relationships.

declaralion of appropriate method of preparation of
producis for safe and proper consumption,
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Distribution of promotional items salong with
products is preceded by a safety/risk evalustion by
the Safsty Committes of the Company. The risk
evaluation reviews various aspects including
comract labelling and safety of promotional
products.

The Company endeavours to help consumers
make well-informed, healthy food choices through
clear nulrition 1abelling on the back of every packin
the form of the ‘Nestd Nutrtional Compass'.
The 'Nestlé Nufritional Compass' on the product
pack provides fransparent and easy to understand
nutritional information that guldes the consumer In
making the right food choices.

it is a rustworthy guide for consumers con their
joumey to Nutrition, Health and Weliness and
empowers consumars to make informed choices
aboutthelr dlet and anjoy a more balanceq Iife.

The example shown above illustrates how
each of the boxes in the 'Nestld Nutritional
Compass' help consumers make informed,
healthier food choices.

(C)}Marketing and Commuanication Activities

The Company is commitied to responsible and
reliabie consumer communication. As per the
‘Nestié Consumer Communicafien Principles’ the
Company abldes by all regulations to ensurs
freedom of choice and free competition whila
promofing and selling its products. The Company
ensures that all daims including nutrient contsnts,
fortffication and nutrifion dlaims have a sound basis,
comply with applicable legislation and are easily
understood by consumers,

The Company is a member of the Advertising
Standards Council of India (ASCI), a self-reguiatory
voluntary organigation of the advsrtiging industry,
and all consumer communication complies with the
ASCI Code of Conduct in advertising, and prevalling
guidellnes an food and nutrition clalmgin Indla.

The Company la a signatory to the Indla Pledgs.
and is committed to changlng food and beverage
advertising on televiglon, print, mdio and sodal
media to chlidren underthe age of 12 years in India.

In 2011, Nestlé Group bacome the first Infant
formula manufacturer tn be Included in the
FTSE4Good responsible investment Index, the
only Index In the world that Includes strict criterla on
the marketing of breast mllk subsitutes.
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{D)Consumer Grlevance Handling

Consumer trustand satisfaction is narmmount in the
Company. For the purpose of addressing sy
congumer |ssus, there Is a dedicated Comphaint
Redressal Team which acts as a one point interface
between the Company and its consumers.
Consumer complalnts are promptly dealt with in
gceordance with an establlshed procedure.
For easy access, detslls of Nestié Consumer
Servicas' touch polints (1.e. Nestté helpline number,
e-meil address and postel address) are svailable
on all packs.

As on 31" December, 2012, all complaints received
weare resolved except for ons csse pending for
dacision before the Consumer Forum.

(E) Packaging Environmental Sustalnablllty (PES)

The Company’s quality procedures for product
dssign, manufacluring and packaging snsurs that
only high qualily products are digpaiched to the
market for sale. To demonsuate the Company's
commitmenl towarde reduclion of environmenal
feolprint of Its packaging meterfals, tha Company
incorporalss labelling as per the Nestié Policy on
Enviconmental Suskaingbdility and 1S 14534:1888
(Guidelinss for Recycling Pfastics) and Plastic
Waste {(Management and Handling) Rules, 2011.
The Company's labslling inciudes identification of
the type of materiel 80 as o detsrmine recydabiiity,
antl-iter and recycde logos on products to remind
consumers to disposs In a safe and envirenmentally
fiendly way, and compostable logos for propec
marking as per ISASO 17088:2008 tiled as
specifications for compastable plastica.

(2.2 5] Primaples-in-Action

india I3 the world's largast producer of milk, spices,
pulses and tea, The Company is aware of the need
and opportunity to source morg raw materials locally
and has a dedicated Suppller Development Team.
The Team’s objectives includes less rellance on
imporia, overcoming quality and food safety issues,
and creafing a wider, more flaxibie supply basa. In the
past four ysars, the Team has secured indigenous
sourcing of 12 previously imported maw materials,
avolded 10 single supplier situations; developed over
70 new Jjocal suppiiers sble to meel Nestlé's
specifications, arranged for technical assistance to
suppliers to ciose safely and quelity gaps and assisted
in the bullding of infrastructure and accass to beltsr
taschnology for suppliers. Some of the spacific
inlbatives are detailed below:



{A)Coffes

The NESCAFE Plan |s o Giobal Initistive of the
Mesié Group, which was rodad out by the Company
In January 2012 with the Inauguration of a Colfea
demonstraiion farm n Coorg. Under the Plan the
Compeny conducts 'NESCAFE Befter Farming
Practicos’ for colfes farmers and also sssisls
farmers in conducting essessmenis wnd obiaining
cartification from the Common Cods for the Coffes
Community (4C Association). During 2012, undar
this Plan the Company established three AC unils g
Kushainagar, Malpeits and Mudigers, provided
fraining and tschnical assistancs to over B00 coffes
farmers and assisted ovar 560 farmers |n procuring
4C Corlification. Some of the testimoninls from
locsl farmers ane hereunder.

*The NESCAFE Beller
Farming Practices irsining
aesslion helped us fo
undorsiand e imporianoo
of social, economical and
anvironmanial sspecis
invoived in responsible
coffee farming. Ag
suggested by Neaild
agronomists, | sdopied
good practices for safs collaction and dispasal of
the plastlc wasie genorated i my coffes
plantefions end | &m happy that | am eonfributing fo
keep the ermdronment clesn forfuture generstions.

=M. K. 5. Sundl, Siddepuwr, Coorg

Cass Study - Chicary Sourcing

s Good Food, Good Life

(B8} Paim Ol

MNesté Group became 8 member of the Roundiable
on Sustainable Palm O (RS20 in 2009, which has
developed Principles snd Criters for sustainable
palrm ol production. In orderio increase tracaability
{ha supply chain, Tha Fomest Trusl (TFT) conducied
an upstream mapping for palm oil In India during
2012, t ansure palm oil is sourced responsibly.
The Company aims to procura 100% RSP0 cartified
susisinable palm oil,

(C) Milk

From eoliecting 510 kgs of fregh milk in 1881, today
the Company collacts frash mitk from ower 110,000
milk farmems through 2,800 Mk Collsciion
Agsncies. In additon to fresh milk collection, the
Company supporis dalry farm developmont
Ihrough financiel assistance, technical assistancs
regirding good fesding and broeding proctioes,
mechanisallon of dairy farma and vaelednary
sarvices; promoles sustalnable agricullural
practices and farmer Iraining and educalion.
Tha Agricultural Services team at tha Moga faclory
of the Company consists of 35 veterinary doctors.
During 2012, the Company recorded 362 farm visis
and 28 velernary camps which helped In providing
genvices such as medicnes al no profit no loss,
milking machines, artificial Iingemination and
nuirtious catlle feed.

Tha Company recognises lhe important role played
by woman in dairy farming as the primary caretaker
of catfla and therefors has devaloped an sducation
programme aspecially fof women dairy farmears,

Murilirighna started his business in 1888 on a very emaf scale with 300 farmars and 500 acres in Etah,
North Indig, In the yesr 2000, he started supplying rossted chicory to the Company and sought help and
puidance on improving his oparaions. With the company's helo, he installad a traditional roaster in 2001
and contracted many farmers lo grow chicory. He assisted ihe farmers in providing imported chicory seed,
good agricuural practices and buy back commimant, The farmers in tha region wars bensfitted as it gave
them the ready cash crop option which Improved thelr eaming and Iving standards. These Inltiatives lead o
tha mxpansion of his business cporstions. Today, Mudikrishna ls the proud owner of largest chicory
businass in India and works with over 5,500 farmors and about 7,000 acres and has today 10 advenced
Roasters. He is also investing in the velue addiion process with the assistance of the Company in the
grean field projact in Etah with a capacity of 30 TPD. This will further bring value to the psaple in the region
and wifl alao oreste jobs. Murlikrisnna is cRed by banks and govermment agencies al various forums as a
succassiul modsl in agro processing with thesuppor of private Companias.
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the Village Women Dairy Oevelopment
Programme. The objective of the Programme is to
empower village women engagad in dairy farming
to imprave quality and productivity. Womsn are
educated regarding gocd fesding and breeding
practices for cattls, animal care and treatment, and
sustainable agricultural practicas. Sinca the
Programme started in 2008, it has reached out to
over 56,000 women.

“The Nestlé Agriservices team has been
conducting the Village Women Dairy Development
Programme in our village
since 2008 and they provide
us with facilifes for catfle
care as well. it Is through the
Pmogramme that | feant
about the importance of do-
wanning, reguiar health
check-up af animals snd
good quality feed. Now | save
at least one fortnightly
payment on freatment forthe caftle.”

- Kuigdesp Kaur, Village-Talwand! Bharo, Jalandhsr

(£.3) Employees

Since its inception, Nestié’s business praclices have
been govemed by Integrily, honesty, fair dealing and
full compliance with all applicable taws. At the sarme
time, the Company safeguards the employees’ rights,
values their cuttural, social diversity and enguras safsty
and health at the workplace. As on 31" December
2012, the Company employed 7,008 permanent
employass. Around 51% of the Company’s parmansnt
employeas acrcgs focations are covered unsler
collective bargaining agreements with respachve
employee unions. The Company’s management
encourages a two way dialogue with employees
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beyond traditional aspecls of collectiva bargaining in
order to share knowledge and to joinlly find
opportunities related to important matters such as
Cresating Shared Value, health and safety at the
workplace and environment. Coniract employees
across all factorles of the Company constitute around
49% of the total workiorce. None of the permanent
employees are with any disability.

The mission of the HR Managers and thelr teams I8 to
provide professional guidance to line managers to
deliver superior business rasults by optimising
performancs of peaple, while ensuring good warking
conditions.

All employees of the Company are committed to
following the principles and values prescribed in the
'The Nestié India Code of Business Conduct end
demonstrate the highest levels of honesty and integrity
in their decisions, discharge of duty and peopls
development activities.

144, 1) Eirecs and Raguimlory Complanos

All employees ara required to strictty adhere o the
compliance of all applicable laws. The Company
strongly opposes child labour of all kinds and adheras
to the eight fundamental conventions of the
Intemational Labour Organization.

The Company provides [raining to employees on
Nestle Carporate Business Principles, Nestle Code of
Business Conduct and specific trainings on
mnti-cotruption, compefltion lawe with a sironger focus
on those working in high-risk areas.

(2. 3.2) Rachubrmsen Procass

The Company's long-term success depends ort its
capacity to affract, develop and refain the right talent.
Henoe the Human Resources Policy of the Company is
based on principles of mutual respect, frust and
transparency, opeh communication and cooperation.
The recruitment process |s carried out with
transparency, (ntegrity and focus on gender balance
ang diversity, ensuring that candidates with the right
capabilities, academic qualification and experience are
considered.

Nestlé's talent acquisition strategy focuses on hiring
significant tatenl through reputed campuses under
different tralnee programmes so a8 to create a talent
pipeline within the organisafion for the future.
For wvacancies at higher levels, the Company's
endeavour is to give opportunity 1o suilable internal
talant. The Talent Assassment and Successlon
Planning Process of the Company helps in assessing
the potential of individuals and succession planning.



(2.3 3) Growth Opporiunkiss

The Campany encourages and supporte embloyeas to
incuicatée Nestlé Management and Leadership
Principles to enable them to take up responsibilities
and challenges eary in their career. [t al8o encaurages
employees 10 evolye through continued and consistent
leamning and to broaden their horizon, bath nationaily
and internationally regardisss of any considaerafion for
origin, race, nationality, gender. religion orage.

(A) Training and Learning

All employees of the Company are systematically
encouraged (0 upgrade their knowladge and skills.
The responsibility of identifying learning and
training requirements and delivery is shared
batwaen employaes, their line managars and the
Human Resourcas function.

During the year 2012, around 60% of the
Company’s fotal pemmanant workforee including
women smployees has undargone skill
upgradation programmes toe enhance their
functional and behavicural skills, apart from the
mandatory training pragrammes on Nestlé culture
and values and induction programmes.

{B) Talent Davelopmaent and Performance
Ranagement

A High Performancs culture supported by
differentiated rewards and development is the key
to dellver Individual and business objectives of
the Company. Through process tools and
employee {rainings the Company seeks to
address these requirsments.

(2.3 4) Gender Balanca snd Diversity

The Company s committed to ensuring sustainable
conditions for gender balance and a diverse workforce
and focused on ensuring caresr progression for
talented women and men through a sound people
planning process and ongeing ooaching and
mentoring.

Harm®ny

dTEERGIR "THTOUEHN DIFYNEELT

Project ‘Harmony’ aims to help the Company to grow
stronger through the sfrength of diversity at the
workplace. Currently women employaes' form about
6.2% of the total permanent employee base, and over
13% of white collar smplayae bass. Around 25% of
trainees hired during the iest two years are women.

& Good Food, Good Life

The Company has defined policies in place to facilitate
graater Nlexibility in work timings for women employaes
responsible for childcare, matemity leave and
extended matemityieave.

Inftialives such a8 awareness sessions on gender
balance and diversity wera conductsd covering more
than 450 managers. Awareness sessions are an
intagral part of new joines induction and new manager
workshops. Jo facilitate dialogue amorig women
amployees, 7 Women Meels were conducted across
the country in the last two years.

The Company embraces diversity and respects the
personal dignity of all employses and stongly
condemns discrimination on the bagis of origin,
nationality, religion, race, gender, age or sexual
orieniation. The Company does not tolerate any
kind of verbal or physical harassment in this regard,
and takes appropriate aclion to snsure a secure
work environment. During 2012, no c¢omplaints
against discrimination or harassment wars received by
the Company.

{2.3.5) Safoty at tha Waorqilaos
Occupafionai heslth and safefty being of uimost
importance o the Gompany, the Environment, Health

and Safety Management

system is ceslified against

QHSAS 18001 and 150

14001 for all the factories of'

the Company, with the

factory at Tahliwal set up In

2012 in the process of

obtaining the certification. -

During 2011, the Company

launched 'Safe by Choice', a

safety sngagement

programme in collaboration with DuPont to improve the
safety culture of the Company. The first phase of the
Inkiative, which focused on contractor safety, was
rolled out in April, 2011 at the Company's major
construction sites in (he factorias at Pondg, Samalkha,
Nanjangud and Tahliwal. During 2012, the Company
focusad an employee safety while indoors and on the
road. Nestld India’s Safsty Council, chaired by the
Chairman and Managing Director provides 2 strategic
vigion in driving towards excellence. Based on the
resutts of a 'Safety and You' employee safety
perception survey conducted in 2011, many initiatives
were implemented.

The Company also provided regular safety and skill
up-gradation flrainings to the smployees, where
required. During 2012, 68% of permanent employees
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{73% of permanent women employees) along with all
contract workers were trained.

Across allemplossn catsgonies, nofatalitiss wers reported.
(. 3.8) Empicyes Redressal

Nestié Code of Business Conduct is the guiding
document for ansuring quick Employas Redressal in a
fairand justmanner.

it encourages empioyees of the Company to ralse thelr
concermns with the concerned line manager or HR
Department in case their parsonal dignity, privacy or
parsonal righis are compromised. It provides that,
employses shall report any praclices or actions
balisved to be inappropriate undser the Coda fo their
Lire Managers or the appropriate members of HR or
Legal function. All complaints are propesdy investigated
and appropriate action is taken. The Company has also
formalised & Complaint Govemance Protoco), under
which separate team heads are appointed to handle
the complaints recaived from smployses and othere for
redressal and recommended actions.

As on 31" December 2012; no such comblaints were
pending before the Company for redressal.

Code Ombudaman Syatem

Nestlé India’s Code Ombudsman Systert allows any
employea to alert the management through tha
Ombudsman of potential violation of the Infant Milk
Subsfitutes Faeding Bottles and Infant Foods
(Regulation of Praduction, Supply and Disfribution)
Act, 1992 and Rules theraunder (IMS Act).
The compleint once registered, is reviewed
Independently by the Ombudsman and the result Is
infimatad to the employes. Employses can choose to
kesp their identity confidential, while filing such a
compiaint. All employees of the Company are
periodically reminded of the Ombudsman System.

During 2012, 216 employees were provided with
gpecific trainings on the Company’s codes and
Ombudsman System. No code related complalnts
wera recsaivaed by the Ombudsman during 2012.

{L.3.7) Baorual Hersssmant Recresaal

Our success is based on our people. We treat each
other with respect and dignity and expect everyone fo
promote a sense of personal responsibility. We recrut
competent and motivated people who respect our
velues, provide oqual opportunities for their
development and advancement, protect their privacy
and do not toferatle any forrn of harassment or
discrimination.”

- The Nesstlé Corporate Business Prnciples
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In line with the principle staied above, the ‘Sexuat
Haragamant Redressal Policy - Guidelines for Nastlé
India Limited’ intends to ensure that thers are na
instances of sexual harassment, and in the event
of, ensure thal adequate procadures ars readily
available to deal with the problem and prevent its
recurrence.

Individual Managers are responsible for ansuring that
this policy is applied within their area. The policy
outlines a detaited mechanism of Grievance Redressal
that the smployees should follow along with a clear
statement that anyone found guitty of harassment after
investigation will be subject to immediate and
appropriate disciplinary action.

During 2012, no complaints related to child labour /
forced labour / involuntary labour / discrinihatory
employment / zexual harassmaent were received by
the Company.

(2.4) Community

The Company strives te continuously engage with its
identified stakeholders, Through its work with farmers
and suppliers, the Company provides technical
assistance to marginalised stakeholders, helping them
become sustainable in the long run, by providing them
with knowledge, facifittes and resources they do nof
otharwise have access tn. Soma of tha Company's
community welfare programines are dotalled below:

(2.4.1) Rurs| Dowiopmee

The Company'a approach 1o rural development aims at
ensuring prosperity for farmers and commurities while

.

respecting natural capital. The Company works at both
farm and community level to help improve yieids,
safeguard incomes, contributa investment and make a
difference to people's qualify of life.




(2.4 2] Masié Haalilny Kids Programime

The Nesatlé Healthy Kide Programme ig conducted with
the objective to raise nutrition, heaith and wellness

awareness of school age children. The Company
conducted an assessment study and a pilot
programme in 2008, based on which the Programme
was developed for adolescants aged 13 to 17 years
to create awareness regarding good nutrition
practices, heslhy lifestyles and greater physical
activity. After the successful completion of the pilot,
the Programme was extended to government schools
across all factory locations.

The Company parinered with the Dspartment of
Home Sdence/Food Science and Nufrition, across
five Universities in India - National Dairy Research
Institute, G.B. Pant University, Punjab Agricultural
Univereity, Goa Unlversity, and Univessity of Mysore fo
leverage this university-industry linkage and provide
opportunities to research fellows/post graduate
students of Nutrition to conduct the Programme which
covers informatlon regarding basic nutritional
raguirements, good cooking practicss, hsealthy eating
habits, hygiene, physical activity and lifestyls diseases.
The Programme is conducted over a period of six
waeks with two hours of nutrition training each week.

Good Food, Good Liie

Over 18,300 shudents acress India have received
nutriion awareness training. A pre and post knowladga
test is also conducted to assess knowladge incremant
among the students. The Programme is purely to build
nufritonal knowledge and doss nothave any referencs
te Company products.

The Company aiso collaborsfed wiih the Embassy of
Swilzeriand to organigse nutrition awareness

workshops for schools in Deihi, reaching out to over
650 students.

(2.4 3} Hesdth Camp for Micronuiriont Asremaness

The Company collaboratad with Drishtas, a social
enferprise with exclusiva locus on rural india to set
up health camps in the Mathura region. Through
thess camps, in addition to health servicas provided
by Drishtse, awarsness regasding micro nutrisnts
such as Iron, Vitamin A and lodine and diseases
caused due fo their deficlencies was created and
samples of the Company's Populary Posilioned
Product MAGG! Masala-ae-Magic wers given out.
MAGG| Masala-ag-Magic is an affordable seasoning
fortified with iron, vilamin Aand icdine. The product was
alsdo made available at Drishtee rural retail outlets to
ensure its avallabllity for sale.

{2 4 4) Sumrt Healthy, Sty Haalthy' ™
The Start Healthy, Stay Healthy Inlative is the
Company’s commitment to nourish a haalthier
generation. Tha Company understands that good
nutrition begins even before & baby 8 bomn, and this
campaign therefore provides expectant mothers with
guidancae on nutrients that are important for the child's
growth and development. The Company has a
dedicated website: www. starthealthystayhealthy.in

As part of the Start Heafthy, Stay Haalthy inltiative, tha
1000 days campaign aims at educating mothers about
the importance of the first 1000 days of a ehild ‘s life and
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the impact it can have throughout the life of the child.
The campaign aims at generaling awarsnass about
right nuirition during this crucial period, and its impact
on a child's mental as well as physical ability to learn
and grow.

(2 4 5) Nestld Nutriton Inatih i

Nestlé Nutrtion Institute (NNf) nurtures a vislon to
empower the hsalthcare communilty with latest
scientific and nutritional knowfadge. NNI! has
conducted over 800 scientific programmes on subjects
like paediatrice, nsonatal nutrition, matamal cars,
gynaecolegy. critical care and food safety, contributing
to over 50,000 hours of nutdlion education and
knawledge sharing activities.

(2.4.8) Clean Drinking Wister Projoct

The Company constructs Clean DOrinking Water
Projects in govermmant schools {0 ensure access to
dlean drinking water in fural areas. After identifying the
nsad, water wells are drilled and storage tanks ars
conatructed. The water tanks source water from below
150 faet ensuring access to purer and safer water as

comparad to traditional hand pumps. The water is
stored in food grade plastic water tanks enclosed in a
spacially desighed facility, with nine inches of sand to
preserve weater quality. An eight-sided water tank,
with eight taps is constructed to ensure a large number
of available outlets which reduce waiting time.
‘Water committess’ are set up In schools to Involve
students in tha upkesp of the projecl, water gamples
are tested periodically for potabitity and the Company
ensures regular maintenance and repairs. Till date, ag
many as 169 projects have been built, benefitting over
73,000 students.
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“Nostid drinking water
project has benefitted &l the
students i our school as we
can diink safe and pure
water anytime now. We don't
have 1o worry ebout falling
&ick by drinking tap water.”
Makhia A. Salkar, ideal High
Schooi, Goa

(2.4.T7) Vulor Awaroness Programme for Swdenta

The Water Awareness Programme conducted
for students from factory communities where Clean
Drinking Water Projects have been buitt The
Programme aimg {0 create awareness among students
regarding water consarvation and protaction of water
resources to ensure responsible use of water. With the
help of posters, students are taughl about the
aveilability of watar, ground water depietion, major
users of water, water quality and safe storage and
water conservation in the farm and at home. Water
saving and purifying demaos, such as the Drip method,
Solar Water Disinfection Process and Rain water
harvesting models are also demonstrated to increase
undesstanding. The programme has rsached out to
over 28,000 students.

(2.4 B} Sankalion Projscis for Girl Sludsnls

As a result of surveys camied out by the Company in
rural areas, lack of sanitation facilities was found to be
one of the most important reasons for discouraging
girts from attending school. In an effort to promote the
UNMillenium Developmeant Goais of Universal Primary
Education and to ansura availability of sanitation
facilities, the Company constructed sanitation faciliies
for girl students in village schools, Through this
endeavour it hopes to reduce the dropout rate among
gin students. Tl date, the Company has buit about
41 sanitation {aciliies acroas India benefiting over
16,000 female students.

"This is a great initiative and
wo are really happy that a
toilet facility has been
provided in our school
agpecially for giris.”
Gunjan Mishra, Govt. High
School, Udhham Singh
Nagar.




(2.4 8} Sclancs Exprass

The Science Express is an initiative by the Departriant
of Science and Technolegy (DST), Govemment of
India, which travels through 50 - 60 cities across India,
reaching out avery yesr lo aver 1.5 million visitors,
mostly students.

Since 2009, in collaboration with the Embassy of
Switzeriand, the Company has conducted nutrition and
water awsareness campaigns aboard the Sciencs
Express. During 2012, in line with the theme of the
Sciencs Express 'Bindiversily’, the Company used

posiers and models to creale awareness among
sfudsnts regarding climate changs. The exhibils
included information regarding climats change and its
Impact on agriculture, food sacurity and nufrition, water
use and waler availability, along with steps that
students could take In their home and school lo reduce
their carbon and water faotprint. Interactive models
depicting, the riss of carbon dioxide in the enviranment,
carbon footprint, aitemate energy sources and uses of
plastic to reduce waste aimed to increase the
understanding of students, make them consclous
about overuse and waste of natural resources and
adapt appropriate measuresin their datly livas.

(Z.4.10) Creating Snaned Valne Impect

The Foundation Strategy Group, a non profit consulting
firm is among the founding members of the 'Creating
Shared Value’ siratsgy and in their report ‘Measuring
Shared Value' discuss the ways In which companles
can create value by reconceiving products and
markets, radefining productivity in the value chain and
enabling cluster development. The study showcases
the Company's efforts in the milk distrct of Rajasthan,
through aestablishmant of milk collection centres,
ggriculture and veternary services and assured
purchase for farmers ensuring regular income thereby
enabling cluster developmentin the region.

m Good Food, Good Life

haEGtG

it also focuses on the Company’s mathod of measuring
progress through proxy indicators, which is done o a
day o day basis by ite veterinarians through regular
farm visits, cattle heakh and increase in volume and
quality of milk among other indicators. These
measurement indicators offer data and insights in
linking business and social results and shared value
created for both.

The Company's Moga facfory was sef up in 1961 and
comprises of the primary milk collection area for its
operations, Since its inception in Moga, the Company
hag basn working with milk farmers and ancillary
suppliars towards improving quality and productivity.

The Third World Centre for Waler Managemen!, a
knowledge based, appficgtion oriented think tank
based in Mexico, conducted a study in the Moga region
{o assass tha impact of the Company’s Maga factory on
the surrounding area. The study was conducted by a
team of specialists including Prof. A K. Biswas,
President, Third World Centre for Water Management.
The study consisted of a field study where the feam
interviswed suppliers, academicians from the local
agricultural  University, govemment officials and
politicas, Nestlé factary staff and over Z00 milk farmers.

The study highlights the Company’s way of doing
business through its phllosophy of Creating Shared
Value and how it contributed to the development of the
region through diract and indirect employment, steady
Income for milk and other suppilers along with
techriology transfer.

The study also msntions that in additon o Mega
factory directly employing around 2,400 persons, the
Compsrty provides employment o around 86,370
persons, through its 147 main suppliers only on Nestié -
refatad sconomic activities.

Punjab's contribution to India's milk production has
been 10.5% with only 3% of the dairy population.
Miik procurement by the Company reached to the tune
of 375,000 tonnes in2012.

Overall the Company has contributed to the social and
sconomic development of ihe region over the last
50 years of Rs presence and has baen fully Intagrated
in the social, cuttural and economic life of Mogs. It has
quickly responded to immediate and long-term nesds
that strengthen the lisiks between tha Company and the
commuanity within which it operates.
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Businezs Responsibility Parameter Index

BMe | Sacticn A: Germrl Information sboid the Campary |

| 1 Corporate idantity Nurnber (CIN) of the Company L152020L1959PLC003786
| 2 Name of the Company | Nestl Indla Umfied
3 Registered address -5A, Connaught Circus,
eew Dethi- 110001
4 | Webslie www.nestle i
5 E-malid investon@in_nestle com
6 | Financia Year reporled Year ended 31-12-2012
7 Sedlor(s) that the Camyiaity 1s engaged i (iIndustial sciity rood Processing ndustry (covered
code-wise) under various codes as specified under
!iC 1987 coveding food producis)
8 List three key productsisenvices that the Company manufactures/ 1. Preparation of Milk Cream and
provides {as Ir balance sheet) Cereats (ITC Code 18.01.0000)

2. Noodles (ITC Code 18 02.0000%
3. Soluble Cofices, Coflee blends

n | and Tea (ITC Code 21.01.0000)
! Tolal number ¢! locations where business activily is undertaken by Please also refer lo Corporale
dlsiribution Information page
I. Number of Inlemational Locations (Provide cetails of major 5} Russia, Tuskay, USA, Egypl, Singapore
l . Number of National Localions 8 Manufactuning locations, 4 sales
branches, Head office and nation-wide
| sales and distribulion nebwork |
10 —‘ Mackets served by the Company - LocaliSlate/Nationallirdermabional All India and 36 inlemational markets |
Sello, | Sation B: Frramtiad Dutalts of the Compary | fin. 1n Milions
Y | P i Gt | #5215 1
[l L R i S el = |
2 Total Tumover 83023
3 | Total profil afles taxes 10679 !
4 Total Spanding on Corporele Sociat Rasponsibility (CSR) as percenlage 2.3% (Based on broad estimates) '
of profil afiec tax (%)
5 Uis? of acliviias in which axpenditus in 4 above has been incumed:- The lisl of activiias for which expendilure has

been incumed indudes:

a) Improving Walar Access and Suslainabilily

by Nubilion Awareness including Slart Healthy,
Slay Healthy initialives

¢) Rursl Devalopment Initiaive

d} Sanliztion Projects

& Disseminalion of Sciendific and Nulition
knowledge
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(N -
el Good Food, Good L. {(_:

1 | Diesas = Company fave any Subediary Campany’ Companies? -l Ho
2 | Dothe Subsidiary Company/Comsanies pariicipais in the BR iniiiatives of | Nol Apglicatils
the parent qcmpznw If yes, then indicate the number of such subsidiary
i | company(s) s
3 Do any othar entitylentities {e.g. suppliers, distribulors etc.) that the Company | The Company particlpales in Lhe 8R Iniatives

does business wilh, participate in the B8R inifiatives af the Company? If yes, with the participating stakeholders such as
then indicate the percentage of such srtityfentities? fLass than 30%, 30-80%, | farmers, suppliers and distributoss.
More than 60%) J

1 Details of Director/Directors responsible fos BR
a) Detaifs of the DirectoriDirector responsible for implementation of the B8R~ | |
palicy/policies

DIN Number 3173670 |
Name Mr. Chrislian Schmd
Deslgnatior Mrector-Technicaf |
o) Details of the BR hiead
DIN Number (if applicable) Not Applicable J
Name M. Sanjay Khajwria
Designation Senior Vice President-Corporata Affairs 1
Telephone numbes +91-124-33406000
e-mail id crealingsharedvafue.in@in.nesie.com

2 | Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Palicy/policies (Reply in Y/N}
$.No.| Questions | Pi P2 P3 ps ! ps | pe | 7 P8 Pg
| 1. | Doyouhave policyfpolicles for.. Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

2 Has the policy being formulaled m - Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
consultation with the relevanl
stakeholders?

3. Does lhe policy conform lo any Y Y Y [ vy Y Y Y Y Y
nalional finlemational slandands?
If yes, specry?®

4. | Has the poficy being approved by |
the Board? Is yas, has it bean
signed by MDlovner/CEO
appropriate Board Director?

5 Doaﬂmecompanyhaveaspeo‘ﬁeﬂ Y Y i Y A Y ¥ Y Y
committes of the Board/Diracion
Oiiicial to oversee the implemen-
tation of e policy?

6. Indicale the link for the policy lo Y Y ¥ Y ¥ Y

be viewed online?

7. | Has the policy been (ormally Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
commuaicated (o all refevant
| inlemal 2nd extemel stakeholders?) | |

=
-
=<
=<
<
=
-
-
-

Business Responsibility Report



l.S.No.Quesﬁons I P1 I P2 i P3 ‘ P4 ‘ PS5 Pé I p7 | P8 i P9

8. | Joes e company have inhousa| Y y |y |y |y [ v v | v | v
structure to implement tha policy!

| policies? | | | , 1 | |

|9, | Doesthe Companyhava a grievance] Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

redressal mechanism selated to

(he policyfpoliciss to address

stakeholders' grievances redaled

lo the policy/policies?

10. | Hes the company camed out N N | I8 | N N ‘ K N | N | N
Irdependan! audillevatuation of
Ihe wanking af this poficy by an
nHmal o extemal agency?

‘ 2a. | if answer to S.No. 1 against any principle, is ‘No’, please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options) ! Not applicable

@ The Policies hava been derived and adoplad from Lhe Nastié Global poficies and ars alioned as pes local requiremants to safaguand the inlerests
of allils stzkeholders.

* Nolas 1 (09 correspondlng (o Principles 108

Principla

1. hitpIhvwannastibinfinvesiors

2. hifpfwww.neslié.cominvesiors/corporategovemancefpusinessprinciplas/pagespusinessprincipleshome. aspx
3. hitpSAewwr.nestié_comlesvibumpeaplefanticomuption

Princlple 2

1. hitpLiwwaw.nestlé.comiaboitusisuppliers

2. hiiphwneneslid.comlabouiusiquality-and -safely

3. htpgiwnw.nestle.comassetlibraryfdocomentsicreating% 20shared%20valuedrural_developmentf201 f-palm-oil-nestie-responsible-
sourcing~guidelinas pol

4. hitpLiewnw.nestlé.comicsvienvironmentcimalechange

5. hitpiwene neshie.comlassetlibraryldocumenis/media/stalementy/20 11-nestie_commitments_on_deforestslion_fores|_slewardship.pdi

6. hitpthwwwnestié.comicsviruraldevelopment/cofiee

7. hitp:/hwwwenesé comicsviruraldevelopmentimplementngthenes lésuppliercodelresponsiblesourcingauditprogramme

8. hitpfwww.naslié.cormicsviruraldevelopmentimplementingthenas lasupplisrcodafrasponsiblssourcingtracaabiityprogamma

8. hitptiwww.nestls.comicsvinucaldevelopmentimplementingthenesiiésuppliercode

Principle 3

1. hitpfhwww.nastia.com/zasat-livrary/documenlsAidrary/documentsfabout_us/policy-on-safaty-and-haalth-al-work pof
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FORM A

{Pursuant to Clause 31{a} of Listing Agreement)

Sr. No. Particulars Details
1. Name of the Company Nestle India Limited
(Scrip Code 500790)
2. Annual financial statement for 31st December, 2012
the year ended
3. Type of Audit observation No Qualification or matter of emphasis has been
included in the Audit Report.
4, Frequency of observation Not Applicable in view of comments in (3} above.
5. To be signed by:

» Managing Director

o CFO

» Auditor of the Company

e Audit Committee Chairman

DIRECTOR- Fl

For A.F. FERGUSON & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
(ICAl Registration No. : 112066W)
W—f?frm

PARTNER
JAIDEEP BHARGAVA- 90295

AL [l
AK MAHINDRA
NON-EXECUTIVE AND INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR
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